
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda.  Under the Brown Act, Council is 

prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred to staff or to a 

subsequent meeting.  Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which may not be 

delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council action.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
Persons wishing to speak on closed session items have a choice of doing so either immediately prior to the 

closed session or at the time for comments on items at the open session. 

 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL                             

 
 

Mayor Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian, Council Member 

Arizmendi, Council Member Capoccia, and Council Member Goss 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT                                       Regarding Closed Session Items 
 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION REGARDING: 

 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—Existing Litigation  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 

 Case:  City of Gardena, et al. v. Regional Water Quality Control Board 

 

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—Anticipated Litigation 

(Government Code Section 54946.9(d)(2) 

 Number of potential cases:  1 
 

 

 

 

 
ACTION ITEMS 

Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such matters, 

including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item.   
 

MEETING ASSISTANCE 

If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Manager’s office at 

(626) 355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

AGENDA  

SPECIAL MEETING 

SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL,  

 

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 

 

Closed Session 5:30 pm  

 

City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 

Sierra Madre,  California  91024 

 

 

 Denise Delmar, Mayor  

John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem 

Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member 

John Capoccia, Council Member 

Gene Goss, Council Member 

 

Sue Spears, City Clerk  

Michael Amerio, City Treasurer 
 



 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda.  Under the Brown Act, Council is 

prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred to staff or to a 

subsequent meeting.  Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which may not be 

delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council action.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
Persons wishing to speak on any item on the agenda will be called at the time the agenda item is brought 

forward.  Persons wishing to speak on closed session items have a choice of doing so either immediately 

prior to the closed session or at the time for comments on items at the open session. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
Time shall be devoted to audience participation early on the agenda.   

 
 

 

 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
 Mayor Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian, Council 

Member Arizmendi, Council Member Capoccia, and 

Council Member Goss 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  AND 

INVOCATION/INSPIRATION 
 

 Council Member John Capoccia 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

 Vote of the Council to proceed with City business. 
 

REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 

 City Attorney report from the closed session. 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES  Approval of City Council minutes from the Regular 

meeting on January 8, 2019. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  Council Member activities relating to City business. 
 

PRESENTATION  Presentation on Clear Power Alliance  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT  Regarding items not on the Agenda. 

AGENDA  

REGULAR MEETING 

SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY,  AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 

Tuesday, January 22, 2019  

 

6:30 pm  

 

City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 

Sierra Madre,  California  91024 

  
 

 Denise Delmar, Mayor  

John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem 

Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member 

John Capoccia, Council Member 

Gene Goss, Council Member 

 

Sue Spears, City Clerk  

Michael Amerio, City Treasurer 



ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. CONSENT  
 

  

 a) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 19-04 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 19-04 for approval of payment of City 

warrants in aggregate amount of $547,891.14; Library 

warrants in the aggregate amount of $1,614.93, and 

payroll transfer in the aggregate amount of $297,79930  

for the fiscal year ending June 2019. 

 

 b) TREASURER’S REPORT –  

QUARTER ENDING       

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council receive and file. 

 c) SECOND READING OF 

ORDINANCE 1408 AMENDING 

TITLE 10 (“VEHICLES AND 

TRAFFIC”), SECTION 10.12.030 

(“RESERVED”), TO READ “SHARED 

MOBILITY DEVICE,” 

PROHIBITING SHARED MOBILITY 

DEVICES AND BUSINESSESS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council introduce and 

give second reading, by title only, waiving further 

reading, of Ordinance 1408, an Ordinance of the City 

Council amending Title 10 (“Vehicles and Traffic”), 

Chapter 10.12 (“Administration and Enforcement”), 

Section 10.12.030 (“Reserved”) of the Sierra Madre 

Municipal Code, to read “Shared Mobility Device”, 

prohibiting a shared mobility device from being 

abandoned or offered for use in the public right-of-way 

or on public property. 

 

 d) AUTHORIZATION TO BID FISCAL 

YEAR 2018-2019 STREET 

RESURFACING PROJECT 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council direct staff to 

advertise the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Street Resurfacing 

Project for construction bids, with construction work 

scheduled to begin March 2019. 

 

 e) RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE 

A NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR 

THE FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 

WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve a 

Notice of Completion for the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

Water Main Replacement Project and direct staff to file 

the Notice with the Los Angeles County Clerk. 

 f) COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL 

FINANCIAL REPORT (CAFR) FOR 

THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING     

JUNE 30, 2018 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council receive and file. 

 g) CALIFORNIA ASSEMBLY BILL 1600 

ANNUAL COMPLIANCE RREPORT 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council receive and file. 

 PUBLIC  HEARING 

 

  

2. CONSIDERATION OF URGENCY 

ORDINANCE 1409-U, AN ORDINANCE OF 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SIERRA MADRE, ESTABLISHING AN 

INTERIM MORATORIUM PURSUANT TO 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65858 

PROHIBITING “SHARED MOBILITY 

DEVICES” 

 Recommendation that the City Council conduct a Public 

Hearing, introduce and read, by title only, waiving 

further reading, Urgency Ordinance 1409-U, 

establishing an interim moratorium on the 

prohibition of shared mobility devices from being 

placed, abandoned, or offered for use in the public 

right-of-way or on public property, and declaring 

the urgency thereof.  

 



 DISCUSSION 

 

  

3. DISCUSSION REGARDING SHORT-TERM 

RENTALS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council provide staff 

with direction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

ACTION ITEMS 

Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such matters, 

including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item.   

 

AVAILABILITY OF AGENDA MATERIALS 

Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection on the City’s website at 

www.cityofsierramadre.com, and during normal business hours at City Hall, 232 W. Sierra Madre 

Blvd. and at the Sierra Madre Public Library, 440 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

 

LIVE BROADCASTS 

Regular City Council meetings are broadcasted live on Cable Channel 3 and rebroadcast on 

Wednesday and Saturday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

MEETING ASSISTANCE 

If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Manager’s office at 

(626) 355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council will adjourn to a Public Hearing at this same place on Tuesday, February 12, 2019. 

http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/


Page 1 of 14 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 1-8-2019 

 

Tuesday, January 8, 2019 - 6:30 pm 
Sierra Madre City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd., Sierra Madre, CA 91024 

  

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

Mayor Denise Delmar called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  City Clerk Sue Spears called the roll. 

 

Present: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

 

Absent: None  

 

Also Present: Gabe Engeland, City Manager 

Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney 

Laura Aguilar, Assistant City Clerk 

James Carlson, Management Analyst 

Chris Cimino, Director of Public Works  

Vincent Gonzalez, Planning & Community Preservation Director 

Miguel Hernandez, Human Resources Manager 

Kurt Norwood, Interim Fire Chief 

Joe Ortiz, Police Chief 

Christine Smart, Library Services Manager 

Sue Spears, City Clerk 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION/INSPIRATION: 

 

Council Member Arizmendi led the Pledge of Allegiance, wished everyone a Happy New Year, and 
read a quote by Benjamin Franklin, “Be at war with your vices, at peace with your neighbors, and let 
every new year find you a better man.” 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS PRESENTED: 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian moved to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

Council Member Capoccia seconded the motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss  

Noes:      None 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 



Page 2 of 14 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 1-8-2019 

 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for the approval of the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of December 11, 

2018. 

 

Council Member Capoccia moved to approve the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of December 

11,  2018 as presented. 

  

Council Member Goss seconded the motion to approve.  

 

Ayes:  Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members John 

 Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi 

 

The motion to approve the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of December 11, 2018 as presented 

was passed with four (4) yes votes and one (1) abstain. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS: 

 

A. Council Member John Capoccia (1) spoke about the recent passing of Tim Osti, a prominent Sierra 
Madre resident who touched so many people in town, (2) announced that the 2019 Sierra Madre 
Rose Float won yet another award, (3) recognized the Rose Float Committee and the volunteers 
who make the mechanics of the float work, and (4) encouraged people to support the Sierra Madre 
Playhouse as an outstanding treasure of Sierra Madre.  

 
B. Council Member Gene Goss (1) expressed congratulations and thanks to the amazing Sierra 

Madre Rose Float Committee, volunteers, and princesses and (2) commented that the Sierra 
Madre Rose Float is a source of civic pride that we treasure. 

 
C. Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi commented about the numerous community events that take 

place during the holidays that make Sierra Madre so special. 
 

D. Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian concurred with the previous comments. 
 

E. Mayor Denise Delmar (1) expressed condolences to the Osti Family for their loss, (2) said that our 
hearts go out to the family, (3) announced that services will be held on January 19, 2019, and (4) 
reported that she was praised as the “Most Prominent Mayor” at her work Management Council 
Meeting because of the award winning 2019 Sierra Madre. 

 

PRESENTATION – PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF SIERRA MADRE SCHOOL CHOICE 

WEEK  

 

Mayor Delmar read a proclamation from the Sierra Madre City Council in recognition of Sierra Madre 

School Choice Week (January 20-26, 2019).  No one from Sierra Madre School was present to accept 

the proclamation.  Mayor Delmar said that the proclamation would be sent to the school. 

 



Page 3 of 14 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 1-8-2019 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on items not on the agenda.   

 

 David Gordon, Sierra Madre Playhouse, said that (1) attendance at the Sierra Madre Playhouse 

is generally 1/3 Sierra Madre residents and 2/3 from outside the city, (2) many Sierra Madre 

residents are not aware that the Sierra Madre Playhouse has offered professional theater since 

2012, and (3) the Sierra Madre Playhouse has an exciting season coming up and encourages 

people to attend. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to come forward to speak on items not on the agenda.  

Seeing no one come forward, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment. 

 

AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 

 

1. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

City Clerk Spears gave the following reports under the Consent Calendar: 

 

a) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 19-01 OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA 

MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS – Recommendation that the City Council 

approve Resolution 19-01 for approval of payment of City warrants in aggregate amount of 

$334,131.76; Library warrants in the aggregate amount of $10,908.14, and payroll transfer 

in the aggregate amount of $653,838.39  for the fiscal year ending June 2019. 

 

b) CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-03 ACCEPTING MTA GRANT FUNDS FOR A 
PROPOSED BICYCLE FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT PROJECT -  Recommendation that 
the City Council accept grant Transportation Development Act Funds for a joint project with 
the City of Arcadia for a proposed Bicycle Facilities Improvement Project. 

 

Mayor Delmar pulled Consent Item 1b from discussion at this time and asked if any Member of the 

Council had questions on Consent Item 1a.  Council Members did not ask any questions. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on the Consent Item 1a.  Seeing no one, 

Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion.  

No additional discussion occurred. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian made a motion to approve Consent Items 1a as presented. 

 

Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion for approval. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to approve Consent Calendar Items 1a as presented was passed unanimously. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on Consent Item 1b. 

 



Page 4 of 14 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 1-8-2019 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian asked a question about how the proposed Class III Bike Lane on Sierra 

Madre Blvd. (between Lima Ave. and Baldwin Ave.) would work with the bike lane and the parked 

cars.  Public Works Director Cimino (1) displayed a map graphic of the proposed Sierra Madre 

Class III and Class II Bike Lanes and explained that the bike lanes are to notify drivers that they 

need to share the road with bicyclists, (2) explained that Sierra Madre Blvd. (between Lima Ave. 

and Baldwin Ave.) is not wide enough to accommodate an individual bike lane and that is why a 

Class III Bike Lane is allowed there, (3) the bike lane stencil will be off-set toward the parking lane, 

instead of the middle of the lane, (4) Sierra Madre Blvd. (between Michillinda Ave. and Lima Ave.) 

will have an individual bike lane that will run alongside the parked vehicles (8 ft. for parked vehicles, 

3 ft. for the bike lane, and 10 ft. for the driving lane). 

 

In response to a question by Mayor Delmar, Director Cimino said that the Class III Bike Lane is to 

notify both the drivers and bicyclists that they need to share the lane. 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Capoccia, Director Cimino (1) confirmed bicyclists 

are allowed to use public streets, regardless of the existence of a bike lane, and said that  (2) per 

the CA Vehicle Code, bicyclists are required to ride as close to the parked cars as it is safe (3) 

motorists are to allow three (3) feet when passing a bicyclist, and (4) bicyclists are supposed to ride 

in single file and not side by side, except when passing one another or need to move due a parked 

car or a car turning right. 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Arizmendi, Director Cimino confirmed (1) that the 

proposed bike lanes does not reduce any driving lanes  and (2) per CA Vehicle Code, bicyclists are 

not to ride side by side, except when passing one another or avoiding a hazard.  

 

Council Member Goss observed that many bicyclists riding through Sierra Madre on Saturdays ride 

side by side and asked about enforcement.  Public Works Director Cimino said that enforcement is 

the responsibility of the Sierra Made Police Department.  Council Member Goss commented that 

the bike lanes may alert or make it more obvious to the bicyclists that they need to ride single file.  

 

Director Cimino reported that Orange Grove Avenue will have a Class III bike lane. 

 

In response to a question by Mayor Delmar, Director Cimino confirmed that the grant and resulting  

bike lanes are part of an agreement that Sierra Madre entered into with the City of Arcadia in 2015. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on the Consent Item 1b.  

 

 Dee Alcorn, Sierra Madre, (1) questioned the intent of the bike lanes, (2) asked about the 

criteria, and (3) asked about how the bike lanes will affect safety and enforcement. 

 

 Pat Alcorn, Sierra Madre, (1) referenced the City’s General Plan and asserted that the bike 

lanes concept was rejected, (2 expressed concern regarding the bike lanes and parking in 

Downtown Sierra Madre, (3) questioned whether any traffic studies had been conducted 

regarding the bike lanes, and (4) asked if this is a safety issue for Sierra Madre. 

 

Mayor Delmar Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to come forward to speak on this item.  

Seeing no one, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council 

for discussion.  

 

In response to a question by Council Member Arizmendi, Director Cimino said (1) that stencil for the 

Class III bike lane could be moved more toward the center, (2) it is Staff’s recommendation to have 



Page 5 of 14 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 1-8-2019 

 

it closer to the parked cars, (3) the real purpose is to notify motorists and bicyclists that they are 

sharing the road, and (4) Arcadia did conduct a traffic study as part of the grant application.  

 

In response to a question by Mayor Delmar, Director Cimino said that few streets in Sierra Madre 

will have the bike lanes and that the purpose is to connect the bike lanes that exist in Pasadena and 

Arcadia, which lead to the Metro. 

 

Discussion occurred and there was consensus that the bike lanes will make it more user friendly for 

the bicyclists, reduce the “free for all” that seems to occur with the bicyclists on the weekends, this 

is a worthwhile project, Sierra Madre should honor its previous commitment to Arcadia, and the 

impact will not be that significant. 

 

Council Member Capocciai made a motion to approve Consent Items 1b as presented. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian seconded the motion for approval. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to approve Consent Calendar Items 1b as presented was passed unanimously. 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARING - CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE 1408 AMENDING TITLE 10 

(“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”) CHAPTER 10.12 (“ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT”), 

SECTION 10.12.030 (“RESERVED”), TO READ “SHARED MOBILITY DEVICES,” PROHIBITING 

SHARED MOBILITY DEVICES AND BUSINESSES - Recommendation that the City Council 

conduct a Public Hearing and direct the City Attorney to introduce and read, by title only, 

and waive further reading, Ordinance 1408: an Ordinance of the City Council amending Title 

10, Chapter 10.12, Section 10.12.030 prohibiting shared mobility devices and businesses. 

 

PUBLIC HERING - CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-02 ESTABLISHING IMPOUND FEES 

PURSUANT TO ORDINANCE 1408 – Recommendation that the City Council conduct a Public 

Hearing and  direct the City Attorney to introduce and give first reading by title only, waving 

further reading in full, to the following resolution entitled: Resolution 19-02: A Resolution of 

the City Council establishing an impound fee as contemplated by Ordinance 1408. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the issues for Public Hearing and City Clerk Spears read the Public Hearing 

items. 

 

Planning & Community Preservation Director Gonzalez gave a report on these items, that included 

a PowerPoint presentation, “Shared Mobility Device – First Reading of Ordinance 1408,” that 

included the  definition of a “shared mobility device” as consisting of electric scooters and motorized 

or non-motorized bicycles, offered for use by a private entity to members of the public and 

accessed via on-demand portal, whether smartphone application, membership card, or similar 

method.  He that that Staff is recommending that the City Council take the following actions: 

   

a. Direct the City Attorney to introduce and give first reading by title only, waving further 

reading in full, to the following ordinance entitled: 

 



Page 6 of 14 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 1-8-2019 

 

Ordinance 1408:  An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Sierra Madre, California, 

amending Title 10 Chapter 10.12, Section 10.12.030 prohibiting shared mobility devices 

and businesses. 

 

b. Direct the City Attorney to introduce and give first reading by title only, waving further 

reading in full, to the following resolution entitled. 

 

Resolution 19-02:  A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Sierra Madre, California, 

establishing an impound fee as contemplated by Ordinance 1408. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on these items. 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Capoccia, Director Gonzalez said that only Alhambra, 

Pasadena, Manhattan Beach, and West Hollywood have enacted specific ordinances regarding 

“shared mobility devices”, but that other cities are considering taking similar actions. 

 

In response to a question by Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian, Director Gonzalez said that (1) a 

resident’s use of a “shared mobility device” would not be a violation under the proposed ordinance, 

as it is a private vehicle and not offered as part of a business, (2) using a “Bird” or “Lime” company 

scooter would be a violation, and (3) the intent of the ordinance is not to focus on the user, but to 

cite (impound the abandoned vehicles).   

 

City Attorney Highsmith clarified that the ordinance does not criminalize the use of the device, but to 

abandon the device is a violation of the ordinance.  Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian asked what the City 

expects companies to do if patrons abandon their devices in Sierra Madre.  City Manager Engeland 

reported that the affected companies have been contacted and they have encouraged the City to 

impound any abandoned devices and said that they will respond to pick them up only after the City 

has impounded 100 of the devices. 

 

Mayor Delmar said that this is a Public Hearing and asked if anyone would like to come forward to 

comment on these items.  Seeing no one, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the 

matter back to the Council for discussion. 

 

Discussion occurred and there was consensus that what is being proposed (1) serves a purpose, 

(2) is a reasonable approach to the problem of the “shared mobility devices” being abandoned 

around town, (3) it does not penalize people, and (4) it penalizes the affected companies. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian made a motion to approve Ordinance 1408 as written.  

 

Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion for approval. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to approve Ordinance 1408 was passed unanimously. 

 

Council Member Capoccia made a motion to approve Resolution 19-02 as written.  

 



Page 7 of 14 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 1-8-2019 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian seconded the motion for approval. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to approve Resolution 19-02  was passed unanimously. 

 

City Attorney Highsmith read Resolution 19-02 and Ordinance 1408. 

 

3. DISCUSSION - CONSIDERATION OF LETTER TO CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES 

COMMISSION REGARDING SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON FEES – Recommendation that 

the City Council approve a letter to the CPUC regarding payments to SCE for the recovery of 

costs related to purchases of energy during the 2018 summer heatwave.  

 

Management Analyst Carlson reported on this item, with the recommendation that the City Council 

approve the draft letter to the Public Utilities Commission opposing the request by Southern 

California Edison (Edison) that Clean Power Alliance customers collectively pay nearly $1 billion 

dollars to cover costs of electricity purchased during the 2018 summer heat wave.  He introduced 

Matthew Langer, Chief Operating Officer, Clean Power Alliance, as a resource to answer any 

Council Member questions regarding this item. 

 

As was noted in Management Analyst Carlson’s report, in October 2017, the Sierra Madre City 

Council adopted Ordinance No., 1393, formally joining the Joint Powers Authority, which is now 

named the Clean Power Alliance.  Sierra Madre is now aligned with 31 other cities and the Counties 

of Los Angeles and Ventura to purchase wholesale renewal energy on the current competitive open 

marked.  The energy will continue to be distributed by Edison and billing and customer service will 

also remain with Edison.  Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian serves on the Board of Directors for the 

Clean Power Alliance, as well as an Energy Subcommittee.    

  

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item. 

 

In response to council member questions, Mr. Langer said the following:  (1) the Brown Power 

Overcollection is estimated to be $80M going in the other direction, but it would affect different 

customers differently, (2) it would be fair if money is collected from customers who underpaid, then 

money should be refunded to customers who overpaid, (3) the PUC, in 2017 and throughout 2018, 

conducted proceedings to evaluate exit fees across the state for all CCAs and all direct access 

customers, (4) that culminated in a decision in October 2018 that the fees were calculated to make 

them more market based, although some changes are to occur in 2019, (5) what Edison is 

proposing in this $1 billion under collection was never addressed anywhere in those proceedings, 

(6)  Edison filed to collect these monies in September 2018, after the PUC decision had already 

been made, (7)  there were price fights in the power market this summer (2018) and Edison had not 

planned for that properly, (8) Edison is asserting that they have a right to collect from 2018 

customers after they leave to the Clean Power Alliance in 2019, (9) the issue is really a procedural 

one, as this was not set up upfront and came up from left field, (10) the financial impact to the Clean 

Power Alliance is that the CPA will be okay, in that it will launch to 900,000 customers beginning in 

February 2019 and the last nonresidential customers in May 2019, (11) it would be helpful if those 

exit fees were not being charged to its customers, (12) CPA will still be able to offer the discounts it 

promised, slowly building reserves, and growing financially, (13) Edison is recovering the costs from 



Page 8 of 14 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 1-8-2019 

 

those customers who remain with Edison via a rate increase, (14) for customers who exit Edison, 

the exit fee would show as a line item on the Edison bill. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on this item. 

 

 Robert Parkhurst, Sierra Madre, Clean Power Alliance Community Advisory Committee 

member, said that he (1) worked with Management Analyst Carlson in drafting the letter 

and (2) supports approval of the letter to the California PUC. 

 

 Dee Alcorn, Sierra Madre, said that (1) there is a gross lack of communication to the 

community regarding the rates, (2) residents do not know what this is all about, and (3) it 

needs to be made clear regarding what people are paying for electricity. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to come forward to speak on this item.  Seeing no 

one, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for 

discussion.  

 

Council Members concurred with supporting the letter to the California PUC. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian made a motion to approve the letter to the California PUC as amended 

today.  

 

Council Member Capoccia seconded the motion for approval. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to approve the letter to the California PUC as amended today was passed unanimously. 

 

Mayor Delmar made a request to City Manager Engeland to have a future agenda item to  review 

these issues to the Sierra Madre community and answer any questions that residents may have. 

  

4. DISCUSSION – CONSIDERATION OF FIRE DEPARTMENT REORGANIZATION AND NON-

BONDING TERM SHEET FOR PROVISION OF FIRE RESPONSE SERVICES FROM THE CITY 

OF ARCADIA -  Recommendation that the City Council approve the Term Sheet with the City 

of Arcadia; approve the reorganization of the Sierra Madre Fire Department; Direct City staff 

to work with the City of Arcadia to finalize an agreement; and implement the reorganization 

upon final approval of the Agreement with the City of Arcadia. 

 

City Manager Engeland reported on this item, with the recommendation that the City Council act as 

follows below.  The related Staff Report to the City Council (dated 1-8-2019) - “Fire Department 

Reorganization and Non-Binding Term Sheet for Provision of Fire Response Services from the City 

of Arcadia” states, in part, “If the Fire Suppression Services Agreement is approved, Sierra Madre 

residents will receive an improved public safety response for Fire, at a lower annual cost, with 

additional reduction in long-term obligations, such as PERS retirement costs and workers 

compensation insurance premiums”. 

  

a. Approve the Term Sheet with the City of Arcadia, a summary of which follows: 



Page 9 of 14 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 1-8-2019 

 

 

 Fire Response - The City of Arcadia Fire Department would provide fire 

suppression and related response to all areas within the municipal boundaries of 

the City of Sierra Madre.  The municipal boundaries of the City of Sierra Madre 

would be included in unified response for all members of the Verdugo System and 

Fire response times to service calls in the City of Sierra Madre would be within 

accepted response times in the Verdugo System.  In addition to fire suppression 

services, an Engine from the Arcadia Fire Department would be dispatched as an 

additional resource on all emergency medical service (EMS) call in the City of  

Sierra Madre. 

 

 Emergency Medical and Ambulance Transport Services - The City of Sierra Madre 

would maintain and continue to provide all emergency medical and ambulance 

transport services within the municipal boundaries of the City of Sierra Madre.  

Ambulance response would continue to be provided by the City of Sierra Madre out 

of the Sierra Madre Fire and Ambulance Headquarters.  Ambulance response 

times would not be impacted by any proposed agreement.   

 

 Fire Prevention Services - The City of Sierra Madre would continue to provide all 

Fire prevention services to the residents of Sierra Madre.  These services include, 

but are not limited to:  fire inspections, business inspections, brush inspections and 

clearance, Fire Marshall duties, and plan checks. 

 

 Emergency Management - Administrative and financial oversight of all emergency 

situations within Sierra Madre’s municipal boundaries, including the emergency 

operations center (EOC), would remain the sole responsibility of the City of Sierra 

Madre. 

 

 Cost - The cost anticipated for Fire response services in Year 1 payable by the City 

of Sierra Madre to the City of Arcadia is not-to-exceed $800,000. 

 

 Maintenance of Quality - Fire suppression, fire prevention, emergency medical and 

ambulance transport services, emergency response times, and emergency 

management services within the City of Arcadia’s municipal boundaries would 

either be maintained at their current levels or enhanced by this arrangement.  This 

would include the assurance that the City of Arcadia’s “Class One” Fire 

Department status would be maintained. 

 

b. Approve the reorganization of the Sierra Madre Fire Department as follows: 

 

 Create - One (1) new position - “Fire and EMS Department Head”. 

 Create - One (1) new position and fill if needed - “Full-Time Medic”. 

 Retain - Six (6) “Fire-Medic” positions. 

 Retain - Existing “Part-Time Medic” positions. 

 Eliminate - One (1) “Fire Chief” position (current position is vacant). 

 Eliminate - Three (3) “Fire Captain” positions (current positions – none vacant). 

 Eliminate - Three (3) “Fire Engineer” positions (current positions – one filled & two 
vacant). 

 Eliminate - all “Fire Engineer (part-time positions)” positions. 

 Eliminate - all “Firefighter (part-time positions)” positions. 
 



Page 10 of 14 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 1-8-2019 

 

c. Direct City staff to work with the City of Arcadia to finalize an agreement. 

 

d. Implement the reorganization upon final approval of the Agreement with the City of 

Arcadia. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item. 

 

In response to a question from Council Member Goss regarding the impact to Sierra Madre should 

there be a major emergency affecting Sierra Madre, Arcadia, and Pasadena, City Manager 

Engeland responded that this plan entitles Sierra Madre to automatic aid provided through the 

Verdugo System, making Sierra Madre safer, not less safe.  He said that, currently, (1) Sierra 

Madre not entitled to automatic aid, (2) mutual aid must be requested after the SMFD responds to 

the fire scene and makes the determination that the fire is beyond its capacity to respond, (3) those 

agencies can either provide or deny the requested aid, and (4) the current system of mutual aid is 

not sufficient to enable Sierra Madre to respond to a major catastrophe. 

 

In response to a question by Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian regarding Sierra Madre’s responsibility in 

managing emergencies through its EOC, City Manager Engeland stated that the Term Sheet refers 

to Sierra Madre assuming the liability and the cost.  In addition, he said that (1) the Verdugo System 

has upwards of 45 engines and 13 trucks that it can dispatch, (2) as part of automatic aid unified 

response, Sierra Madre would have access to that equipment as necessary, and (3) currently, as 

Sierra Madre has only mutual aid, there is no guarantee that assistance will come, particularly at a 

time when there is a major emergency. 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Capoccia regarding how fire dispatch works in a 

major emergency situation, Fire Chief Norwood described the situation that occurred during the 

2011 Wind Storms in which each agency was responsible for its own jurisdiction as follows: 

Verdugo (Area C) reached out to the County of Los Angeles (Region 1) who reached out to 

agencies that were not impacted by the emergency to respond (such as Torrance, Long Beach, 

South Bay, etc., including bringing in engines from outside Los Angeles County).  Furthermore, he 

said that the response could come from agencies in Southern California and, if necessary, agencies 

throughout California. City Manager Engeland added that such a situation would be mass mutual 

aid, not automatic aid. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for assurance that Sierra Madre would be treated fairly and the same as 

Arcadia or Pasadena (fires break out simultaneously on the border of Sierra Madre and Pasadena 

and another one on the border of Sierra Madre and Arcadia), City Manager Engeland said that, 

under the Verdugo System (with automatic aid), the first fire that is called in will have response from 

the agency with the closest available engine and the second fire called in will have response from 

the agency with the closest available engine (dispatch is done in the order that the calls are 

received).  He added that, currently with mutual aid and simultaneous fire in Sierra Madre, there is 

no guarantee that assistance will be provided from another agency.   

 

In response to a question from Council Member Arizmendi regarding the coordination of the 

Emergency Operations Center (EOC), Chief Norwood explained that (1) the EOC is unique to each 

agency and it is activated based on the type of emergency, which includes situations other than 

fires and (2) Sierra Madre would be responsible for its own EOC, whether it has its own fire 

suppression capabilities, or it is contracted out. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on this item.   

 



Page 11 of 14 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 1-8-2019 

 

 Mark Duson, Sierra Madre Fire Department member, said that (1) this proposal will 

eliminate support for medical calls, (2) Council needs to consider the loss of a fire engine, 

(3) the plan needs to be thought through, and (4) he asked if there is a cost benefit to the 

City. 

 

 Kristine Lowe, Sierra Madre, said that (1) she supports this proposal, (2) there will be a 

quicker response time, as there is automatic dispatch from the closest available unit, as 

currently the City has to wait for approval, (3) this increases the number of trained 

personnel responding, and (4) the cost efficiency is a benefit to residents. 

 

 Carol Canterbury, Sierra Madre, said that (1) she questioned why this is happening so fast 

and (2) this plan needs more community input. 

 

 Gene Torncello, Sierra Madre, said that (1) this is happening too fast and not with a lot of 

community discussion and (2) this is being done in a vacuum. 

 

 Alan Hodge, Sierra Madre Paramedic, said that (1) Council needs to consider that City of 

Arcadia is suffering from a deficit and is looking at ways to cut the budget, (2) auto-aide 

benefits some cities more than others, (3) Sierra Madre is not centrally located, (4) he 

never heard of a fire department that does not have a fire engine.  

 

 Laura Leduc, Sierra Madre Police Department, said that (1) the Sierra Madre Police 

Department responds on a lot of medical calls and (2) if SMPD is on a medical call and a 

hot call requiring the SMPD comes through, there may be a delay. 

 

 Charlie Guillen, Sierra Madre, said that (1) he had a kitchen fire and thanked the SMFD 

and SMPD for their response and (2) the SMFD is a big part of this community. 

 

 Tom Denison, Sierra Madre, said that (1) he is glad that Council is taking steps to address 

the solvency of the city, (2) asked whether there were other options considered, (3) asked 

about the financial impact and savings in Years 2, 3, 4, & 5, (4) asked about the 

guarantees being made as part of this agreement, and (5) questioned why this decision is 

made.  

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to come forward to speak on this item.  Seeing no 

one come forward, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment. 

 

Seeing no one, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council 

for discussion.  

 

Mayor Delmar asked City Manager Engeland to respond to some of the issues raised during Public 

Comment as follows: 

 

 This is not a new conversation, as public discussions on this issue began about 1 ½ years 

ago, including several styles and types of  fire response.  

 

 Why this is moving so fast? - Today is for Council to approve a non-binding term sheet for 

fire response services from Arcadia so this is not approving a contract that is set in stone.  A 

MOU will come back to Council for review and discussion, with a lot of notice and public 

discussion, and will include more detailed answers to some of the questions being asked. 

 



Page 12 of 14 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 1-8-2019 

 

 Do we understand all the options and why is this the decision? – Sierra Madre has 

essentially two options:  (1)  keep our own in-house fire service or (2) contract with Arcadia 

for fire response service, keeping all other components in-house.  The goal is to end the 

city’s mutual aid agreements and move toward with an automatic aid agreement.  We have 

heard very clearly from the cities that we have mutual aid with is that their residents and 

taxpayers are not interested in subsidizing Sierra Madre’s fire response services any longer.  

Even when Sierra Madre moved to have all of their SMFD paid, Sierra Madre was not 

approved to get automatic aid by the Verdugo system, as the other cities do not have to 

agree to it.  Only by being serviced by Arcadia for fire suppression services, can Sierra 

Madre be guaranteed automatic aid.       

 

 What happens if Arcadia has a budget crisis? – The contingency on that is to leave a long 

exit ramp (a situation cannot occur such that response is provided by Arcadia one day and 

not the next), with multiple years for Arcadia to wind down their response services and 

Sierra Madre to bring its response services back up. 

 

 Difference between mutual aid and auto aid – Mutual aid (which Sierra Madre currently has) 

(1) a fire call comes in, (2) SMFD responds, (3) SMFD assesses the situation and 

determines that additional fire resources are necessary, (4) SMFD calls one of the cities with 

which we have mutual aid and requests their assistance, (5) historically they have been 

good about providing that assistance, but they are not obligated to provide any assistance, 

and (6) while Sierra Madre has not been charged for mutual aid in the past, the practice of 

not charging for mutual aid may be ending.  Under automatic aid (1)  when a call comes in 

for fire response, Sierra Madre gets the full response dispatched automatically and 

immediately, starting with the closest available station and then bringing in other additional 

resources as needed.  In talking about response time, the most important response time 

metric is the secondary response, i.e. how quickly do we get our second unit on scene, what 

type of apparatus is coming with that secondary response, and how long does it take to 

dispatch it.  With automatic aid, all of those things improve dramatically. 

 

 Medial Aid Response Time – Half of Sierra Madre is closer to Arcadia’s Station 107 then to 

the Sierra Madre Fire Station, so there are many areas in Sierra Madre where the response 

from Station 107 that will exceed the current Sierra Madre engine response. 

 

Chief Norwood clarified that (1) Sierra Madre does not currently have any signed mutual aid 

agreements with any of the Area C cities, (2) until the Area C cities (Verdugo, Glendale, and 

Pasadena) approve it, Sierra Madre does not have automatic aid, (3) the major benefit of 

contracting with Arcadia is, by virtue of them expanding their jurisdiction, Arcadia has automatic aid   

He recommended that the Council explore contracting fire services with Arcadia, while continuing to 

move forward with staffing a full time fire department.  Chief Norwood also expressed that Sierra 

Madre needs to have automatic aid for fire response services and Sierra Madre is more likely to get 

it by contracting with Arcadia.  He said that the response time on the second engine will improve 

solely based on automatic aid, in that second unit is dispatched at the same time as the first unit so 

they are leaving the station at the same time and are in route.  Chief Norwood asserted that the 

quicker response time for the second/third unit positively impacts public safety.  Response times for 

Rescue Ambulance (RA) calls will improve for at least half of Sierra Madre.     

 

City Manager Engeland said that this not about the personnel that we have or the job that they do.  

It is about the Verdugo System saying that Sierra Madre is not going to be a part of mutual 

response and automatic aid, which has been a goal from the Council for over 10 years.  It has been 



Page 13 of 14 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 1-8-2019 

 

a decade that Sierra Madre has been trying to get automatic aid and this agreement is a path-line to 

surviving in a connected system with 13 other cities that Sierra Madre is currently not a part of.    

 

Mayor Delmar stated that (1) the Council has shown a dedication to the SMFD in getting it staffed to 

a level in which Sierra Madre could possibly get automatic aid, (2) automatic aid is not going to be 

possible from what she is hearing, and (3) she still wants to move in that direction until the City 

does something else. 

 

City Attorney Highsmith explained that a decision made tonight to reorganize the Sierra Madre Fire 

Department would not be implemented until the Council approves the MOU.  City Manager 

Engeland added that this issue has not been brought to the City Council of Arcadia. 

 

Discussion occurred and there was consensus among the Council to support the move to continue 

to explore this and  move forward to approve the Term Sheet, approve the reorganization of the 

SMFD pursuant to the Term Sheet, etc.  Council member comments included the following:  (1) the 

only prudent decision is to continue to explore this possibility with Arcadia to ensure that Sierra 

Madre gets automatic aid, which is important, (2) the Council is looking out for the safety of the 

community and this makes us safer, for both fire and medical call response, (3) other cities have 

been assisting Sierra Madre basically for free and there may be a time when that does not happen 

anymore, (4) the SMFD is a historical institution in this town that is well respected, but times have 

changed, (5) public safety and the provision of services is vital, (6) the financial impact is not the 

most important factor in making this decision, it is to make our community safer, (7) wildfires are the 

new normal in California and we have to take steps to put public safety first, (8) we cannot just live 

in a little bubble by ourselves, we need others to assist us, and (7) this is a mutual benefit to Sierra 

Madre and Arcadia that will make both cities safer. 

 

Council Member Arizmendi made a motion to (1) approve the Term Sheet with the City of Arcadia, 

(2) approve the reorganization of the Sierra Madre Fire Department, (3)  direct City staff to work 

with the City of Arcadia to finalize an agreement, and (4) implement the reorganization upon final 

approval of the Agreement with the City of Arcadia. 

 

Council Member Capoccia seconded Council Member Arizmendi’s motion.  

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to (1) approve the Term Sheet with the City of Arcadia, (2) approve the reorganization 

of the Sierra Madre Fire Department, (3)  direct City staff to work with the City of Arcadia to finalize 

an agreement, and (4) implement the reorganization upon final approval of the Agreement with the 

City of Arcadia was passed unanimously. 

 
NEW ITEMS PLACED FOR FUTURE AGENDA: 

 

Mayor Delmar asked the members of the City Council if there are any new items for future meeting 

agendas. 

 



Page 14 of 14 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 1-8-2019 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian requested that a discussion at a future meeting take place regarding 

methods to connect people with the Gold Line.  City Manager Engeland commented that Staff is 

currently working on that and will bring it forward at an upcoming meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Council Member Capoccia made a motion to adjourn the meeting in memory of Tim Osti. 

 

The motion to adjourn was seconded by Council Member Goss. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss. 

 Noes:      None 

 Absent:   None 

 Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to adjourn was passed unanimously. 

 

THIS SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING WAS ADJOURNED IN MEMORY OF 

TIM OSTI at 8:46 p.m. to a Regular Meeting to be held on Tuesday, January 22, 2019, in the Sierra 

Madre City Hall Council Chambers. 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

   Denise Delmar, Mayor 

Minutes taken and prepared by: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Sue Spears, City Clerk   

  





































































































 

 

 

 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

City of Sierra Madre, California 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2018 

 

 



 

 

 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

City of Sierra Madre, California 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

Prepared by the Finance Department Staff 

City of Sierra Madre 
232 West Sierra Madre Boulevard 

Sierra Madre, CA 91024 
   



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 

 

 



 

 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION   

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL  i 
GFOA CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT  V 
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART  vi 
ELECTED OFFICIALS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT  vii 

FINANCIAL SECTION    

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  1 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
(REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION) (UNAUDITED)  4 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:    

GOVERNMENT‐WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:   
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  15 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES  16 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:   

BALANCE SHEET  18 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET FUND BALANCES 

IN FUND BALANCES TO THE GOVERNMENT‐WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  19 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES  20 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,  

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE GOVERNMENT‐WIDE 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES  21 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS: 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  22 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION  23 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  24 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS: 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION  26 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION  27 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  28 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED):   

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING  68 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE – GENERAL FUND  69 
DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN  70 
OTHER POST‐EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS  72 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:   

NON‐MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:   
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET  74 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES  75 
   



 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION (CONTINUED)   
 

NON‐MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS: 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET  76 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES  77 
NON‐MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS ‐GRANTS:   

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET  78 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES  79 
NON‐MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS ‐ASSESSMENTS:   

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET  80 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES  82 
NON‐MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS ‐OTHER:   

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET  84 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES  89 
NON‐MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS:   

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET  94 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES  95 
 

NON‐MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS: 
    SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – BUDGET AND ACTUAL:   

LOCAL HISTORY STATE GRANT  96 
BONITA SEWER ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  97 
CENTRAL BUSINESS ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  98 
FANE/WINWOOD LAND ASSESSMENT  99 
LIGHTING DISTRICT #1 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  100 
LIGHTING DISTRICT ZONE A SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  101 
LIGHTING DISTRICT ZONE B SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  102 
PARKING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  103 
SEWER ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  104 
SIERRA MADRE CFD SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  105 
PUBLIC SAFETY AUGMENTATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  106 
STATE COPS GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  107 
LOCAL TRANSPORTATION PROP A SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  108 
OPEN SPACE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  109 
SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  110 
LOCAL TRANSIT PROP C SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  111 
CA BEVERAGE CONTAINER GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  112 
CLEAR AIR (AQMD) SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  113 
ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  114 
GAS TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  115 
BIKEWAY/SIDEWALK SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  116 
MEASURE R SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  117 
LIBRARY GIFT AND MEMORIAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  118 
FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  119 
   



 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION (CONTINUED)   
 

OTHER NON‐MAJOR FUNDS: 
    SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – BUDGET AND ACTUAL:   

DEBT SERVICE FUND  120 
 
NON‐MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS:   

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  121 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES  

IN NET POSITION  122 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  123 

 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS:   
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  124 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES  

IN NET POSITION  126 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  128 
 

STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)   
 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT  130 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION  132 
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  136 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  138 
ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY  140 
PROPERTY TAX RATES ‐ DIRECT & OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES  142 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS  144 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS  145 
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT  146 
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE  147 
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE  149 
DEMOGRAPHIC & ECONOMIC STATISTICS  151 
TOP 25 SALES TAX PRODUCERS FISCAL YEAR 2016/17  152 
FULL‐TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION  153 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION  154 
CAPITAL ASSETS – BOOK VALUE  156 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 



 

‐i‐ 

 
 
January 7, 2019 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Sierra Madre 
Sierra Madre, California 
 
To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council and Citizens of the City of Sierra Madre: 
 
It is our pleasure to present the City of Sierra Madre’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal 
year  ending  June  30,  2018.  This  report  has  been  prepared  in  accordance  with  Generally  Accepted  Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) as set forth in the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). GASB 
has  the  primary  responsibility  for  determining  accounting  and  financial  reporting  standards  for  state  and  local 
government entities. 
 
This Financial Report is organized into three sections: 

1. Introductory Section – The introductory section, includes the table of contents, letter of transmittal, a list of 
the City’s elected officials and City administrative personnel and an organization chart. 

2. Financial  Section  –  The  financial  section  includes  the  independent  auditor’s  opinion,  management’s 
discussion and analysis (MD&A), the basic financial statements, notes to the basic financial statements, and 
required supplemental information.  

3. Statistical Section – The statistical section provides schedules designed to reflect financial trends, revenue 
capacity, debt capacity, demographic and economic information.  

 
This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City. Consequently, management 
assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To 
provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management has established a comprehensive internal 
control  framework  that  is  designed  both  to  protect  the  City's  assets  from  loss,  theft,  or misuse  and  to  compile 
sufficient  reliable  information  for  the  preparation  of  the  City's  financial  statements  in  conformity with  generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  As the cost of internal controls should not exceed anticipated benefits, the 
City’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, 
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  As management, we assert that, to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 
 
The City of Sierra Madre's financial statements have been audited by Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP, Certified 
Public  Accountants.  The  goal  of  the  independent  audit  was  to  provide  reasonable  assurance  that  the  financial 
statements of the City of Sierra Madre for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, are free of material misstatement. The 
independent  audit  involved  examining,  on  a  test  basis,  evidence  supporting  the  amounts  and  disclosures  in  the 
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, 
that  there  was  a  reasonable  basis  for  rendering  an  unmodified  opinion  that  the  City  of  Sierra Madre’s  financial 
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent 
auditor's report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.   



 

‐ii‐ 

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative  introduction, overview, and analysis  to accompany the basic 
financial  statements  in  the  form  of Management’s  Discussion  and  Analysis  (MD&A).  This  letter  of  transmittal  is 
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Sierra Madre’s MD&A can 
be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 
 
While  traditionally  addressed  to  the  governing  body  of  the  City,  this  report  is  also  intended  to  provide  relevant 
financial information to the citizens of the City of Sierra Madre, City staff, creditors, investors and other concerned 
readers. We encourage all readers to contact the Finance Department with any questions or comments concerning 
this report. 
 
City Profile 
The City of Sierra Madre  is  located  in Southern California and  is part of  the San Gabriel Valley within Los Angeles 
County. More specifically, Sierra Madre is located 12 miles northeast of the City of Los Angeles nestled against the 
foothills with Pasadena to the West and Arcadia to the South and East. The City was incorporated in 1907, under the 
laws of the State of California. Sierra Madre operates under all the rights and privileges applicable to a general law 
city under a Council‐Manager form of Government.  
 
Under the council‐manager form of government, the five‐member elected at‐large governing body, the City Council, 
is responsible for establishing policy, passing local ordinances, voting appropriations, and developing an overall vision 
for the City of Sierra Madre. Under such a government, the Mayor performs primarily ceremonial duties and is the 
presiding officer of the City Council.  Selection of the Mayor and Mayor Pro‐Tem is done annually in April through a 
Council nomination and vote. 
 
The City Council then appoints a City Manager to oversee the daily operations of the government and implement the 
policies established by the governing body. The City Manager serves the governing body, often with an employment 
agreement or contract that specifies his or her duties and responsibilities.  
 
The City of Sierra Madre is a full‐service city with approximately 93 full time equivalent employees consisting of nine 
departments, including full‐service Police and Fire Departments. Part‐Time employees and volunteers add service and 
value as integral parts the City organization and community service clubs.   
 
The City has a population of approximately 11,000 residents.  The City has approximately 4,400 parcels and provides 
water and/or sewer utility services to about 3,800 customers. 
    
The Sierra Madre Financing Authority was established in 1972. The purpose of the Authority is to act as a vehicle for 
various financing activities of the City and the Successor Agency. The bylaws of the Authority establish the City Council 
as the governing body. This entity is blended into the City’s combined financial statements. 
 
Economic Condition and Outlook 
The City is a full service municipality operating with a $24 million budget that fund general government activity, public 
safety, and water and sewer utilities.  The City’s primary goal is to provide services to its residents and businesses.  As 
in all service industries, personnel expense is the primary business cost.  For more than a decade the City of Sierra 
Madre  had  maintained  expenditures  under  the  available  resources,  but  this  has  had  its  challenges.    Like  most 
governments  since  the  recent  recession,  Sierra  Madre  revenues  received  have  remained  relatively  flat  despite 
increases in insurance, pension, and other cost drivers.  In order to provide a balanced budget, the City expenditures 
have had to be re‐benchmarked lower each budget year to remain aligned with incoming revenues.  In addition to the 
impacts of the five‐year recession, in FY 2011‐2012 the State dissolved the Community Redevelopment Plan and the 
General Fund was faced with absorbing most of these costs.   
   



 

‐iii‐ 

Major Accomplishments for the Year: 

 Refinanced Long‐Term Water Debt, saving more than $1M. 

 Implemented the Water Master Plan and replaced nearly 2.5 miles (12,000 ft.) of failed water mains. 

  Purchased and began installation of advanced metering infrastructure (smart meters) for all water customers, 
which will allow residents to monitor and control water use in real time. 

 Reduced system‐wide water loss by 34%. 

 Approved new five year MOUs with both City unions, previous agreements had been two years. 

 Transitioned from a volunteer Fire Department to a full Career Fire Department. 

 Created the City’s first “Transparency Portal” online to provide information to residents. 

 Implemented a “zero‐based” budget that reduced expenditures and scaled down services appropriately. 

 Approve the pension rate stabilization plan, which will be implemented in the FY 18‐19 and 19‐20 budgets. 
 
 
Long‐Term Financial Planning  
The  FY  17‐18  Adopted  Budget  was  developed  based  on  the  policies  and  vision  of  the  City  Council.  In  order  to 
implement the vision of the City Council staff completed a zero‐based budget for the 2017‐18 Fiscal Year.  This style 
of budgeting requires every expenditure, in all funds, to be reviewed line‐by‐line and justified.  This process reduced 
expenditures and allowed the General Fund Budget to be adopted without the use of reserve funding, which was 
required in previous years.   
 
In addition, this budget took steps to eliminate or mitigate structural deficits which had not been addressed in prior 
years.  Previous budgets often used one‐time spending and other practices that are not able to be replicated, while 
allowing long‐term structural deficits to remain unaddressed. The FY 17‐18 budget invested in infrastructure needs at 
three times the rate of the previous budget, transitioned fire suppression from volunteer‐based to a career‐oriented, 
fully‐paid  fire  department,  and  absorbed  significant  increases  to  pension  plans  and  associated unfunded  accrued 
pension liability, without asking residents for a tax increase. 
 
The FY 17‐18 Adopted Revenue budget is $24,169 Million in total, and includes $10.936 Million in the General Fund, 
$4.963 Million for the Water Fund, and $875 Thousand for the Sewer Fund which are the City’s three primary Funds.  
The overall  surplus  for  the audited budget  is  $3,159 Million, with $1.324 Million of  this  surplus attributed  to  the 
General Fund. 
 
 
Relevant Financial Policies 
On June 13, 2017, the City Council adopted the Budget, which includes a comprehensive set of financial policies and 
procedures.    It  is established that the budget should be adopted on an annual basis prior  to the beginning of  the 
budget cycle.  The budgets are adopted on a basis that does not materially differ from Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP). 
 
In addition, the financial policies set the General Fund operating reserve at 50% of operating revenues. 
 
 
Independent Audit 
The  City  requires  an  annual  audit  by  independent  certified  public  accountants.  The  accounting  firm  of  Rogers, 
Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, conducted this year’s audit. The auditor’s report on the 
basic  financial  statements,  which  include  the  government‐wide  and  fund  financial  statements,  is  located  in  the 
financial section of this report. 
 
 
   



 

‐iv‐ 

Awards and Acknowledgements 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting to the City of Sierra Madre for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2017.  
 
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized  comprehensive  annual  financial  report.  This  report  must  satisfy  both  generally  accepted  accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual 
financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it 
to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
 
The preparation and publication of this report is made possible through the dedication of the Finance Department 
staff and the many departments that assist in its preparation.   This report would also not have been possible without 
the City Council’s leadership in overseeing the financial operations and corresponding financial disclosures of the City 
in an open, public and transparent manner.   
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Colby Konisek            Hillary Guirola‐Leon 
Finance Director            Accounting Manager



 

‐v‐ 

Government Finance Officers Association 

Certificate of 
Achievement 
for Excellence 

in Financial 
Reporting 

Presented to 

City of Sierra Madre 

California 

For its Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report 

for the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2017 

Executive Director/CEO 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

 

‐vi‐ 

 

 

 

       

    Elected 
Elected 

 
 

 

Community 

Elected 
City Treasurer 

Elected 
City Council 

Elected 
City Clerk 

City Attorney 

City Manager 

Administrative 
Services 

Public              
Works 

Community & 
Library Services 

Police 

Human    
Resources 

Finance 

Planning & 
Community 
Preservation 

Fire 

Information 
Technology 

Utility  
Services 



 

‐vii‐ 

City of Sierra Madre, California 
 

Village of the Foothills 
 

Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report 

 
For the Year Ending June 30, 2018 

 

Sierra Madre, California 
 

City Council and Elected Officials 
Denise Delmar  Mayor
John Harabedian  Mayor Pro Tempore 
John Capoccia  Council Member 
Gene Goss  Council Member
Rachelle Arizmendi  Council Member
   

Sue Spears  City Clerk
Michael Amerio  City Treasurer

 

Executive Management 
Gabriel L. Engeland  City Manager
Teresa Highsmith  City Attorney
Colby Konisek  Finance Director
Vincent Gonzalez  Director of Planning and Community Preservation
Kurt Norwood  Acting Fire Chief
Rebecca Silva‐Barron  Community Services Manager
Christine Smart  Library Services Manager
Joe Ortiz  Police Chief
Jose Reynoso  Utility Services Director
Chris Cimino  Director of Public Works



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 



735 E. C arnegie Dr. Sui t e I 00 

San Bern ardino, CA 92408 

909 889 087 1 T 

909 889 536 1 F 

ramscpa. net 

PARTNERS 

Brenda L. O dle, CPA, MST 

Terry P. Shea, CPA 

Kirk A. Franks, CPA 

Scott W . Manno , CPA. CGMA 

Lee na Shanbhag, CPA. MST , CGMA 

Bradfe rd A. Welebi r, CPA, MBA, CG MA 

Jay H . Zercher, CPA (Partner Emeri tus) 

Phil li p H . Wa ller , CPA (Partner Emeri tus) 

MANAGERS I STAFF 

Jenny Liu , CPA. MST 

Seong-Hyea Lee, CPA. MBA 

Char les De Simoni. CPA 

Gardenya Duran, CPA 

Brianna Schultz, CPA 

Samuel Singery. CPA 

Jing W u, CPA 

Evelyn Morentin-Barcena, CPA 

Jin Gu, CPA. MT 

Veronica Hernandez. CPA 

MEMBERS 
American Institute of 
Cert ifi ed Public Accountants 

PCPS The A/CPA Alliance 
{or CPA Firms 

Gove rn mental Audit 
Quality Cen ter 

Em ployee Benefit Plan 
Audit Qualit y Center 

California Society of 
Certified Public Accountants 

RO GE RS , A NDERSON , MALODY & SCOTT , LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLI C ACCOUNTANTS, SINCE 1948 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Sierra Madre, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of City of Sierra Madre, California (the City), as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financiaLstatements based on our audit . 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements . The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion . An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements . 

-1-

ST ABILITY. ACCU RACY. T RUST. 



 

‐2‐ 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion,  the  financial  statements  referred  to above present  fairly,  in all material  respects,  the  respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business‐type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Sierra Madre, California, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes 
in  financial  position,  and,  where  applicable,  cash  flows  thereof  for  the  year  then  ended  in  accordance  with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of a Matter 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
 
As discussed  in Note 1 of  the  financial  statements,  the City  adopted  the provisions of GASB  Statement No.  75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB). Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 
 
The cumulative effects of applying the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75 have been reported as a restatement 
of beginning net position for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the Statement. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion 
and  analysis  and  other  required  supplementary  information  as  listed  in  the  table  of  contents  be  presented  to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods  of  preparing  the  information  and  comparing  the  information  for  consistency  with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City of Sierra Madre, California’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements, nonmajor fund budgetary comparison schedules, and statistical section, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
 
   



 

‐3‐ 

The  combining  and  individual  nonmajor  fund  financial  statements  and  nonmajor  fund  budgetary  comparison 
schedules  are  the  responsibility  of  management  and  were  derived  from  and  relate  directly  to  the  underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to  prepare  the  basic  financial  statements  or  to  the  basic  financial  statements  themselves,  and  other  additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the combining and  individual nonmajor  fund financial statements and the nonmajor  fund budgetary comparison 
schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 2, 2019, on our 
consideration of the City of Sierra Madre, California’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of  laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose  of  that  report  is  to  describe  the  scope  of  our  testing  of  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering City of Sierra Madre, California’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
San Bernardino, California 
January 2, 2019 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 
  



 

 

City of Sierra Madre, California 
Village of the Foothills 

 
 
 

 
    
 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ending 

June 30, 2018 

 
 
 

  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐4‐ 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
As management of the City of Sierra Madre (“City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  We encourage readers 
to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our 
letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i‐iv of this report. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 The City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 
at June 30, 2018 by $212,818,207 (net position).  Of this amount, $199,043,580 is net investment in capital 
assets, $4,926,003 is restricted for various programs, and $8,848,624 represents unrestricted net position. 
 

 From current operations, the City’s governmental activities net position increased $2,019,628 for fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2018 or 1.1 percent. Net position of the business‐type activities increased by $1,139,303 or 6.0 
percent from current operations. 

 

 During  the year,  the City’s General  Fund  fund balance  increased by $1,324,075, or 17.8 percent,  and  total 
governmental funds balance increased $611,611, or 11.9 percent. 

 

 In the City’s proprietary funds:  The Water Fund net position increased by $1,112,723 or 7.1 percent.  This is 
mainly the result of the City reducing expenses and decreasing allocation and charges from the General Fund 
to the Water Fund. The Sewer Fund decreased $105,319 or 3.0 percent.  The Sewer Fund has been using up 
available funds as it was planned at the time of the last sewer rate study, and previous operating deficits were 
significantly larger.  The City reduced expenses and completed an audit of sewer accounts.  The result of the 
audit was an additional 395 added as customers of the Sewer Fund.  Non‐Major Enterprise Funds increased by 
$131,899 or 36.8 percent mainly due to the build‐up of funds in the Aquatics Fund, and total Internal Service 
Funds increased by $1,189,743 or 23.4 percent which is due to the build‐up of proper reserves in the Personnel 
and Risk Management Fund. 

 
OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Sierra Madre’s basic 
financial statements.  The City’s basic financial statements consist of three components: (1) government‐wide financial 
statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) the notes to the basic financial statements.  This report also includes 
supplementary information intended to furnish additional detail to support the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government‐Wide Financial Statements 
The government‐wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Sierra 
Madre’s  finances,  in  a  manner  similar  to  the  private  sector  business.    These  statements  are  designed  to  provide 
information  about  the  activities  of  the  City  as  a whole  and  present  a  longer‐term  view  of  the  City’s  finances.  The 
statements  are  prepared  using  the  accrual  basis  of  accounting which  considers money  available when  earned  and 
considers money spent when a liability is  incurred. As such, this basis of accounting focuses on measuring economic 
resources that are available to the City regardless of the timing of the availability of those resources.  The accrual basis 
of accounting is similar to that used by most private sector companies.  
 
Accordingly, all of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received 
or paid. Additionally,  these statements reflect the capitalization and depreciation of  infrastructure and other capital 
assets (e.g., buildings, vehicles, and equipment, etc.) as well as the recognition of various long‐term liabilities (e.g., bonds 
payable, accrued employee benefits, claims and judgments payable, etc.).  



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐5‐ 

 
The statement of net position presents  information on all  the City of Sierra Madre’s assets,  liabilities, and deferred 
inflows/outflows of resources.  The difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources is reported as net position.  This statement includes changes in capitalized and depreciated 
capital assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the City is improving or deteriorating.  
 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City of Sierra Madre’s net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported for some items 
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 

The government‐wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental  revenues  (governmental  activities)  from  other  functions  that  are  intended  to  recover  all  or  a 
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business‐type activities). The governmental activities of 
the City include general government, public safety (police and fire protection), public works, development services, and 
culture and recreation (community and library services).  The City's business‐type activities include the Municipal Utility 
operations and other self‐supporting activities. 
 

The government‐wide financial statements include the City and its component units. As stated in Note 1A of the notes 
to the financial statements, the inclusion of an organization within the scope of the reporting entity of the City of Sierra 
Madre,  as  either  blended or  separately  shown,  is  based on  the provisions of GASB Statement No. 14  the  Financial 
Reporting Entity.   
 

The government‐wide financial statements can be found on pages 15 through 17 of this report. 
 

Fund Financial Statements 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for 

specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 

demonstrate  compliance  with  finance‐related  legal  requirements.  The  fund  financial  statements  provide  detailed 

information about the most significant funds and other funds – not the City as a whole. Some funds are required by 

state law and by bond covenants. In addition, in order to meet legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and 

other  resources, prudent  fiscal management  requires  the establishment of other  funds  to help control and manage 

money.  All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and 

fiduciary funds. 
 

By contrast to the government‐wide financial statements, the governmental fund financial statements, a part of the 
Fund Financial Statements, use the modified accrual basis of accounting which considers money available when it  is 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter (60 days after the end of the current fiscal period) to 
pay  liabilities  of  the  current  period.  Expenses  are  recorded  when  a  liability  is  incurred.  Debt  service,  claims  and 
judgments, and accrued employee leave benefits are not recorded as liabilities, they are expensed at the time a payment 
is due.  Note 1 of the notes to the Financial Statements more fully describes each basis of accounting. 
 
Governmental funds: Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money 
flows in and out of those funds and the balances left at year‐end that are available for spending. The governmental fund 
financial  statements  provide  a  detailed  short‐term view of  the City’s  general  government operations  and  the basic 
services  it  provides.    Governmental  fund  information  helps  determine  whether  there  are more  or  fewer  financial 
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. The differences between the results in the 
governmental  fund  financial  statements  and  those  in  the  government‐wide  financial  statements  are  explained  in  a 
reconciliation following each governmental fund financial statement. 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐6‐ 

The City maintains 43  individual governmental  funds.  Information  is presented separately  in  the governmental  fund 
balance sheet and in the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for 
the General Fund which is considered to be a major fund. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a 
single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these non‐major governmental funds are provided in 
the form of combining statements in the Supplementary Information. 
 
The City  adopts  an  annual  appropriated budget  for  its General  Fund. A budgetary  comparison  statement has been 
provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget. This comparison can be found on page 69 of this report. 
 
Although legally separate, component units function for all practical purposes as departments of the City and, therefore, 
have been blended as part of the primary government.   

 
Proprietary funds: When the City charges customers’ fees to cover the cost of the services it provides, these services 
are generally reported  in proprietary funds.   The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise 
funds and internal service funds. In the fund financial statements section, proprietary funds provide similar information 
to that contained in the business‐type activities in the government‐wide financial statements, only in more detail. The 
basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22 through 25 of this report. 
 
Enterprise  refers  to  the  fund  type while business‐type  refers  to  the  activity  type.  The City  uses  enterprise  funds  to 
account  for  its Water Utility  and  Sewer Utility,  both  of which  are major  funds;  and  various  smaller  self‐supporting 
community operations, which are shown in aggregate titled Non‐Major Enterprise Funds. Enterprise funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as Business‐Type activities in the government‐wide financial statements. 
 
Internal Service funds by contrast are an accounting mechanism used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among 
the City’s various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for Vehicle/Equipment Replacement and 
Maintenance,  Facilities  Maintenance,  City  Administration,  and  Information  Technology  (IT),  Personnel/Risk 
Management,  and General  Plan/Housing Update.  All  internal  service  funds  are  combined  into  a  single,  aggregated 
presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.  

 
Internal Service funds are presented as proprietary funds because both enterprise and internal service funds follow the 
accrual  basis  of  accounting.    However,  because  these  services  predominantly  involve  governmental  rather  than 
business‐type  activities,  this  fund  type  has  been  included  within  Governmental  Activities  in  the  government‐wide 
financial statements.  
 
Fiduciary funds: The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain funds held as a conduit or clearinghouse, established to 
account  for assets  (usually cash)  received  for and paid  to other  funds,  individuals, or organizations. The assets  thus 
received  are usually  held  very briefly.  The City  has Agency  Funds  to  account  for  the payment of  various  employee 
benefits  and  deductions  including,  but  not  limited  to,  health  and  dental  insurance  premiums,  federal  and  state 
withholding taxes and various other items that are withheld from regular compensation. The City has a Private Purpose 
Trust Fund for recording the financial activities of the Successor Agency as it relates to the dissolution of the Community 
Redevelopment Agency. 
 
The City’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net 
Position found on pages 26 through 27. These activities are excluded from the City’s other financial statements since 
the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported 
in these funds are used for their intended purposes. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
The notes provide additional  information that  is essential  to obtain a full understanding of the data provided  in the 
government‐wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin on page 28 of this report. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐7‐ 

 
Other Information  
In  addition  to  the  basic  financial  statements  and  accompanying  notes,  this  report  also  presents  certain  required 
supplementary  information  concerning  the  City’s  budgetary  information  and  compliance;  Schedule  of  the  City’s 
Proportionate Share of the Plan’s Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios; Schedule of Plan Contributions; and Schedule 
of  Changes  in  the  Net  OPEB  Liability  and  Related  Ratios,  and  the  Schedule  of  OPEB  Contributions.  Required 
supplementary information can be found on pages 68 through 73 of this report. 
 
The  combining  statements  referred  to  earlier  in  connection with  non‐major  governmental  funds,  enterprise  funds, 
internal service funds, and fiduciary funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information 
captioned supplementary schedules.  Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 
74 through 129 of this report. 
 
THE CITY AS A WHOLE 
 
Government‐Wide Financial Statements 
The government‐wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, 
in a manner similar to private‐sector business. 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
As noted earlier, the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a 
whole and about its activities. These statements include all assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
of  the  City  using  the  accrual  basis  of  accounting,  which  is  similar  to  the  accounting  used  by  most  private‐sector 
companies.  
 
These two statements report the City’s net position and changes in them. Net position is the difference between assets, 
liabilities, and deferred outflows/inflows of resources, which is one way to measure the City’s financial health or financial 
position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is 
improving or deteriorating. Other factors to consider are changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of 
the City’s infrastructure, such as City wells and reservoirs construction/replacements, street maintenance/repairs, and 
building maintenance/improvements. 
 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, City activities are separated as follows: 

 
Governmental  activities  –  The majority of  the City’s basic  services  are  reported  in  this  category,  including 
Administrative Services, Police, Fire, Public Works, Planning and Development Services, Parks and Recreation, 
and the Library.  Revenues such as property taxes, sales taxes, utility user taxes, franchise fees, and other state 
and federal funds finance these activities. 

 
Business‐type activities – The City  charges a  fee  to customers  to  cover  the  services  it provides within  this 
category. The City’s water system, sewer system, and community operations are reported in this category. 

 
Government‐Wide Financial Analysis 
Our analysis focuses on the City’s net position (Table 1) and the changes in net position (Table 2) as a result of the City’s 
activities.  Comparative  total  data  for  the  prior  year  have  been  presented.  An  analysis  of  the  significant 
increases/decreases from the prior year is provided before each table. 
 
   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐8‐ 

Net  Position: Net  Position,  the difference between  a  government’s  assets  plus  deferred  outflows of  resources  and 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, may serve over time as one potential useful indicator of a government’s 
financial position (Table 1).  Net Position includes the City’s capital assets, cash balances, amounts receivable from other 
entities, and other similar resources offset by payments due to vendors, interest payable, long‐term debt, and other 
similar obligations.  By far the largest portion of the City’s net position (94%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. 
land, buildings, utility plant, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure), net of any related outstanding debt, used to 
acquire  those assets.  The City  uses  these  assets  to provide  services  to  citizens.  Consequently,  these  assets  are not 
available for future spending.  Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should 
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  
 
In the case of the City, total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources by $212,818,207 at the close of the most recent fiscal year as compared to the net position of $210,370,771 
in fiscal year 2016‐17.  

Table 1 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2017 and 2018 
(in thousands) 

2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018

Assets

Current and other assets 18,505$     20,798$     6,158$       4,914$       24,663$     25,712$    

Noncurrent assets 1,802         1,500         ‐            ‐            1,802         1,500        

Capi ta l  assets , net 180,793     181,264     25,329       25,011       206,122     206,275    

Tota l  assets 201,100     203,562     31,487       29,925       232,587     233,487    

Deferred outflows  of resources 2,982         3,595         654            789            3,636         4,384        

Liabi l i ties

Current and other l iabi l i ties 1,520         1,514         2,422         298            3,942         1,812        

Noncurrent l iabi l i ties 11,271       12,792       10,150       9,724         21,421       22,516      

Tota l  l iabi l i ties 12,791       14,306       12,572       10,022       25,363       24,328      

Deferred inflows  of resources 401            595            88              131            489            726           

Net pos i tion:

Net investment in capi ta l  assets 180,505     181,067     16,892       17,975       197,397     199,042    

Restricted 5,120         4,925         1,149         ‐            6,269         4,925        

Unrestricted 5,265         6,264         1,440         2,586         6,705         8,850        

Tota l  net pos i tion 190,890$   192,256$   19,481$     20,561$     210,371$   212,817$  

Governmental  

activi ties

Bus iness ‐type 

activi ties Tota l

 
 

   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐9‐ 

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position: Program expenses by function, general revenues by major source, 
excess and/or deficiency of revenues over expenses before contributions to fund principal, special, and extraordinary 
items, changes in and total net position are presented in the Statement of Activities (Table 2). Total revenues increased 
by approximately $1.2 million, or 6.1 percent; and total expenses increased by $255 thousand, or 1.5 percent.  

 
Table 2 

Condensed Statement of Activities 
For the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 

(in thousands) 

2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018

Revenues:

Program revenues

Charges  for services 2,377$      2,652$         6,338$      6,719$      8,715$      9,371$     

Operating grants  and contributions 1,369        1,588           62             ‐            1,431        1,588       

Capita l  grants  and contributions ‐            ‐               ‐            ‐            ‐            ‐           

Genera l  revenues

Taxes 9,331        9,655           ‐            ‐            9,331        9,655       

Investment income 86             109              8               32             94             141          

Tota l  revenues 13,163      14,004         6,408        6,751        19,571      20,755     

Expenses:

Genera l  government 1,710        1,335           ‐            ‐            1,710        1,335       

Publ ic safety 5,116        5,394           ‐            ‐            5,116        5,394       

Publ ic works 1,961        2,197           ‐            ‐            1,961        2,197       

Development services 1,130        1,558           ‐            ‐            1,130        1,558       

Culture and recreation 1,078        1,388           ‐            ‐            1,078        1,388       

Interest 14             10                ‐            ‐            14             10            

Water ‐            ‐               4,763        4,432        4,763        4,432       

Sewer ‐            ‐               1,371        1,030        1,371        1,030       

Recreation services ‐            ‐               23             4               23             4              

Strike Team ‐            ‐               126           171           126           171          

Fi lming ‐            ‐               51             78             51             78            

Tota l  expenses 11,009      11,882         6,334        5,715        17,343      17,597     

Change in net pos i tion

before transfers 2,154        2,122           74             1,036        2,228        3,158       

Transfers (119)          (103)             119           103           ‐            ‐           

Change in net pos i tion 2,035        2,019           193           1,139        2,228        3,158       

Net pos i tion, beginning, restated 188,855    190,237       19,288      19,422      208,143    209,659   

Net pos i tion, ending 190,890$  192,256$     19,481$    20,561$    210,371$  212,817$ 

Governmental  activi ties

Bus iness ‐type 

activi ties Tota l

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐10‐ 

Governmental Activities: The following (Table 3) presents the cost of each of the City’s largest programs – general 
government, public safety, public works, community development and culture and recreation, – and in addition, each 
program’s net cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activities). The net cost shows the financial burden that 
was placed on the City’s taxpayers by each of these functions.   

 
Table 3 

Net Cost of Governmental Activities 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

(in thousands) 

Total cost of 

services

Total program 

revenues

Net cost of 

services

General government 1,335$          1,218$                (117)$                

Public safety 5,394            753                      (4,641)               

Public works 2,197            1,900                  (297)                  

Development services 1,558            65                        (1,493)               

Culture and recreation 1,388            304                      (1,084)               

Totals 11,872$        4,240$                (7,632)$            

 
THE CITY’S FUNDS 
 
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
As  noted  earlier,  the  City  uses  fund  accounting  to  ensure  and  demonstrate  compliance  with  finance  related  legal 
requirements. The following financial analysis is performed only for the governmental (Table 4) and proprietary funds 
(Table 5). The fiduciary funds are excluded from this analysis as they do not represent resources available to the City. 
 

Table 4 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 
(in thousands) 

2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018

General  Fund 11,108$  12,053$  10,377$  10,620$  38$         (109)$      769$       1,324$   

Other governmenta l  funds 2,033      1,927      1,200      2,665      (135)        25           698         (713)       

Tota ls 13,141$  13,980$  11,577$  13,285$  (97)$        (84)$        1,467$    611$      

Revenues Expenditures Transfers

Net change in fund 

balance

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐11‐ 

Governmental Funds: Based on the audited Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, the 
total  fund balance of  the City’s General Fund  increased by approximately $1.3 million  in FY 2017‐18.   General Fund 
revenues increased by approximately $900 thousand, or 8.5 percent; expenditures increased by approximately $243 
thousand, or 2.2 percent; and net  transfers out decreased by approximately $150  thousand, which was due  to  the 
collapsing of subsidized operations to the General Fund.  In prior years Recreation Classes, the Paramedic Program and 
Development Services were reported in separate funds supported by a subsidy from the General Fund.   Commencing 
in 2016‐2017 the subsidized operations were accounted for in the General Fund, increasing Revenues and Expenditures 
in the General Fund and eliminating the Transfer Out for the subsidized amount.  Other governmental funds decreased 
total fund balance by approximately $700 thousand in FY 2017‐18. 
 
At June 30, 2018, the fund balance for the General Fund was $8,752,193 which was an increase of approximately $1.3 
million. The City adopted an operating reserve as follows:  
 

Table 4‐a 
Fund balances for General Fund 

Amount

General Fund ‐ fund balance for the year ending June 30, 2017 7,428,118$         

Total revenues 12,053,691         

Total expenditures (10,620,444)        

Transfers (109,172)             

General Fund ‐ fund balance for the year ending June 30, 2018 8,752,193$         

Unassigned reserves

50% of operating revenues  ‐ cash flow reserve policy 6,026,846$         

Unassigned reserves 2,725,347             

The  unassigned  General  Fund  reserves were  accumulated  over  time.    The  total  unassigned  General  Fund  reserves 
increased slightly.  The unassigned General fund reserves are the result of: 
 

 Fluctuations  in  assigned  reserves  (50%  of  annual  operating  revenues  per  the  City’s  fund 
balance policy); and 

 Year End operating surpluses/deficits. 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐12‐ 

Business‐Type Funds: As shown in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, the Enterprise 
Funds had a total change in net position increase of $1.1 million or 5.8 percent for the current year.  The Water fund 
had an increase in net position of $1.1 million, or 7.1 percent; and the Sewer Fund had a decrease in net position of 
$105 thousand, or 2.9 percent.  At the close of FY 2017‐18, the total net change in net position of the City’s Internal 
Service Funds was an increase of $1.2 million. 

Table 5 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

For the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 
(in thousands) 

2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018

Water 5,311$  5,545$  4,763$  4,433$  16$       ‐$      564$     1,112$ 

Sewer 870       924       1,372    1,029    42         ‐        (460)      (105)     

Other Enterprise funds 226       281       198       253       60         103       88         131      

Tota ls 6,407$  6,750$  6,333$  5,715$  118$     103$     192$     1,138$ 

Governmenta l  Activi ties  ‐

Interna l  Service Funds 4,598$  4,875$  3,518$  3,666$  (22)$      (20)$      1,058$  1,189$ 

Revenues Expenses

Contributions  

and transfers

Net change in 

fund ba lance

 
Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 

Capital Assets 
The City of Sierra Madre investment in capital assets for its governmental and business‐type activities as of June 30, 
2018, amounts  to $206,275,500  (net of accumulated depreciation).   This  investment  in capital assets  includes  land, 
buildings,  machinery,  equipment,  vehicles,  park  facilities,  roads,  highways,  bridges,  sewer  lines,  and  the  water 
distribution system. 
 

Table 6 
Capital assets (net of depreciation) 

June 30, 2017 and 2018 
(in thousands) 

2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018

Land 162,276$   162,276$  1,483$     1,483$     163,759$  163,759$ 

Trees 1,206          1,206         ‐           ‐           1,206         1,206        

Construction in progress 93                1,038         ‐           67             93               1,105        

Structures and improvements 5,801          5,609         221          203          6,022         5,812        

Machinery and equipment 1,542          1,572         241          170          1,783         1,742        

Infrastructure 9,875          9,563         23,384     23,088     33,259       32,651      

Total 180,793$   181,264$  25,329$  25,011$  206,122$  206,275$ 

Governmental Activities

Business‐type 

Activities Total

 
   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐13‐ 

Additional information on the City of Sierra Madre’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 43 through 44 of this 
report. 
 

Debt Administration 
At the end of FY 2017‐18, the City had total long‐term debt outstanding of $6,503,693 (of which $421,645 is due in FY 
2018‐2019) for the 2017 Installment Agreement.  In addition, the Water Fund has an interest free loan from the San 
Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District, with an outstanding balance of $437,063 (of which $145,688 is due in FY 2018‐
19) at June 30, 2018. 
 

In 2010, the City entered into a 10‐year Master Lease with the Municipal Finance Corporation.  The Citywide debt as of 
June 30, 2018 was $291,164 (of which $138,608 is due in FY 2018‐19).  Additional information on the City’s long‐term 
debt can be found in Note 6 of the Financial Statements (pages 45 through 48). 
 
Economic Condition and Budget Outlook 
The City is a full service municipality operating with a $24 million budget that funds 70 full‐time employees assigned to 
nine operating departments and includes its own water and sewer utilities.  In order to provide a balanced budget, the 
City  implemented  “zero‐based”  budgeting  for  the  2017‐18  Fiscal  Year.    The  City’s  General  Fund  was  balanced  by 
budgeting  for  the use of  reserve  funds, carryover  funds, and other “one‐time” budget procedures which cannot be 
replicated, in both the 2015‐16 and the 2016‐17 budget years. The implementation of the zero‐based budget allowed 
for the City to balance the General Fund with a substantial surplus in the 2017‐18 budget year which just concluded.  
 
Citizens of Sierra Madre approved a permanent extension of the Utility Users Tax (UUT) at 10% (the City’s second largest 
revenue source), and property taxes in Sierra Madre continued to increase similar to the property value increases in Los 
Angeles County as a whole.  Moving forward, challenges to the budget will include mandatory programs from the County 
and State and dramatic increases in pension obligations through CalPERS and the unfunded accrued liability (UAL). 
 
General Fund  
The City’s largest fund is the General fund and its revenues are approximately $12 million.  It provides the resources 
necessary to sustain the day‐to‐day activities and services to the community.  All nine departments receive support from 
the General Fund, either directly or indirectly in the form of subsidies (recorded as Transfers Out in the financials) or 
cost allocation (overhead).  The General Fund supports more than half of the City’s total personnel costs and supports 
49% of the City’s operations (see chart below). 
 

     
 
   

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

FY16‐17

49%

21%

6%

17%

7%
All Other Funds

Internal Service Funds

Sewer

Water

General Fund



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐14‐ 

The City of Sierra Madre, with a population of approximately 11,000, is primarily a residential community.  Its small size 
and quiet neighborhoods provide a village‐like atmosphere the residents are proud to maintain.  Sierra Madre has a 
small, bustling downtown, centered around the iconic Kersting Court.  The commercial activity is proportional to the 
small population of the City, meaning Sierra Madre receives its significant support from property tax and utility user tax 
(UUT), and only a minimal amount from sales tax and other commercial or business activities.   
 
At fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, General Fund revenues were 51% Property Tax and VLF/Property Tax Backfill; 21% 
Utility User Tax and 28% other sources which includes Franchise fee, Sales Tax, and Business Licenses. 
 
The median sale price of a single family home in Sierra Madre for 2018 was $1,000,000.   This represents a $35,000 
(3.38%) decrease in median sale price from 2017.  
 
Water Fund 
The City Water fund utility is the City’s second largest fund.  As a proprietary fund, the fund must collect fees for the 
services (water) that it provides and should be self‐funding.  In other words, the water fund must perform as if it were 
a separate business that should stand alone from the other city funds.   
 
The City Water fund increased its rates during FY 2013‐2014.  Prior to 2010, the City last raised its rates in 2003 when it 
issued new bonds.  The rate increases for 2006, 2007, 2008, and 2009 were not implemented because of changes in 
State laws.  As a result, by 2010, the rates assumed to fund operational, capital and debt were more than 20% below 
anticipated revenues. 
 
In FY 2013‐2014, the City initiated a new rate study and a Proposition 218 process to increase the rates.  The new rates 
have been  in effect  since March 2014.   The  rate  study estimates  that  the  fund balance would be  trending upward.  
However, the rate study did not take into account the additional water conservation due to the drought and City and 
State mandated water  conservation,  and  the  full  cost of purchased water.   Another  factor  in  the  fund balance not 
increasing as estimated was the cost of maintenance and improvements.   
 
The City has initiated a new water rate study in order to take into account the various factors mentioned above and 
provide a new rate that will provide for the funding necessary for the operation. 
 
Sewer Fund 
The City Sewer  fund utility  is  the City’s  third  largest  fund.   As a proprietary  fund,  the  fund must collect  fees  for the 
services (sewer discharge) that it provides and should be self‐funding.   Similar to the Water fund, following the rate 
increase in 2003, the Sewer fund was unable to implement rate increase because of changes to State law.  In 2008, the 
City considered a rate proposal for the Sewer fund, but instead focused on rate increases in the Water Fund because 
there was greater fiscal need there.  Because the Sewer Fund was unable to meet its operational, capital and debt needs, 
in FY 2013‐2014, the City initiated a new rate study and a Proposition 218 process to increase the rates.  The new rates 
have been in effect since March 2014.   
 
Contacting the City’s Financial Management 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general 
overview of the City of Sierra Madre’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. Questions 
concerning any of the  information provided  in this  report or requests for additional  financial  information should be 
addressed to the Finance Department at  the City of Sierra Madre, 232 West Sierra Madre Boulevard, Sierra Madre, 
California, 91024. 
 
 



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 
   



 
 

 

 

City of Sierra Madre, California 
Village of the Foothills 

 
 
 

 
 
    
 
 

Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ending 

June 30, 2018 

 
 

  



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2018 

‐15‐ 

 
Governmental 

Activities

Business‐type 

Activities Total
Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and investments 20,036,608$    3,950,781$    23,987,389$    

Receivables, net:

Accounts 243,087           664,370        907,457            

Taxes 440,274           ‐                 440,274            

Interest 66,959             ‐                 66,959              

Due from other governments 11,992             ‐                 11,992              

Prepaids ‐                    298,824        298,824            

Total current assets 20,798,920     4,913,975     25,712,895      

Noncurrent assets:

Land held for resale 1,500,000        ‐                 1,500,000         

Capital assets:

Non‐depreciable assets 164,520,320   1,550,531     166,070,851    

Depreciable assets‐net 16,743,707     23,460,942   40,204,649      

Total noncurrent assets 182,764,027   25,011,473   207,775,500    

Total assets 203,562,947   29,925,448   233,488,395    

Deferred Outflows of Resources:

OPEB related 88,096             19,337           107,433            

Pension related 3,507,139        769,860        4,276,999         

Total deferred outflows of resources 3,595,235        789,197        4,384,432         

Liabilities:

Current l iabil ities:

Accounts payable 971,615           162,698        1,134,313         

Accrued payroll and related liabilities 183,359           17,332           200,691            

Interest payable 3,031                49,005           52,036              

Deposits and retentions 356,830           69,734           426,564            

Total current liabilities 1,514,835        298,769        1,813,604         

Noncurrent l iabil ities:

Due within one year 349,563           641,542        991,105            

Due in more than one year 830,760           6,533,460     7,364,220         

Net OPEB l iabil ity 230,847           50,675           281,522            

Net pension liability 11,380,599     2,498,180     13,878,779      

Total l iabilities 14,306,604     10,022,626   24,329,230      

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

OPEB related 146,068           32,063           178,131            

Pension related 448,752           98,507           547,259            

Total deferred inflows of resources 594,820           130,570        725,390            

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 181,067,634   17,975,946   199,043,580    

Restricted:

Public safety 374,106           ‐                 374,106            

Public works 1,062,655        ‐                 1,062,655         

Development services 3,189,075        ‐                 3,189,075         

Culture and recreation 300,167           ‐                 300,167            

Unrestricted 6,263,121        2,585,503     8,848,624         
Total net position 192,256,758$   20,561,449$  212,818,207$  

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Statement of Activities 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐16‐ 

Operating Capital

Charges for  grants and grants and

Functions/programs Expenses services contributions contributions Total

Primary government:

Governmental activities:

General government 1,334,388$        1,218,317$        ‐$                    ‐$                    1,218,317$       

Public safety 5,394,253          491,112              261,587              ‐                       752,699             

Public works 2,196,985          841,122              1,058,965          ‐                       1,900,087         

Development services 1,557,850          65,702                ‐                       ‐                       65,702               

Culture and recreation 1,388,943          36,664                267,650              ‐                       304,314             

Interest on long‐term debt 10,336                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

Total governmental activities 11,882,755        2,652,917          1,588,202          ‐                       4,241,119         

Business‐type activities:

Water  4,432,899          5,521,322          ‐                       ‐                       5,521,322         

Sewer 1,029,623          916,565              ‐                       ‐                       916,565             

Recreation services 4,150                  73,080                ‐                       ‐                       73,080               

Special services 171,228              68,081                ‐                       ‐                       68,081               

Fi lm services 77,923                139,996              ‐                       ‐                       139,996             

Total business‐type activities 5,715,823          6,719,044          ‐                       ‐                       6,719,044         

Total primary government 17,598,578$      9,371,961$        1,588,202$        ‐$                    10,960,163$     

General revenues:

Taxes:

Property taxes

Util ity user taxes

Other taxes

Unrestricted sales taxes ‐ shared state revenue 

Investment earnings

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year, as restated

Net position, end of year

Program Revenues

 
 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.



 
 
 

 

‐17‐ 

Governmental Business‐type

Activities Activities Total

(116,071)$           ‐$                     (116,071)$          

(4,641,554)          ‐                       (4,641,554)         

(296,898)             ‐                       (296,898)            

(1,492,148)          ‐                       (1,492,148)         

(1,084,629)          ‐                       (1,084,629)         

(10,336)               ‐                       (10,336)              

(7,641,636)          ‐                       (7,641,636)         

‐                       1,088,423           1,088,423          

‐                       (113,058)             (113,058)            

‐                       68,930                 68,930                

‐                       (103,147)             (103,147)            

‐                       62,073                 62,073                

‐                       1,003,221           1,003,221          

(7,641,636)          1,003,221           (6,638,415)         

6,426,261           ‐                       6,426,261          

2,504,433           ‐                       2,504,433          

414,611              ‐                       414,611             

309,590              ‐                       309,590             

109,516              32,935                 142,451             

(103,147)             103,147              ‐                      

9,661,264           136,082              9,797,346          

2,019,628           1,139,303           3,158,931          

190,237,130      19,422,146         209,659,276     

192,256,758$    20,561,449$      212,818,207$   

Net (expense) revenue

and changes in net position

   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Balance Sheet 
Governmental funds 
June 30, 2018 

 

‐18‐ 

General Fund

Non‐Major 

Governmental 

Funds

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

Assets:

Cash and investments 8,551,218$        4,974,426$        13,525,644$     

Receivables:

Accounts 173,695              56,707                230,402             

Taxes 370,285              69,989                440,274             

Interest 66,959                ‐                       66,959                

Due from other agencies ‐                       11,992                11,992                

Due from other funds 175,183              ‐                       175,183             

Land held for resale ‐                       1,500,000          1,500,000          

Total assets 9,337,340$        6,613,114$        15,950,454$     

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 180,959$          686,448$          867,407$          

Accrued payroll and related

   l iabilities 100,638            55,820              156,458            

Due to other funds ‐                     175,183            175,183            

Deposits and retentions 303,550              53,280                356,830             

Total l iabilities 585,147              970,731              1,555,878          

Fund balances:

Restricted 15,802              4,856,087        4,871,889         

Committed ‐                     903,576            903,576            

Unassigned 8,736,391        (117,280)          8,619,111         

Total fund balances 8,752,193          5,642,383          14,394,576        

Total l iabilities and fund balances 9,337,340$        6,613,114$        15,950,454$     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet in 
  Fund Balances to the Governmental‐wide Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2018 

 

‐19‐ 

Total fund balances ‐ total governmental funds 14,394,576$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position were different because:

   

Capital assets used in governmental activities were not current financial resources.

Therefore, they were not reported in the governmental funds:

Capital assets, net of depreciation 180,185,058      

Accrued interest payable of the current portion of interest due on long‐term debt has not

been reported in governmental funds. (2,626)                  

Long‐term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and

payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All

l iabil ities, both current and long‐term are reported in the Statement of Net Position: 

Capital lease payable (170,179)             

Compensated absences (553,232)             

Net OPEB liabil ity and pension related deferred outflows and inflows of resources (264,164)             

Net pension l iabil ity and pension related deferred outflows and inflows of resources (7,611,779)          

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such 

as facil ities management, to individual funds. The assets and liabil ities of the internal

service funds are included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position. 6,279,104           

  

Net position of governmental activities 192,256,758$    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐20‐ 

General Fund

Non‐Major 

Governmental 

Funds

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

Revenues:

Property taxes 6,198,020$        228,241$           6,426,261$        

Other taxes 3,228,635          ‐                       3,228,635          

Charges for services 638,402              95,527                733,929             

Intergovernmental 27,043                1,201,603          1,228,646          

Licenses and permits 1,127,303          99,774                1,227,077          

Fines and forfeitures 118,324              ‐                       118,324             

Investment income 52,055                32,857                84,912                

Miscellaneous 663,909              269,233              933,142             

Total revenues 12,053,691        1,927,235          13,980,926        

Expenditures:

Current:

General government 2,609,677          ‐                       2,609,677          

Public safety 5,119,024          81,173                5,200,197          

Public works 619,575              2,186,799          2,806,374          

Development 1,437,228          ‐                       1,437,228          

Culture and recreation 834,940              306,558              1,141,498          

Debt Service:

Principal ‐                       79,484                79,484                

Interest ‐                       11,563                11,563                

Total expenditures 10,620,444        2,665,577          13,286,021        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

   over (under) expenditures 1,433,247          (738,342)            694,905             

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in ‐                       37,851                37,851                

Transfers out (109,172)            (11,973)               (121,145)            

Total other financing sources (uses) (109,172)            25,878                (83,294)              

Net change in fund balances 1,324,075          (712,464)            611,611             

7,428,118          6,354,847          13,782,965        

Fund balances, end of year 8,752,193$        5,642,383$        14,394,576$     

Fund balances, beginning of year

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and  
Changes in Fund Balances to the Government‐Wide Statement of Activities 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐21‐ 

Net change in fund balances ‐ total governmental funds 611,611$           

   

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of

Activities and Changes in Net Position, the costs of those assets meeting the City's

capitalization policy are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation

expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation expense in the

current period: 

Depreciation expense (1,271,336)         

Capital outlay, net of disposals 1,817,876          

The issuance of long‐term debt provides current financial resources to governmental

funds while the repayment of the principal of long‐term debt consumes the current

financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect

on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs and similar

items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position. These differences are as follows:

Principal payments 79,484               

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of self‐insurance and

capital replacements to individual funds. The net revenue of internal service funds is

reported with governmental activities. 1,189,743          

Some expenses reported on the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position do not

require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

expenditures in the governmental funds:

Net change in accrued interest 1,226                 

Net change in compensated absences 251,228            

Net OPEB liabil ity and pension related deferred outflows and inflows of resources 63,717               

Net pension liabil ity and pension related deferred outflows and inflows of resources (723,921)           

Change in net position of governmental activities 2,019,628$        

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net

Position were different because:

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 
June 30, 2018 

 

‐22‐ 

Water  Sewer

  Non‐Major 

Enterprise 

Funds 

Total 

Enterprise 

Funds 

Governmental 

Activities Internal 

Service Funds

Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and investments 2,271,850$        1,145,325$    533,606$      3,950,781$    6,510,964$          

Accounts receivable 543,209              121,161        ‐                664,370        12,685                  

Prepaids 297,074              ‐                 1,750            298,824        ‐                        

Total current assets 3,112,133           1,266,486     535,356       4,913,975     6,523,649             

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:

Non‐depreciable assets 1,550,531           ‐                 ‐                1,550,531     ‐                        

Depreciable assets‐net 20,274,348        3,186,594     ‐                23,460,942   1,078,969             

Total noncurrent assets 21,824,879        3,186,594     ‐                25,011,473   1,078,969             

Total assets 24,937,012        4,453,080     535,356       29,925,448   7,602,618             

Deferred Outflows of Resources:

OPEB related 10,743 8,594 ‐                19,337           7,520                    

Pension related 427,700              342,160        ‐                769,860        299,390                

Total deferred outflows of resources 438,443              350,754        ‐                789,197        306,910                

Liabilities:

Current l iabil ities:

Accounts payable 143,981              2,016             16,701         162,698        104,208                

Accrued payroll  and related 

l iabil ities 12,248                5,025             59                 17,332           26,901                  

Interest payable 47,542                1,463             ‐                49,005           405                       

Deposits and retentions 42,888                11,170           15,676         69,734           ‐                        

Claims payable ‐ current ‐                      ‐                 ‐                ‐                 114,647                

Compensated absences ‐ current 16,777                8,646             2,472            27,895           31,976                  

Capital lease payable ‐ current ‐                      46,314           ‐                46,314           12,811                  

Loan payable ‐ current 145,688              ‐                 ‐                145,688        ‐                        

Installment agreement payable ‐  421,645              ‐                 ‐                421,645        ‐                        

Total current l iabil ities 830,769              74,634           34,908         940,311        290,948                

Noncurrent l iabil ities:

Claims payable  ‐                      ‐                 ‐                ‐                 156,172                

Compensated absences 67,108                34,585           9,887            111,580        127,903                

Net pension Liabil ity 1,387,878           1,110,302 ‐                2,498,180     971,515                

Net OPEB liabil ity 28,153 22,522 50,675           19,706                  

Capital lease payable ‐                      48,458           ‐                48,458           13,403                  

Installment agreement/loan payable 6,373,422           ‐                 ‐                6,373,422     ‐                        

Total noncurrent l iabil ities 7,856,561           1,215,867     9,887            9,082,315     1,288,699             

Total l iabil ities 8,687,330           1,290,501     44,795         10,022,626   1,579,647             

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

OPEB related 17,813 14,250 ‐                32,063           12,469                  

Pension related 54,726                43,781           ‐                98,507           38,308                  

Total deferred inflows of resources 72,539                58,031           ‐                130,570        50,777                  

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 14,884,124        3,091,822     ‐                17,975,946   1,052,755             

Unrestricted 1,731,462           363,480        490,561       2,585,503     5,226,349             
Total net position 16,615,586$      3,455,302$     490,561$       20,561,449$  6,279,104$          

Enterprise Funds

Business‐type Activities

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐23‐ 

Enterprise Funds

Water  Sewer

 Non‐Major 

Enterprise 

Funds

Total 

Enterprise 

Funds 

Governmental 

Activities 

Internal Service 

Funds

Operating revenues:

Charges for services 5,521,322$     916,702$       242,573$      6,680,597$    4,755,565$       

Licenses and permits ‐                    (137)                38,584          38,447            34,796               

Miscellaneous ‐                    ‐                  ‐                 ‐                   60,396               

Total operating revenues 5,521,322        916,565         281,157        6,719,044       4,850,757         

Operating expenses:

Personnel services 795,184           478,070         182,493        1,455,747       1,544,166         

Contractual services 278,667           15,603            43,111          337,381          500,776             

Materials and supplies 650,613           1,709              1,058             653,380          325,313             

Uti l ities 495,875           9,912 ‐                 505,787          357,702             

Maintenance and operation 98,790             251,981         19,599          370,370          52,125               

Administrative Charges 1,197,882        60,416            7,040             1,265,338       609,313             

Depreciation 597,997           206,177         ‐                 804,174          241,157             

Total operating expenses 4,115,008        1,023,868      253,301        5,392,177       3,630,552         

Operating income (loss) 1,406,314        (107,303)        27,856          1,326,867       1,220,205         

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Investment income 24,300             7,739              896                32,935            24,603               

Loss on disposal of property  ‐                    ‐                  ‐                 ‐                   (33,626)              

Interest expense (317,891)          (5,755)             ‐                 (323,646)         (1,586)                

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (293,591)          1,984              896                (290,711)         (10,609)              

Income (loss) before transfers  1,112,723        (105,319)        28,752          1,036,156       1,209,596         

Transfers:

Transfers in ‐                    ‐                  103,147        103,147          ‐                      

Transfers out ‐                    ‐                  ‐                 ‐                   (19,853)              

Total transfers ‐                    ‐                  103,147        103,147          (19,853)              

Change in net position 1,112,723        (105,319)        131,899        1,139,303       1,189,743         

Net position, beginning of year, as restated 15,502,863     3,560,621      358,662        19,422,146    5,089,361         

Net position, end of year 16,615,586$   3,455,302$    490,561$      20,561,449$  6,279,104$       

Business‐type Activities

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.  



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

‐24‐ 

 

Water  Sewer

 Non‐Major 

Enterprise 

Funds 

 Total 

Enterprise 

Funds 

 Governmental 

Activities 

Internal 

Service Funds 

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers and users 5,575,909$   901,539$      281,157$      6,758,605$   ‐$                  

Receipts from interfund services provided ‐                  ‐                  ‐                  ‐                  4,843,956        

Payments to suppliers  (4,000,423)    (482,415)       (57,625)          (4,540,463)    (1,354,204)      

Payments to employees (711,876)       (445,420)       (174,156)       (1,331,452)    (1,549,446)      

 Net cash provided (used) by  

operating activities 863,610         (26,296)          49,376           886,690         1,940,306        

Cash flows from non‐capital

 financing activities:

Transfers from other funds ‐                  ‐                  103,147         103,147         ‐                    

Transfers to other funds ‐                  ‐                  ‐                  ‐                  (19,853)            

Net cash provided (used) by non‐capital 

financing activities ‐                  ‐                  103,147         103,147         (19,853)            

Cash flows from capital and 

related financing activities:

Acquisition and construction

 of capital assets (486,594)       ‐                  ‐                  (486,594)       (198,829)          

Proceeds from installment agreement 6,761,977     ‐                  ‐                  6,761,977     ‐                    

Principal paid (8,118,972)    (44,264)          ‐                  (8,163,236)    (12,244)            

Interest paid (332,991)       (6,438)            ‐                  (339,429)       (1,775)              

Net cash provided (used) by capital  

and related financing activities (2,176,580)    (50,702)          ‐                  (2,227,282)    (212,848)          

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment income 24,300           7,739             896                 32,935           24,603             

Net cash provided (used)
 by investing activities 24,300           7,739             896                 32,935           24,603             

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 

cash equivalents (1,288,670)    (69,259)          153,419         (1,204,510)    1,732,208        

Cash and investments:

Beginning of year 3,560,520     1,214,584     380,187         5,155,291     4,778,756        

End of year 2,271,850$   1,145,325$   533,606$      3,950,781$   6,510,964$     

Business‐type Activities

Enterprise Funds

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

‐25‐ 

 

Water  Sewer

 Non‐Major 

Enterprise 

Funds 

 Total  

Enterprise 

Funds 

 Governmental 

Activities 

Internal 

Service Funds 

Business‐type Activities

Enterprise Funds

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 1,406,314$   (107,303)$     27,856$         1,326,867$   1,220,205$     

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

  net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 597,997         206,177         ‐                  804,174         241,157           

Changes in assets and l iabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 54,587           (15,026)          ‐                  39,561           (6,801)              

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses ‐                  ‐                  (375)               (375)               662,566           

(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows (63,985)          (51,188)          ‐                  (115,173)       (44,789)            

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (1,290,602)    (134,572)       2,119             (1,423,055)    (171,541)          

Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 2,360             (1,760)            (1,735)            (1,135)            2,108                

Increase (decrease) in deposits payable 12,006           (8,222)            11,439           15,223           (114,232)          

Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows 23,665           18,932           ‐                  42,597           16,565             

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (17,933)          (44,695)          10,072           (52,556)          37,627             

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liability (15,565)          (12,452)          ‐                  (28,017)          (10,896)            

Increase (decrease) in net pension liabil ity 154,766         123,813         ‐                  278,579         108,337           

Total adjustments (542,704)       81,007           21,520           (440,177)       720,101           

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 863,610$      (26,296)$       49,376$         886,690$      1,940,306$     

 
Noncash non‐capital financing activities, capital and related financing activities and investing activities: 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 
June 30, 2018 

 

‐26‐ 

Private‐Purpose

Trust Fund

Redevelopment 

Obligation 

Retirement Fund

Assets:

Cash and investments 581,097$                    

Restricted cash and investments

   with fiscal agents 405,648

Total assets 986,745                      

Liabilities:

Interest payable 4,667                           

Bonds payable ‐ current 360,000                      

Bonds payable ‐ noncurrent 380,000                      

Total l iabil ities 744,667                      

Net Position:

Unrestricted 242,078                      

Total net position 242,078$                    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐27‐ 

Private‐Purpose

Trust Fund

Redevelopment 

Obligation Retirement 

Fund

Additions:

Property taxes 481,093$                         

Investment income 5,820

Total additions 486,913                           

Deductions:

General and administration 87,354

Interest expense 42,688

Total deductions 130,042                           

Change in net position 356,871                           

Net position (deficit), beginning of year (114,793)                          

Net position, ending of year 242,078$                         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 
  



 

 

City of Sierra Madre, California 
Village of the Foothills 

 
 
 

 
    
 
 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ending 

June 30, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐28‐ 

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The basic  financial  statements  of  the City of  Sierra Madre,  California  (City)  have been prepared  in  conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America as applied to governmental agencies.  
The  Governmental  Accounting  Standards  Board  (GASB)  is  the  accepted  standard  setting  body  for  establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are 
described below. 
 
A. Financial Reporting Entity 
 
The City was  incorporated on February 2, 1907, under the general  laws of the State of California. The City operates 
under a Council‐Manager form of government and provides the following services: police protection, fire suppression 
and prevention, emergency medical response, recreation programs, senior services, local transportation, planning and 
permit processing, water utility, public  library, streets, parks, sewer and storm drain utility, and general government 
and administrative services. 
 
As required by GAAP, these basic financial statements present the City (the primary government) and its component 
unit for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. The component unit discussed below is included in 
the City's reporting entity because of the significance of its operational or financial relationship with the City.  The entity 
is legally separate; however, the City of Sierra Madre elected officials have a continuing oversight responsibility over the 
Authority. 
 
An organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government if  it  is unable to adopt its budget, levy taxes or set 
rates or charges, or  issue bonded debt without approval by  the primary government.    In a blended presentation, a 
component unit’s balances and transactions are reported in a manner similar to the balances and transactions of the 
City.  Component units are presented on a blended basis when the component unit’s governing body is substantially the 
same as the City’s or the component unit provides services almost entirely to the City. 
 
Blended Component Units 
 
The Sierra Madre Public Financing Authority (Authority): 
 
The Authority is a joint powers authority organized pursuant to Government Code Section 6500 of the State of California. 
The Authority exists pursuant to a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated November 1972, between the City and the 
Agency. Its purpose is facilitating the issuance of debt instruments, loans, and other financing to the City or Agency for 
the construction of public improvements.  It has no separate existence and has acted as a conduit between the issuer 
(the Agency and/or the City) and the underwriters. It was established as a vehicle to reduce local borrowing costs and 
promote greater use of existing and new financial instruments and mechanisms. City Council members, in concurrent 
sessions, serve as the governing board of the Authority.  Financial activity of the Authority has been blended into the 
City’s CAFR into various governmental and business‐type activities and funds of the City as applicable. 
 
Separate financial statements are not prepared for the Sierra Madre Public Financing Authority. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐29‐ 

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
A. Financial Reporting Entity, (continued) 
 
Organizations Other Than Component Units 
 
Other governmental agencies, such as the County of Los Angeles, the Pasadena Unified School District, etc., provide 
services within the City.  However, each of these agencies is governed by an independently elected governing board.  
Accordingly,  their financial information  is  not  included  within  the  scope  of  this financial report, because the City 
Council does not  have a continuing oversight responsibility over  them, nor are their financial operations closely related 
thereto. 
 
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 
 
The basic financial statements of the City are composed of the following: 

 Government‐wide financial statements 

 Fund financial statements 

 Notes to basic financial statements 
 
Financial reporting is based upon all Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements. 

 
Government‐Wide Financial Statements 
 
The City's government‐wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities and 
Changes in Net Position. These statements present summaries of governmental and business‐type activities for the City 
accompanied by a total column.  Fiduciary activities of the City are not included in these statements. 
 
These basic financial statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis 
of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City’s assets and liabilities, including capital assets (as well as infrastructure assets) 
and  long‐term  liabilities,  are  included  in  the  accompanying  Statement  of  Net  Position.  The  Statement  of  Activities 
presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which 
they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.  The Statement of Activities 
demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. 
Direct expenses are those that are clearly  identifiable with a specific  function or segment. Certain  indirect costs are 
included in the program expenses reported for specific functions. 
 
Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the City in three categories: (1) charges for services, 
(2) operating grants and contributions and  (3)  capital grants and contributions.   Program revenues are netted with 
program expenses in the Statement of Activities to present the net cost of each program. 
 

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles in regard to interfund 
activities. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been eliminated except those representing internal 
balances between the governmental activities and the business‐type activities, which are presented as internal balances 
and eliminated in the total primary government column.  



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐30‐ 

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, (continued) 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
 
Governmental  fund  financial  statements  include  a  Balance  Sheet  and  a  Statement  of  Revenues,  Expenditures,  and 
Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non‐major funds aggregated.  The City has presented 
all major funds that met the applicable criteria.  
 
All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources" measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting.  Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities are included on the Balance 
Sheet.  The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances presents increases (revenues and other 
financing sources) and decreases  (expenditures and other  financing uses)  in net current assets. Under  the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable 
and available to finance expenditures of the current period.  Revenues are considered available when they are collectible 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period, generally 60 days after year‐
end.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  
 
Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and other taxes associated with the current fiscal year are all considered to 
be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal year.  Entitlements are recorded 
as revenues when all eligibility  requirements are met,  including any time requirements, and the amount  is  received 
during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year‐end).  Expenditure‐
driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility 
requirements have been met, and the amount  is received during the period or within the availability period for this 
revenue source (within 180 days of year‐end).  All other revenue items are considered measurable and available only 
when cash is received by the government.  
 
The reconciliations of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government‐Wide Financial Statements are provided to 
explain the differences created by the integrated approach of GASB Statement No. 34. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
General Fund – Accounts for all financial resources of the general government except those required to be accounted 
for in another fund. 
 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 
 
Proprietary  fund  financial  statements  include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes  in Net  Position,  and  a  Statement of  Cash  Flows  for  the major  proprietary  funds  and  the non‐major  funds 
aggregated. City maintains two proprietary fund types: enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are 
used to account for services provided to businesses and individuals within the community. Internal service funds account 
for services provided by one City department to other departments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐31‐ 

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, (continued) 
 
Proprietary  funds  are  accounted  for  using  the  "economic  resources"  measurement  focus  and  the  accrual  basis  of 
accounting.  Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included on the Statement of Net 
Position.    The  Statement  of  Revenues,  Expenses,  and  Changes  in  Net  Position  presents  increases  (revenues)  and 
decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period 
when they are earned; expenses are recognized when they are incurred.  Unbilled service receivables are recorded as 
accounts receivable and as revenue when earned. 
 
Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the 
fund. All  other  revenues  are  reported  as non‐operating  revenues. Operating  expenses  are  those  expenses  that  are 
essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non‐operating expenses. 
 
The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 
 
Water Fund – Accounts for the operations of the City’s water utility operations. 
 
Sewer and Storm Drain Fund – Accounts for the operations of the City’s sewer system and storm drain operations. 
 
Additionally, the City also reports Internal Service Funds. These funds account for the administrative services, insurance 
coverage  and  facilities,  fleet  and  electronic  equipment  maintenance  services,  all  which  are  provided  to  other 
departments on a cost‐reimbursement basis. A separate column representing internal service funds is also presented in 
these  statements.  However,  internal  service  balances  and  activities  have  been  combined  with  the  governmental 
activities in the government‐wide financial statements. 
 
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 
 
Fiduciary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Changes in Net Position. The 
City  maintains  two  fiduciary  fund  types:  a  private‐purpose  trust  fund  and  agency  funds.  Fiduciary  fund  types  are 
accounted  for  according  to  the  nature  of  the  fund.  The  private‐purpose  trust  fund  uses  the  “economic  resources” 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. It is used to report trust arrangements under which principal 
and  income benefit  individuals, private organizations, and other governments. Agency  funds are custodial  in nature 
(assets  equal  liabilities)  and  do  not  involve  measurement  of  results  of  operations.  Agency  funds  do  not  have  a 
measurement focus.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐32‐ 

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
C. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 
 
The City pools its available cash for investment purposes.  The City has defined cash and cash equivalents to include 
cash on hand, demand deposits, cash with fiscal agent, as well as short‐term investments with original maturity of three 
months or less from the date of acquisition.  Cash and cash equivalents are combined with investments and displayed 
as cash and investments.  Additionally, each fund’s equity in the City’s investment pool is treated as a cash equivalent, 
because the funds can deposit or effectively withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty. 
 
In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, highly liquid market investments with maturities of one 
year or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost.  All other investments are stated at fair value.  Market 
value is used as fair value for those securities for which market quotation are readily available or exceed cost.  However, 
if the liquidity needs of the City were to require that investments be sold at a loss subsequent to year‐end, the decline 
in value would be recorded as a loss at year‐end. 
 
The City participates  in an  investment pool managed by the State of California titled Local Agency  Investment Fund 
(LAIF),  which  has  invested  a  portion  of  the  pool  funds  in  Structured  Notes  and  Asset‐Backed  Securities.    LAIF’s 
investments  are  subject  to  credit  risk  with  the  full  faith  and  credit  of  the  State  of  California  collateralizing  these 
investments. In addition, these Structured Notes and Asset‐Backed Securities are subject to market risk as to change in 
interest rates. 
 
In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, certain disclosure requirements, if applicable, are provided 
for deposit and investment risk in the following areas: 

 Inherent Rate Risk 

 Credit Risk 

 Overall 

 Custodial Credit Risk 

 Concentration of Credit Risk 

 Foreign Currency Risk 
 
D. Land Held for Resale 
 
Land Held for Resale  in the Capital Projects Fund  is an  inventory of  land owned by the City’s Housing Fund for  low‐
moderate housing needs, which will be sold or leased to developers.  The land is recorded at the lower of acquisition 
cost or market.  Fund balances are reserved in amounts equal to the carrying value of land held for resale, because such 
assets are not available to finance the City’s current operations. 
 
E. Prepaid Expenses 
 
Certain payments to vendors such as insurance premiums, prepaid rents, and deposits for real property acquisitions 
reflect costs applicable to future periods and are recorded as prepaid and other assets in both government‐wide and 
fund financial statements. These costs will be recognized  in the period when services are received or when the City 
receives title to the real property.  
 
   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐33‐ 

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 

F. Property Taxes 
 

Property tax in California is levied in accordance with Article 13B of the State Constitution at one percent of county‐
wide  assessed  valuations.    This  one  percent  is  allocated  pursuant  to  State  law  to  the  appropriate  units  of  local 
government.  Property tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year for which taxes have been levied provided that the 
revenues collected in the current period or will be collected within 60 days thereafter. 
 

The following dates relate to property tax levies and collections: 
 

    Lien Date    January 1 
    Levy Date    July 1 
    Due Dates    November 1 and February 1 
    Delinquent Dates   December 10 and April 10 
 

G. Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost was not available. Donated 
assets are valued at acquisition value on the date of acquisition.  The City's capitalization policy is $5,000 and above for 
various capital assets and $25,000 for improvements and infrastructure.  Capital assets are depreciated on a straight‐
line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 
 

    Roadways pavement AC      25 years 
    Street appurtenances bridges    40 years 
    Park structures        25 years 
    Wastewater manholes      60 years 
    Pipelines        60 years 
    Spreading basins        50 years 
    Pump stations        60 years 
    Meters          30 years 
    Pipelines        50 years 
    Pressure reducing stations     40 years 
    Fire hydrants        50 years 
    Wells          50 years 
    Reservoirs        75 years 
    General buildings       50 years 
    Vehicles and equipment      10 years 
 

H. Claims Payable  
 

The City records a liability to reflect an estimate of ultimate uninsured losses for both general liability claims (including 
property damage claims) and workers’ compensation claims.   
 
I. Compensated Absences 
 

All vested vacation and compensatory leave time is recognized as an expense and as a liability in the proprietary type 
funds at the time the liability vests.  Governmental fund types recognize the vested vacation and compensatory time as 
expenditure in the current year to the extent that it is paid during the year.  Accrued vacation and compensatory time 
relating  to governmental  funds  is only  included as a  liability  in  the statement of net position as  those amounts are 
payable from future resources and within the respective balance sheets for amounts relating to proprietary fund types. 
For governmental funds, compensated absences are primarily liquated by the City’s General Fund. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐34‐ 

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
J. Net Position and Fund Balances 
 
Government‐Wide Financial Statements – In the government‐wide financial statements, net position are classified in 
the following categories: 
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets ‐ This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced 
by outstanding debt that is attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvements.  
 
Restricted Net Position ‐ This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of 
other governments. 
 
Unrestricted Net Position ‐ This amount is all net position that do not meet the definition of “net investment in capital 
assets” or “restricted net position.” 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted net position is available to meet an expense, the City's policy is to apply restricted 
net position first. 
 
Fund Financial Statements – Generally accepted accounting principles require the City to report the governmental fund 
balances in the following categories: 
 
Nonspendable ‐ reflects amounts that are not in a spendable form, examples of which include inventory, prepaid items, 
and other items legally or contractually required to remain intact, such as the principal of a permanent endowment.  
 
Restricted ‐ includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by external resource providers 
or through enabling legislation. 
 
Committed ‐  includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal action of the 
government's highest level of decision‐making authority (City Council by ordinance).  Committed fund balance may be 
redirected by the City to other purposes, as long as, the original constraints are removed or modified in the same manner 
in which they were imposed, that is, by the same formal action of the highest level of decision‐making authority. 
 
Assigned  ‐  comprises amounts  intended  to be used by  the government  for  specific purposes.   Assignments may be 
established either by the City Council or by a designee of the City (the City Council has delegated this authority to the 
City Manager), and are subject to neither the restricted nor committed levels of constraints. 
 
Unassigned  ‐  is  the  residual  classification  for  the general  fund and  includes all  amounts not  contained  in  the other 
classifications.  Unassigned amounts are technically available for any purpose. 
 
When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances 
are available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted fund balance first, committed second, then assigned fund balance, 
and finally unassigned fund balance.  Further, when components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same 
purpose, committed fund balance is used first, followed by assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐35‐ 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
K. Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of  America  requires management  to make  estimates  and  assumptions  that  affect  the  reported  amounts  of  assets, 
liabilities, revenues and expenses.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
L. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net 
position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses) until then.  
The City currently has pension related deferred outflows of resources. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources.  This separate financial element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The City 
currently has pension related deferred inflows of resources. 

 
M. Implementation of New Pronouncements 
 
The following GASB Statements were implemented in the current financial statements: 
 
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions.   This 
standard will improve accounting and financial reporting for other postemployment benefits (OPEB).  
 
N. Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, and 
pension  expense,  information  about  the  fiduciary  net  position  and  additions  to/deductions  from  the  fiduciary  net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office.  For this purpose, 
benefit payments  (including  refunds of  employee contributions)  are  recognized when currently due and payable  in 
accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value.  CalPERS audited financial statements are 
publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information 
within certain defined timeframes.  For this report the following timeframes are used. 
 

Valuation Date (VD)    June 30, 2016 
    Measurement Date (MD)    June 30, 2017 
    Measurement Period (MP)  July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐36‐ 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
O. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 
 
For purposes of measuring  the net OPEB  liability, deferred outflows of  resources and deferred  inflows of  resources 
related to OPEB, and OPEB expense,  information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s plan (OPEB Plan) and 
additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis. For this 
purpose, benefit payments are reported at fair value. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information 
within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used: 
 

Valuation Date (VD)    June 30, 2017 
Measurement Date (MD)    June 30, 2017 
Measurement Period (MP)  July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 

 
2.  CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 
 

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments 23,987,389$         

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position:

Cash and investments 581,097                 

Cash and investments with fiscal agent ‐ restricted 405,648                 

Total cash and investments 24,974,134$         

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018 consist of the following:

Petty cash 2,020$                   

Deposits with financial institutions 2,090,778              

Investments 22,881,336           

Total cash and investments 24,974,134$         

 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy 
 

The City's investment policy only authorizes investment in the local government investment pool administered by the 
State of California (LAIF).   The City’s investment policy does not contain any specific provisions intended to limit the 
City's exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 
 
   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐37‐ 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (continued) 
 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy, (continued) 
 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California Government Code and 
the City's investment policy. The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the City's 
investment policy, if more restrictive) that address interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk. This table does not 
address investments of debt proceeds held by the fiscal agent that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements 
of the City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's investment policy. 
 

Investment Types 

Authorized by State Law

Authorized by 

investment 

policy

Maximum 

maturity*

Maximum 

percentage of 

portfolio*

Maximum 

investment in 

one issuer*

Local Agency Bonds Yes 5 years None None

US Treasury Obligations Yes 5 years None None

US Agency Securities Yes 5 years None None

Bankers' acceptances Yes 180 days 40% None

Commercial paper Yes 270 days 25% 10%

Negotiable certificates of deposit Yes 5 years 30% None

Repurchase agreements Yes 1 year None None

Reverse repurchase agreements No 92 days 20% None

Medium‐term notes No 5 years 30% None

Money market mutual funds No N/A 20% 10%

Mortgage pass‐through securities No 5 years 20% None

County pooled investment funds No N/A None None

Local Agency Investment Funds (LAIF) Yes N/A None None

JPA Pools (other investment pools) No N/A None None

* based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, whichever is more restrictive  
 
 
 
 
 
 

The remainder of this page left intentionally blank. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐38‐ 

2.  CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (continued) 
 
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 
 
Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than the 
general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's investment policy.   The table below identifies the 
investment  types  that  are  authorized  for  investments  held  by  the  bond  trustee.    The  table  also  identifies  certain 
provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

Authorized investment type

Maximum 

maturity

Maximum 

percentage of 

portfolio

Maximum 

investment 

in one issuer

US Treasury Obligations None None None

US Agency Securities None None None

Money market funds None None None

Certificates of deposit secured by collateral None None None

Interest‐bearing deposit accounts None None None

Investment agreements None None None

Commercial paper None None None

Municipal bonds or notes None None None

State bonds or notes  None None None

Bankers' acceptances 1 year None  None

Repurchase agreements 30 days None None  
 

Concentration of Credit 
 
The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond 
that stipulated by the California Government Code.  As of June 30, 2018, there were no investments in any one issuer 
(other than US Treasury securities and external investment pools) that represents 5% or more of total City investments.  
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest  rate  risk  is  the  risk  that  changes  in  market  interest  rates  which  will  adversely  affect  the  fair  value  of  an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in 
market  interest  rates.   One of  the ways  that  the City manages  its  exposure  to  interest  rate  risk  is  by purchasing  a 
combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of 
the portfolio is maturing, or coming close to maturity evenly over time, as necessary to provide cash flow and liquidity 
needed for operations.  
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐39‐ 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (continued) 
 

Interest Rate Risk, (continued) 
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including investments held by fiscal agent) 
to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the City’s investment 
by maturity: 

Investment type Total 12 or less 13 ‐24 25 ‐ 60

State investment pool 14,051,805$      14,051,805$      ‐$                    ‐$                   

US Treasury Notes 8,423,883          2,184,275          2,158,541          4,081,067         

Held by fiscal agent:

  Federated US Treasury obligations 405,648              405,648              ‐                       ‐                      

Total 22,881,336$      16,641,728$      2,158,541$        4,081,067$       

Investment maturities (in months)

Credit Risk 
 
Generally,  credit  risk  is  the  risk  that  an  issuer  of  an  investment  will  not  fulfill  its  obligation  to  the  holder  of  the 
investment. This  is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 
Presented below  is  the minimum  rating  required by  (where  applicable)  the California Government Code,  the City’s 
investment policy or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year‐end for each investment type. 
 

Minimum

legal Not

Investment type Total rating AAA rated

State investment pool 14,051,805$    N/A ‐$                    14,051,805$   

US Treasury Notes 8,423,883        N/A 8,423,883          ‐                    

Held by fiscal agent:

  Federated US Treasury obligations 405,648            N/A 405,648             ‐                    

Total 22,881,336$    8,829,531$        14,051,805$   

Ratings as of year‐end

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐40‐ 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (continued) 
 

Custodial Credit Risk 
 

Custodial  credit  risk  for  deposits  is  the  risk  that,  in  the  event  of  the  failure  of  a  depository  financial  institution,  a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty (e.g., broker‐dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment 
or  collateral  securities  that  are  in  the possession  of  another  party.  The  California Government  Code  and  the  City's 
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for 
deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that 
a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided 
collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market 
value of the pledged securities  in the collateral pool must equal at  least 110% of the total amount deposited by the 
public  agencies.  California  law  also  allows  financial  institutions  to  secure  City  deposits  by  pledging  first  trust  deed 
mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.  As of June 30, 2018, none of the City’s deposits 
with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance limits were held in uncollateralized accounts. 
 

Investment in State Investment Pool 
 

The  City  is  a  voluntary  participant  in  the  Local  Agency  Investment  Fund  (LAIF)  that  is  regulated  by  the  California 
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.  The fair value of the 
City's  investment in this pool is reported  in the accompanying  financial  statements at amounts based upon the City's 
pro rata share of the fair value provided  by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that 
portfolio).  The  balance  available  for withdrawal  is  based  on  the  accounting  records maintained  by  LAIF, which  are 
recorded on an amortized cost basis. 
 

Fair Value Measurements 
 

The  City  categorizes  its  fair  value measurements within  the  fair  value  hierarchy  established  by  generally  accepted 
accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 
1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; 
Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  
 

Investment type Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

US Treasury Notes 8,423,883$     ‐$               8,423,883$  ‐$              

Sub‐total 8,423,883       ‐$               8,423,883$  ‐$              

Investments measured at Net Asset Value:

  Federated US Treasury obligations 405,648         

Investments not subject to fair value:

State investment pool 14,051,805    

Total 22,881,336$ 

Fair value measurement

 
 
Level 2 investments are valued using a Continuous Fixed Income Evaluated Pricing service. 
 
   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐41‐ 

3. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 
 
A.  Due To/Due From 
 
At June 30, 2018, the City had the following short‐term interfund receivables and payables: 
 

Receivable Payable Amount

General Fund Non‐major Governmental Funds 175,183$             

Total 175,183$             

 
The interfund amounts are for short‐term loans to cover temporary cash deficits.  
 
B.  Transfers 
 
At June 30, 2018, the City had the following transfers: 
 

Transfers out Transfers in Amount

Non‐major Governmental Funds Non‐major Governmental Funds 11,973$               

General Fund Non‐major Enterprise Funds 103,147               

Non‐major Governmental Funds 6,025                    

Internal Service Funds Non‐major Governmental Funds 19,853                 

140,998$             

 
a. $6,025 transfer from GF to environmental fund to cover short term deficit 
b. $103,147 transfer from GF to special events fund to cover operating expenses 
c. $19,853 transfer from Facilities fund to Parking Assessment District to cover short term deficit 
 

4. FUND DEFICITS AND EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF APPROPRIATIONS 
 
A.  Fund Deficits 
 
The following funds reported deficits in fund balance/net position at June 30, 2018: 
 

Description Deficit balance

Non‐major Governmental Funds:

Open Space 110,173$            

Friends of the Library 7,107                     
 
The deficits in the funds are due to expenditures being incurred before the revenue has been received.  
 
   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐42‐ 

4.  FUND DEFICITS AND EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF APPROPRIATIONS, (continued) 
 
B.  Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations 
 
The following funds reported expenditures in excess of appropriations: 
 

Final

Appropriations Expenditures Variance

Governmental Funds:

Fane/Winwood Lane Assessment District 700$                         1,044$                     (344)$                      

Lighting District Zone A 7,900                        8,448                        (548)                         

Lighting District Zone B 17,400                     19,717                     (2,317)                     

Sewer Assessment District ‐                            40                             (40)                           

State COPS Grant 62,000                     64,752                     (2,752)                     

Local Transit Prop C  169,900                   516,185                   (346,285)                 

Clean Air (AQMD)  ‐                            96,327                     (96,327)                   

Bikeway/Sidewalk 5,000                        8,874                        (3,874)                     

Measure R 127,400                   440,731                   (313,331)                 
 

 
The  City  did  not  adopt  budgets  for  the  following  funds:  Police  Donations,  SM  community  Center,  LA  County  Tree 
Mitigation Grant, LACMTA, Measure M, Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation, City Capital Projects, Local History State 
Grant, Development Impact Fees, Development Fees Art in Public Places, DUI Enforcement, Fire Department Donations, 
Community Arts Commission, Recreation Department Donations, YAC‐Youth Activity Center, Local Historical Society and 
the Low & Moderate Income Housing Asset. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The remainder of this page left intentionally blank. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐43‐ 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

A. Governmental Activities 
 
A summary of changes in the governmental activities capital assets at June 30, 2018 is as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending

Governmental activities: balance Additions Deletions balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 162,275,945$   ‐$               ‐$             162,275,945$   

Trees 1,206,214          ‐                 ‐               1,206,214          

Construction in progress 92,501               1,038,161     (92,501)       1,038,161          

Total capital assets, not being

depreciated 163,574,660     1,038,161     (92,501)       164,520,320     

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Structures and improvements 12,108,391       61,379          ‐               12,169,770       

Machinery and equipment 3,999,651          439,373        (120,820)     4,318,204          

Infrastructure 22,623,648       570,293        ‐               23,193,941       

Total capital assets, being 

depreciated 38,731,690       1,071,045     (120,820)     39,681,915       

Less accumulated depreciation 

Structures and improvements (6,306,831)        (254,681)       ‐               (6,561,512)        

Machinery and equipment (2,457,594)        (374,309)       87,193        (2,744,710)        

Infrastructure (12,748,483)      (883,503)       ‐               (13,631,986)      

Total accumulated depreciation (21,512,908)      (1,512,493)   87,193        (22,938,208)      

Total capital assets being depreciated 17,218,782       (441,448)       (33,627)       16,743,707       

Governmental activities,

capital assets, net 180,793,442$   596,713$      (126,128)$  181,264,027$   

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City’s governmental activities as follows: 
 

Governmental activities:

General government 108,425$          

Public safety 222,947            

Public works 996,843            

Culture and recreation 184,278            

Total 1,512,493$      

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐44‐ 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS, (continued) 
 
B. Business‐type Activities 
 
A summary of changes in the business‐type activities capital assets at June 30, 2018 is as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending

Business‐type activities: balance Additions Deletions balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 1,483,250$       ‐$                ‐$             1,483,250$    

Construction in progress ‐                      67,281            ‐               67,281            

Total capital assets, not being

depreciated 1,483,250          67,281            ‐               1,550,531      

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Structures and improvements 821,290             ‐                  ‐               821,290         

Machinery and equipment 1,174,667          ‐                  (38,177)       1,136,490      

Infrastructure 42,856,779       419,313         ‐               43,276,092    

Total capital assets, being 

depreciated 44,852,736       419,313         (38,177)       45,233,872    

Structures and improvements (600,681)            (16,969)          ‐               (617,650)        

Machinery and equipment (934,377)            (70,187)          38,177        (966,387)        

Infrastructure (19,471,875)      (717,018)        ‐               (20,188,893)  

Total accumulated depreciation (21,006,933)      (804,174)        38,177        (21,772,930)  

Total capital assets being depreciated 23,845,803       (384,861)        ‐               23,460,942    

Business‐type activities,

capital  assets, net 25,329,053$     (317,580)$      ‐$             25,011,473$ 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City’s business‐type activities as follows: 
 

Business‐type activities:

Water 597,997$          

Sewer 206,177            

Total 804,174$          

 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐45‐ 

6. LONG‐TERM DEBT 
 
A. Governmental Activities 
 
A summary of changes in the governmental activities long‐term liabilities at June 30, 2018 is as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending Due within Due more

Governmental activities: balance Additions Deletions balance one year than one year

Capital lease 288,119$        ‐$               (91,726)$        196,393$        92,294$     104,099$       

Claims payable 385,051          ‐                 (114,232)        270,819          114,647     156,172         

Compensated absences 926,712          397,391        (610,992)        713,111          142,622     570,489         

Net OPEB l iabil ity 358,483          ‐                 (127,636)        230,847          ‐              230,847         

Net pension liability 10,111,515     1,269,084     ‐                  11,380,599     ‐              11,380,599    

Total 12,069,880$  1,666,475$  (944,586)$      12,791,769$  349,563$  12,442,206$ 

 
The net pension liability and the net OPEB liability associated with the governmental activities is primarily liquidated by 
the General Fund.   
 
Capital Lease 
In January 2010, the City entered into a capital lease agreement to fund certain current and future major equipment 
purchases in the general and fleet funds.  The outstanding balance of the capital lease payable was $196,393 at June 30, 
2018.  
 
The calculation of the present value of the future lease payments are as follows:  

 

Future minimum lease payments Governmental

for the year ending June 30,  activities

2019 105,066$             

2020 105,066                

Subtotal 210,132                

Less: amount representing interest (13,739)                 

Present value of future lease payments 196,393$             

 
Accumulated depreciation on assets purchased through lease agreements are as follows: 
 

Assets:

Machinery and equipment 856,714$             

Less: accumulated depreciation (639,121)              

Total 217,593$             

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐46‐ 

6. LONG‐TERM DEBT, (continued) 
 
B. Business‐type Activities 
 
A summary of changes in the Business‐type Activities long‐term liabilities at June 30, 2018 is as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending Due within Due more

Business‐type activities: balance Addi tions Deletions balance one year than one year

Water Revenue Refunding

Bonds , Series  1998A 965,000$       ‐$             (965,000)$     ‐$               ‐$             ‐$                    

Water Revenue Pari ty

Bonds , Series  2003 6,750,000      ‐               (6,750,000)    ‐                 ‐               ‐                      

2017 Insta l lment agreement ‐                 6,761,977     (258,284)       6,503,693      421,645       6,082,048            

Loan payable to SGVMWD 582,751         ‐               (145,688)       437,063         145,688       291,375               

Capi ta l  lease 139,036         ‐               (44,265)         94,771           46,314         48,457                 

Compensated absences 192,031         91,285          (143,841)       139,475         27,895         111,580               

Net OPEB l iabi l i ty 78,392           ‐               (27,717)         50,675           ‐               50,675                 

Net pens ion l iabi l i ty 2,219,601      278,579        ‐                2,498,180      ‐               2,498,180            

Tota l 10,926,811$  7,131,841$   (8,334,795)$  9,723,857$    641,542$     9,082,315$          

Sierra Madre Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998A‐Original issue $6,740,000 
 
In May 1998,  the City  entered  into an  installment  agreement with a  component unit of  the City,  the  Sierra Madre 
Financing Authority, to issue bonds totaling $6,740,000. The purpose of the Water Revenue Refunding Bonds was to 
assist the City in prepayment of its City  Loan  Agreement,  dated  November 1,  1988,  by  and  between  the  City  and  
the Authority.  These bonds mature annually through November 1, 2018 in amounts ranging from $200,000 to $495,000 
as of November 1, 1999. The  interest on the bonds  is payable semi‐annually on each May 1 and November 1, as of 
November 1, 1998. The interest rates of the bonds range from 3.65% to 5.00%.  During the current year, the bonds were 
refinanced by the 2018 Installment Agreement. 
 
Sierra Madre Water Revenue Parity Bonds, Series 2003‐Original issue $6,750,000 
 
In August 2003, the City entered into an installment agreement with a component unit of the City, the Sierra Madre 
Financing Authority, to issue bonds totaling $6,750,000. The purpose of the Water Revenue Refunding Bonds was to 
finance certain  improvements to the water production, treatment and distribution system of the City.   These bonds 
mature annually through November 1, 2018 in amounts ranging from $310,000 to $625,000. The interest on the bonds 
is payable semi‐annually on each May 1 and November 1, as of November 1, 2003. The interest rates of the bonds range 
from 5.14% to 5.25%.  The bonds are subject to special mandatory redemption, mandatory sinking fund redemption 
and redemption from optional prepayment of  installment payments prior to maturity.   During the current year, the 
bonds were refinanced by the 2018 Installment Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐47‐ 

6. LONG‐TERM DEBT, (continued) 
 

B. Business‐type Activities, (continued) 
 

2017 Installment Agreement 
 

In October 2017, the City entered into an installment agreement to issue debt totaling $6,761,977. The purpose of the 
issuance was to pay off the outstanding principal of the 1998 A Series and 2003 Series bonds.  The interest and principal 
is due semi‐annually with payments due on April 30 and October 31 each year.  Principal payments will be made through 
October 31, 2033 in amounts ranging from $158,711 to $266,253.  Principal and interest payments range from $272,078 
to $405,215.  The interest rate of the debt is currently 4.10%.  The City has pledged all of the net water revenues (as 
described in the agreement) to the payment of the debt until paid in full.  The current year debt service was $397,477 
and the net revenues were $2,946,657. The outstanding balance was $6,503,693 at June 30, 2018. 
 

Annual debt service requirements on this debt are as follows: 

Year ending

June 30,  Principal Interest Total

2019 421,645$            278,810$            700,455$           

2020 326,045              262,579              588,624             

2021 337,888              248,185              586,073             

2022 350,161              233,268              583,429             

2023 362,881              217,809              580,690             

2024‐2028 2,021,963           836,780              2,858,743          

2029‐2033 2,416,857           356,841              2,773,698          

2034 266,253              5,825                   272,078             

Totals 6,503,693$         2,440,097$         8,943,790$        

 
Loan Payable to San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District $1,456,875 
 

The City has identified equipment needed to help assure a reliable water supply, by replacing its Mira Monte Reservoir 
and Booster Station ("Reservoir Project").  Therefore, the City entered into a loan agreement with the San Gabriel Valley 
Municipal Water District to fund a portion of the reservoir cost in the amount of $1,456,875.  Proceeds of the loan were 
disbursed to the City during the duration of the Reservoir Project on a reimbursement basis.  Payments are due in annual 
installments of $145,688 for ten years. Notice of Completion was March 15, 2009 and was approved by City Council on 
April 28, 2009.  The SGVMWD has extended the first payment terms until July 1, 2012.  The outstanding balance of the 
loan payable to San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District was $437,063 at June 30, 2018. 
 

Annual debt service requirements on this loan are as follows: 

Year ending

June 30,  Principal Interest Total

2019 145,688$            ‐$                     145,688$           

2020 145,688              ‐                       145,688             

2021 145,687              ‐                       145,687             

Totals 437,063$            ‐$                     437,063$           
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐48‐ 

6. LONG‐TERM DEBT, (continued) 
 
B. Business‐type Activities, (continued) 
 
Capital Lease 
 

In January 2010, the City entered into a capital lease agreement to fund certain current and future major equipment 
purchases in the sewer fund. The balance of the capital lease payable was $94,771 at June 30, 2018.  
 

The calculation of the present value of the future lease payments are as follows: 
 

Future minimum lease payments Business‐type

for the year ending June 30,  activities

2019 50,702$                

2020 50,702                  

Subtotal 101,404                

Less: amount representing interest (6,633)                   

Present value of future lease payments 94,771$                

 
Accumulated depreciation on assets purchased through lease agreements are as follows: 
 

Assets:

Machinery and equipment 541,547$             

Less: accumulated depreciation (428,883)              

Total 112,664$             

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The remainder of this page left intentionally blank.   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐49‐ 

7. NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES 
 

A. Fund Balance Classifications 
 

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the City’s fund balances are as follows: 
 

General Non‐Major

Fund Governmental Funds Total

Restricted for:

Public works ‐$                        993,168$                     993,168$          

Public safety 15,802                   349,875                       365,677            

Community services/development ‐                          3,130,518                    3,130,518         

Streets projects ‐                          69,487                         69,487               

Culture and recreation ‐                          313,039                       313,039            

Committed to:

Debt service ‐                          11,422                         11,422               

Community services/development ‐                          569,187                       569,187            

Culture and recreation ‐                          314,538                       314,538            

Public safety ‐                          8,429                            8,429                 

Unassigned 8,736,391 (117,280)                      8,619,111         

Total  fund balance 8,752,193$           5,642,383$                 14,394,576$    

 
The City Council has adopted a minimum fund balance policy.  The policy requires 50% of General Fund revenues be set 
aside.  As of June 30, 2018, the amount set aside was $6,026,846. 
 
8. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; and natural disasters.  Below is the detail of how the City addresses these risks. 
 
California Joint Powers Insurance Authority 
 
A. Description of Self‐Insurance Pool Pursuant to Joint Powers Agreement  
 
The City of Sierra Madre is a member of the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (Authority).  The Authority is 
composed of 116 California public  entities  and  is organized under  a  joint powers  agreement pursuant  to California 
Government Code §6500 et seq.  The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and administer programs for the pooling of 
self‐insured  losses,  to purchase excess  insurance or  reinsurance,  and  to arrange  for group purchased  insurance  for 
property and other lines of coverage.  The California JPIA began covering claims of its members in 1978.  Each member 
government has an elected official as its representative on the Board of Directors.  The Board operates through a nine‐
member Executive Committee. 
 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐50‐ 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT, (continued) 
 
B. Self‐Insurance Programs of the Authority 
 
Each member pays an annual contribution at the beginning of the coverage period.  A retrospective adjustment is then 
conducted annually  thereafter,  for  coverage  years  2012‐13  and prior.    Retrospective  adjustments  are  scheduled  to 
continue  indefinitely on coverage years 2012‐13 and prior, until all claims  incurred during those coverage years are 
closed, on a pool‐wide basis.  This subsequent cost re‐allocation among members, based on actual claim.  After the close 
of the coverage period, outstanding claims are valued.  A retrospective deposit computation is then conducted annually 
thereafter until all claims incurred during the coverage period are closed on a pool‐wide basis.  This subsequent cost re‐
allocation among members based on actual claim development, can result in adjustments of either funds or additional 
deposits required.  Coverage years 2013‐14 and forward are not subject to routine annual retrospective adjustment. 
 
The total funding requirement for self‐insurance programs is estimated using actuarial models and pre‐funded through 
the annual contribution.  Costs are allocated to individual agencies based on exposure (payroll) and experience (claims) 
relative to other members of the risk‐sharing pool.  Additional information regarding the cost allocation methodology 
is provided below. 
 
Liability 
 
In the liability program claims are pooled separately between police and general government exposures.  (1) The payroll 
of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members.  A variable credibility factor is determined for 
each member, which establishes the weight applied to payroll and the weight applied to losses within the formula.  (2) 
The first layer of losses includes incurred costs up to $30,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of 
the pool’s total incurred costs within the first layer.  (3) The second layer of losses includes incurred costs from $30,000 
to $750,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the second 
layer.  (4) Incurred costs from $750,000 to $50 million, are distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within 
the first and second loss layers.  
 
For 2017‐18 the Authority pooled retention is $2 million per occurrence, with reinsurance to $20 million, and excess 
insurance  to  $50  million.    The  Authority’s  reinsurance  contracts  are  subject  to  the  following  additional  pooled 
restrictions:  (a) $2.5 million annual aggregate deductible in the $3 million in excess of $2 million layer, and (b) $3 million 
annual aggregate deductible in the $5 million in excess of $10 million layer.  There is a third annual aggregate deductible 
in the amount of $2.5 million in the $5 million in excess of $5 million layer, however it is fully covered under a separate 
policy and therefore not retained by the Authority. 
 
The overall  coverage  limit  for each member  including all  layers of coverage  is $50 million per occurrence.   Costs of 
covered claims for subsidence losses have a sub‐limit of $30 million per occurrence. 
 
Workers’ Compensation 
 
In the workers’ compensation program, claims are pooled separately between public safety (police and fire) and general 
government exposures.  (1) The payroll of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members.  A variable 
credibility factor is determined for each member, which establishes the weight applied to payroll and the weight applied 
to losses within the formula.  (2) The first layer of losses includes incurred costs up to $50,000 for each occurrence and 
is evaluated as a percentage of  the pool’s  total  incurred costs within  the  first  layer.   (3) The  second  layer of  losses 
includes incurred costs from $50,000 to $100,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s 
total incurred costs within the second layer.  (4) Incurred costs from $100,000 to statutory limits are distributed based 
on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and second loss layers. 
 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐51‐ 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT, (continued) 
 
B. Self‐Insurance Programs of the Authority, (continued) 
 
Workers’ Compensation, (continued) 
 
For 2016‐17 the Authority’s pooled retention is $2 million per occurrence, with reinsurance to statutory limits under 
California Workers’ Compensation Law. 
 
Employer’s Liability losses are pooled among members to $2 million.  Coverage from $2 million to $5 million is purchased 
as part of a reinsurance policy, and Employer’s Liability losses from $5 million to $10 million are pooled among members. 
 
C. Purchased Insurance 
 
Pollution Legal Liability Insurance  
 
The City of Sierra Madre participates in the pollution legal  liability insurance program which is available through the 
Authority.  The policy covers sudden and gradual pollution of scheduled property, streets, and storm drains owned by 
the City of Sierra Madre.  Coverage is on a claims‐made basis.  There is a $50,000 deductible.  The Authority has a limit 
of $50 million for the 3‐year period from July 1, 2015 through July 1, 2018.  Each member of the Authority has a $10 
million sub‐limit during the 3‐year term of the policy. 
 
Property Insurance  
 
The  City  of  Sierra Madre  participates  in  the  all‐risk  property  protection  program  of  the  Authority.   This  insurance 
protection is underwritten by several insurance companies. City of Sierra Madre property is currently insured according 
to a schedule of covered property submitted by the City of Sierra Madre to the Authority.  City of Sierra Madre property 
currently has all‐risk property  insurance protection  in the amount of $76,424,449.  There  is a $5,000 deductible per 
occurrence except for non‐emergency vehicle insurance which has a $2,500 deductible.  Premiums for the coverage are 
paid annually and are not subject to retrospective adjustments. 
 
Earthquake and Flood Insurance  
 
The  City  of  Sierra Madre  purchases  earthquake  and  flood  insurance  on  a  portion  of  its  property.   The  earthquake 
insurance is part of the property protection insurance program of the Authority.  City of Sierra Madre property currently 
has earthquake protection in the amount of $34,896,081.  There is a deductible of 5% per unit of value with a minimum 
deductible of $100,000.  Premiums for the coverage are paid annually and are not subject to retrospective adjustments. 
 
Crime Insurance   
 
The City of Sierra Madre purchases crime insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 with a $2,500 deductible.  The 
fidelity coverage is provided through the Authority.  Premiums are paid annually and are not subject to retrospective 
adjustments. 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐52‐ 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT, (continued) 
 
C. Purchased Insurance, (continued) 
 
Special Event Tenant User Liability Insurance   
 
The City of  Sierra Madre  further protects  against  liability damages by  requiring  tenant users of  certain property  to 
purchase low‐cost tenant user liability insurance for certain activities on agency property.  The insurance premium is 
paid by the tenant user and is paid to the City of Sierra Madre according to a schedule.  The City of Sierra Madre then 
pays for the insurance.  The insurance is arranged by the Authority. 
 
D. Adequacy of Protection 
 
During the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protection experienced settlements or judgments that 
exceeded pooled or insured coverage.  There were also no significant reductions in pooled or insured liability coverage 
in 2017‐18. 
 
E. Claims Liability 
 
Retrospective deposits and refunds are cost allocation adjustments to prior coverage periods.  Some claims take many 
years to resolve and over time their estimated value changes. The retrospective adjustments are calculated annually 
and take into consideration all the changes in claim values that occurred during the most recent year.   
 
As of June 30, 2018, the City paid off  its retrospective deposit balance for the Liability Program.   The current claims 
liability for both programs of $270,819 is reported as claims payable current liabilities on the Statement of Net Position. 
 
9. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
The City has made available to its employees a deferred compensation plan (Plan). The Plan permits employees to defer 
a portion of their salary until future years.  All amounts of compensation deferred under the Plan, all property and rights 
purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts are held in such trust accounts for the 
exclusive benefit of  the employee participants and  their beneficiaries.   The accumulated assets of  the Plan are not 
required to be reported in the accompanying financial statements.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The remainder of this page left intentionally blank. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐53‐ 

10.  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 
A. General Information About the Pension Plan 

 
Plan Description 
 
All  qualified  permanent  and  probationary  employees  are  eligible  to  participate  in  the  Public  Agency  Cost‐Sharing 
Multiple‐Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Plan) administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS.) The Plan consists of individual rate plans (benefit tiers) within a safety risk pool (police and fire) and 
a miscellaneous risk pool (all other.) Plan assets may be used to pay benefits for any employer rate plan of the safety 
and miscellaneous pools. Accordingly, rate plans within the safety or miscellaneous pools are not separate plans under 
GASB Statement No. 68. Individual employers may sponsor more than one rate plan in the miscellaneous or safety risk 
pools. The City of Sierra Madre sponsors five rate plans (two miscellaneous and three safety). Benefit provisions under 
the Plan are established by State statute and the City of Sierra Madre resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports 
that  include  a  full  description  of  the  pension  plan  regarding  benefit  provisions,  assumptions  and  membership 
information that can be found on the CalPERS’ website, at www.calpers.ca.gov. 
 
Benefits Provided 
 
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan 
members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to 
one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily 
reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non‐duty disability benefits after 5 years of service. The death benefit is 
one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. 
The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 
 
The Plan operates under the provisions of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL), the California Public 
Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), and the regulations, procedures and policies adopted by the CalPERS 
Board of Administration. The Plan’s authority to establish and amend the benefit terms are set by the PERL and PEPRA, 
and may be amended by the California state legislature and in some cases require approval by the CalPERS Board.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The remainder of this page left intentionally blank. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐54‐ 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
A. General Information About the Pension Plan, (continued) 
 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018 are summarized as follows: 
 

Hire date

Prior to

January 1, 2013

On or after

January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 2.5% @ 55 2% @ 62

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service

Benefit payments monthly for l ife monthly for l ife

Retirement age 50 ‐ 55 52 ‐ 67

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 2.5% 1.0% to 2.5%

Required employer contribution rates 10.848% + $470,213 6.908% + $117

Hire date

Prior to

January 1, 2013

On or after

January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 3% @ 55 2.7% @ 57

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service

Benefit payments monthly for l ife monthly for l ife

Retirement age 50‐55 50 ‐ 57

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.4% to 3% 2.0% to 2.7%

Required employer contribution rates 19.520% + $389,766 12.729% + $322

Miscellaneous

Safety

 
 

Contributions 
 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the employer contribution 
rates  for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by  the actuary and shall be effective on  the  July 1 
following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial 
valuation process. For public agency cost‐sharing plans covered by either the Miscellaneous or Safety risk pools, the 
Plan’s actuarially determined rate is based on the estimated amount necessary to pay the Plan’s allocated share of the 
risk pool’s costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, and any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is 
required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. 
Employer contribution rates may change  if plan contracts are amended. Payments made by the employer to satisfy 
contribution requirements that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution requirements are 
classified as plan member contributions. Employer contributions to the Plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 were 
$1,418,218.  The  actual  employer  payments  of  $1,272,198 made  to CalPERS by  the City  of  Sierra Madre during  the 
measurement  period  ended  June  30,  2017  differed  from  the  City  of  Sierra  Madre’s  proportionate  share  of  the 
employer’s contributions of $1,199,981 by $72,217, which  is being amortized over  the expected average  remaining 
service lifetime in the Public Agency Cost‐Sharing Multiple Employer Plan. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐55‐ 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
B. Net Pension Liability 
 
The City of Sierra Madre’s net pension liability for the (each) Plan is measured as the total pension liability,  less the 
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2017, using 
an annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 rolled forward to June 30, 2017 using standard update procedures. A 
summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net pension liability is as follows. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability 
 

Valuation date June 30, 2016

Measurement date June 30, 2017

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Asset valuation method Market Value of Assets

Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate

Inflation 2.75%

Salary increases (1) 3.3% ‐ 14.2%

Investment rate of return (2)

Mortality rate table (3)

Post retirement benefit increase

(1) Annual increases vary by category, entry age, and duration of service

(2) Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses; includes inflation

(3) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table 

includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more 

details on this table, please refer to the 2014 experience study report.

7.15%

7.65%

Derived using CALPERS' membership 

data for all  Funds

Contract COLA up to 2.75% until  

purchasing power protection 

allowance floor on purchasing 

power applies, 2.75% thereafter

 
 
All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study  for  the  period  from  1997  to  2011,  including  updates  to  salary  increase, mortality  and  retirement  rates.  The 
Experience Study report can be obtained at CalPERS’ website at www.calpers.ca.gov. 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐56‐ 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
B. Net Pension Liability, (continued) 
 
Change of Assumptions 
 
For the measurement date June 30, 2017, the financial reporting discount rate for the PERF C was lowered from 7.65 

percent to 7.15 percent. 

Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. To determine whether the municipal 
bond rate should be used in the calculation of the discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would 
most  likely  result  in  a  discount  rate  that would  be  different  from  the  actuarially  assumed  discount  rate.  The  tests 
revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.65 percent discount rate is appropriate and the use of 
the municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long‐term expected discount rate of 7.65 percent is 
applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The cash flows used in the testing were developed 
assuming that both members and employers will make their  required contributions on time and as scheduled  in all 
future years. The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can 
be obtained at CalPERS’ website, at www.calpers.ca.gov. 
 
The long‐term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building‐block method in 
which best‐estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long‐term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short‐term and long‐term market 
return expectations as well as the expected pension fund (PERF) cash flows. Taking into account historical returns of all 
the PERF asset classes (which includes the agent plan and two cost‐sharing plans or PERF A, B and C funds), expected 
compound  (geometric)  returns were calculated over the short‐term (first 10 years) and the  long‐term (11‐60 years) 
using a building‐block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short‐term and long‐term, the present 
value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent 
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short‐
term and long‐term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated 
above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The remainder of this page left intentionally blank. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐57‐ 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
B. Net Pension Liability, (continued) 
 
Discount Rate, (continued) 
 
The following table reflects long‐term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated using 
the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. The target allocation shown 
was adopted by the CalPERS Board effective on July 1, 2014. 
 

Asset class

Current target 

allocation

Real return years 

1 ‐ 10
1

Real return 

years 11+
2

Global equity 47.0% 4.90% 5.38%

Global fixed income 19.0% 0.80% 2.27%

Inflation sensitive 6.0% 0.60% 1.39%

Private equity 12.0% 6.60% 6.63%

Real estate 11.0% 2.80% 5.21%

Infrastructure and forestland 3.0% 3.90% 5.36%

Liquidity 2.0% (0.40%) (0.90%)

Total 100%

1
 An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period

2
 An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period  

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Information about the pension plans’ assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
and fiduciary net position are presented in CalPERS’ audited financial statements, which are publicly available reports 
that  can  be  obtained  at  CalPERS’  website,  at  www.calpers.ca.gov.  The  plans’  fiduciary  net  position  and  additions 
to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis used by the pension plan, 
which  is  the economic  resources measurement  focus and  the accrual basis of accounting. Benefits and  refunds are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
The plan fiduciary net position disclosed in the GASB 68 accounting valuation report may differ from the plan assets 
reported in the funding actuarial valuation report due to several reasons. First, for the accounting valuations, CalPERS 
must  keep  items  such  as  deficiency  reserves,  fiduciary  self‐insurance  and Other  Post‐Employment  Benefits  (OPEB) 
expense included as assets. These amounts are excluded for rate setting purposes in the funding actuarial valuation. In 
addition, differences may result from early Comprehensive Annual Financial Report closing and final reconciled reserves. 
 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐58‐ 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
C. Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 
 
The following table shows the Plans’ proportionate share of the net pension liability over the measurement period. 

 

Plan Total Pension 

Liabil ity

(a)

Plan Fiduciary Net 

Position

(b)

Plan Net Pension 

Liabil ity

(c ) = (a) ‐ (b)

Balance at: 6/30/2016 (VD*) 42,664,790$                30,333,674$                     12,331,116$                     

Balance at: 6/30/2017 (MD*) 46,888,321                  33,009,542                        13,878,779                       

Net Changes during 2016‐17 4,223,531                     2,675,868                          1,547,663                          

Increase (decrease)

 
* Valuation Date (VD), Measurement Date (MD) 

 
The Local Government’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability for the Plan 
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 rolled forward 
to June 30, 2017 using standard update procedures. The Local Government’s proportion of the net pension liability was 
determined by CalPERS using the output from the Actuarial Valuation System and the fiduciary net position, as provided 
in the CalPERS Public Agency Cost‐Sharing Allocation Methodology Report, which is a publicly available report that can 
be  obtained  at  CalPERS’  website,  at  www.calpers.ca.gov.  The  Local  Government’s  proportionate  share  of  the  net 
pension liability for the Plan as of the June 30, 2016 and 2017 measurement dates was as follows: 
 

Misc Safety Total

Proportion ‐ June 30, 2015 0.20243% 0.10231% 0.14251%

Proportion ‐ June 30, 2016 0.20177% 0.09916% 0.13995%

Change ‐ increase/(decrease) ‐0.00066% ‐0.00315% ‐0.00256%

 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate  
 
The following presents the City of Sierra Madre’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of the 
measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the net pension liability would 
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage‐point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage‐point higher 
(8.15 percent) than the current rate: 
 

Discount rate ‐1% Current discount rate Discount rate +1%

6.15% 7.15% 8.15%

Employer's Net Pension Liabil ity ‐ Misc 11,562,891$              7,953,893$                       4,964,856$               

Employer's Net Pension Liabil ity ‐ Safety 8,814,175                   5,924,886                          3,563,036                 

Employer's Net Pension Liabil ity ‐ Total 20,377,066$              13,878,779$                     8,527,892$               

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐59‐ 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
C. Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability, (continued) 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in this disclosure. 
 
Recognition of Gains and Losses 
 
Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in 
pension expense systematically over time. 
 
The  first amortized amounts are  recognized  in pension expense  for  the year  the gain or  loss occurs. The  remaining 
amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred  inflows of  resources  related  to pensions and are  to be 
recognized in future pension expense. 
 
The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss: 
 

Difference between projected  
  and actual earnings  5 year straight‐line amortization 

 
All other amounts  Straight‐line amortization over the average expected remaining 

service  lives  of  all  members  that  are  provided  with  benefits 
(active,  inactive  and  retired)  as  of  the  beginning  of  the 
measurement period 

 
The expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) is calculated by dividing the total future service years by the 
total number of plan participants (active,  inactive, and retired)  in the Public Agency Cost‐Sharing Multiple‐Employer 
Plan (PERF C). 
 
The EARSL for the Plan for the 2016‐17 measurement period is 3.8 years, which was obtained by dividing the total service 
years of 490,088  (the sum of  remaining service  lifetimes of  the active employees) by 130,595  (the  total number of 
participants: active, inactive, and retired). Note that inactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes 
equal to 0. Also note that total future service is based on the members’ probability of decrementing due to an event 
other than receiving a cash refund. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The remainder of this page left intentionally blank. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐60‐ 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 

 
D. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
As of the start of the measurement period (July 1, 2016), the net pension liability for the plan was $12,331,116.  For the 
measurement  period  ending  June 30,  2017  (the  measurement  date),  the  City  of  Sierra  Madre  incurred  a  pension 
expense of $2,140,685 for the Plan. 
 
As of June 30, 2018, the City of Sierra Madre has deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
as follows: 

 
Deferred outflows 

of resources

Deferred inflows 

of resources

Changes of assumptions 1,969,460$              150,586$            

Differences between expected and actual 

experience 69,130                      142,146               

Differences between projected and actual 

investment earnings 438,309                   ‐                        

Differences between employer's contributions 

and proportionate share of contributions
149,097                   173,324               

Change in employer's proportion 232,785                   81,203                 

Pension contributions made subsequent to 

measurement date 1,418,218                ‐                        

Totals 4,276,999$              547,259$            

 
These amounts above are net of outflows and inflows recognized in the 2017‐2018 measurement period expense. The 
$1,418,218 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
will be recognized as a reduction of  the net pension  liability  in  the year ended June 30, 2019. Amounts reported as 
deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in future pension expense 
as follows: 
 

Fiscal year ending June 30: Misc Safety Total

2019 356,999$                    198,687$                           555,686$                  

2020 648,622                      598,992                             1,247,614                 

2021 387,885                      378,933                             766,818                     

2022 (147,013)                     (111,583)                            (258,596)                   

2023 ‐                               ‐                                      ‐                              

Thereafter ‐                               ‐                                      ‐                              

Totals 1,246,493$                1,065,029$                       2,311,522$               

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐61‐ 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 

 
E. Payable to the Pension Plan 
 
At June 30, 2018, the City of Sierra Madre reported a payable of $‐0‐ for the outstanding amount of contributions to the 
pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
11. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN 
 
The City provides pension benefits for all of its part‐time employees through a defined contribution plan. In a defined 
contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus  investment earnings. The plan  is 
administered as part of the Accumulation Program for Part‐time and Limited‐service Employees (The APPLE Plan) all 
part‐time employees are eligible to participate from the date of employment. Federal legislation requires contributions 
of at least 7.5% to a retirement plan; the employee pays the entire 7.5% of the contribution. The contributions for each 
employee (and interest earned by the accounts) are fully vested immediately. The 457(b) pension plan for part‐time 
employees was implemented in response to the Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1990 (OBRA 90) that required all part‐
time employees working for governmental agencies to  include these employees in Social Security (Old Age Security and 
Disability Insurance ‐ OASDI) or a qualified alternative to Social Security covered under section IRC 3121. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City’s payroll covered by the plan was $400,169. The employees contributed 100% 
of the contributions. 
 
12.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
A. Grant Audits 
 
The City participates in Federal and State grant programs. No cost disallowance is expected, as a result of these audits; 
however,  these programs are  subject  to  further examination by  the grantors.      Expenditures,  if  any, which may be 
disallowed by the granting agencies, cannot be determined at this time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be 
immaterial. 
 
B. Litigation 
 
The City is presently involved in certain matters of litigation that have arisen in the normal course of conducting City 
business. City management believes, based upon consultation with the City Attorney, that these cases, in the aggregate, 
are not expected to result in a material adverse financial impact on the City beyond that already accrued in the basic 
financial statements. Additionally, City management believes that sufficient resources are available to the City to cover 
any potential losses, should an unfavorable outcome arise. 
 
C. Compliance with Laws and Regulations 
 
The City has complied with the California State Controller's requirements by filing its audited financial statements in a 
timely manner. Management is working to prepare and file the audited financial statements to fulfill such regulatory 
requirements. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐62‐ 

13. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
Plan Description 
 

The City administers a single‐employer defined benefit plan which provides medical benefits to eligible retirees and 
their  spouses.  Medical  coverage  is  currently  provided  through  CalPERS  as  permitted  under  the  Public  Employees’ 
Medical  and  Hospital  Care  Act  (PEMHCA).  This  coverage  requires  the  employee  to  satisfy  the  requirements  for 
retirement under CalPERS: either (a) attainment of age 50 (age 52, if new to PERS on or after January 1, 2013) with 5 
years of State or public City service or (b) approved disability retirement.  The Plan does not issue separate financial 
statements. 
 

Benefits provided: The City has participated in the CalPERS medical program since 1995 for all employees other than 
Police Officer’s  Association  (POA)  employees,  and  since  1999  for  POA employees.  As  such,  the  City  is  obligated  to 
contribute toward the cost of retiree medical coverage for the retiree’s and spouse’s lifetime so long as they remain 
eligible for and covered by this medical program. The City provides additional benefits based on employee agreements 
beyond those required under PEMHCA. The following is a summary of these benefits:  

 All  employees who  retire  from  the  City  (including  disability  retirement)  and  continue  coverage  in  the  CalPERS 
medical program are eligible for the benefit provided in the PEMHCA resolutions.  

 Those resolutions provide for the City to contribute toward retiree premiums by multiplying together the following 
items:  
o 5% times  
o The number of prior years the City has been contracted with PEMHCA times the monthly contracted PEMCHA 

contribution the employer makes towards active employee health benefits, which was $128 per month in 2017 
and increased to $133 per month in 2018. 

The City’s monthly PEMCHA contribution toward health plan benefits for retirees during 2018 are: 

 $133 for CEA (and other non‐POA) retirees, since contracted with CalPERS over 20 years. 
 $113.05 for the POA retirees, calculated as 5% times 19 years times $133. 

 

As noted, this amount will increase until the contributions for retirees are equal to that for active employees.  
 

In addition to the benefits described above, the City also provides the following monthly subsidy toward retiree (single 
coverage) medical premiums until the retiree reaches age 65. 
 

 For CEA (and other non‐POA) employees hired before October 15, 1995 and POA employees hired on or before 
December 22, 2011 who meet the requirements for CalPERS retirement (including industrial disability retirement), 
5% times the number of years worked for the City times the lowest premium in the Los Angeles area region.  

 For  CEA  (and  other  non‐POA)  employees  hired  on  or  after  October  15,  1995  and  POA  employees  hired  after 
December 22, 2011 who retire (including disability retirement) at age 60 or older with at least 30 years of service 
with the City, 100% of the actual premium in the LA area region.  

 

The lowest cost HMO plan premium in the LA area region was $404.32 per month in 2018. 
 

Employee covered 
 

As of the June 30, 2017 valuation, the following current and former employees are covered by the benefit terms under 
the plan: 
 

Active employees 85

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 21

Total 106

 
51 employees are currently enrolled with 34 waiving coverage. 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐63‐ 

13. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS, (continued) 
 
Contributions 
 

The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by the City Council.  
The City makes  contributions  to eligible  retirees  for  their medical plan premiums when  the  retiree enrolls  in a City 

sponsored health plan. The current monthly amount paid by the City varies depending on the retiree’s bargaining unit 

at retirement. These amounts do not increase in future years to account for inflation. The City provided amounts are 

detailed  in  the  Summary  of  Principal  Plan  Provisions.  For  the  fiscal  year  ended  June  30,  2018,  the  City’s  cash 

contributions  were  $95,572  in  payments  for  premiums.    The  City  voluntarily  prefunds  its  annual  contribution 

requirement (i.e. to set aside funds in advance of when medical premiums become due).   
 

Net OPEB liability 
 

The City’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2017, based on the following actuarial methods and 
assumptions: 
 

Discount rate 6.73%

Inflation 2.75%

Salary increases 3.25%

Mortality rate MacLeod Watts Scale 2017 applied generationally

Healthcare trend 2018 actual

2019 7.50%

2020 7.00%

2021 6.50%

2022 6.00%

2023 5.50%

2024 5.00%

thereafter 5.00%  
 

Discount rate 
 

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.73% percent.  The discount rate is the expected long‐

term  return  on  trust  assets.    The  projection  of  cash  flows  used  to  determine  the  discount  rate  assumed  that  City 

contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates.    
 

The following table reflects long‐term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated using 
the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. 
 

Asset class

Current target 

allocation

Expected longterm 

rate of return
1

Global equity 40.0% 4.90%

Fixed income 39.0% 0.80%

Inflation sensitive 10.0% 0.60%

Real estate 8.0% 6.60%

Commodities 3.0% 2.80%

Total 100%

1
 An expected inflation of 3.0%   

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐64‐ 

13. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS, (continued) 
 
Changes in the net OPEB liability 
 
The changes in the net OPEB liability for the plan are as follows: 
 

Net OPEB

Total OPEB Plan fiduciary liabil ity/(asset)

l iabil ity (a) net position (b) (a)‐(b)=(c)

Balance at June 30, 2017

(Valuation date June 30, 2016) 1,914,618$        1,477,443$        437,175$           

Changes recognized for the measurement period:

Service cost 107,444              ‐                       107,444             

Interest cost 132,432              ‐                       132,432             

Expected investment income ‐                       99,406                (99,406)              

Employer contributions ‐                       108,541              (108,541)            

Administrative expenses ‐                       (782)                     782                     

Benefit payments (108,541)            (108,541)             ‐                      

Assumption changes 13,329                ‐                       13,329               

Plan experience (186,345)            ‐                       (186,345)            

Investment experience ‐                       15,348                (15,348)              

Net changes (41,681)               113,972              (155,653)            

Balance at June 30, 2018

(Measurement date June 30, 2017 1,872,937$        1,591,415$        281,522$           

 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage 
point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement period ended June 30, 2017: 
 

1% decrease Current rate 1% increase

Net OPEB liabil ity 483,080$            281,522$               110,740$           

Discount rate

 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City if it were calculated using health care cost trend rates that are 
one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement period ended June 
30, 2017: 
 

1% decrease Current rate 1% increase

Net OPEB liabil ity 75,563$              281,522$               577,779$           

Medical cost inflation

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐65‐ 

13. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS, (continued) 
 
Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 

Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in OPEB expense 
systematically over time. 
 

Amounts  are  first  recognized  in  OPEB  expense  for  the  year  the  gain  or  loss  occurs.  The  remaining  amounts  are 
categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future 
OPEB expense. 
 

The recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss: 
 

Assumption changes and experience Expected average remaining service

gains and losses life (EARSL) 9.09 years

Difference between projected and actual

earnings 5 year straight‐l ine amortization  
 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized OPEB expense of $119,156. As of fiscal year ended June 
30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

Deferred outflows Deferred inflows

of resources of resources

Changes in assumptions 11,861$                 ‐$                    

Differences between expected

and actual experience ‐                          165,853             

Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on investments ‐                          12,278                

Contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date 95,572                    ‐                      

Totals 107,433$               178,131$           

 
The  $95,572  reported  as  deferred  outflows  of  resources  related  to  contributions  subsequent  to  the  June  30,  2018 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as expense as follows: 
 

For the fiscal Recognized net

year ending deferred outflows

June 30, 2018 (inflows) of resources

2019 (22,086)$                       

2020 (22,086)                         

2021 (22,086)                         

2022 (22,086)                         

2023 (19,026)                         

Thereafter (58,900)                           
   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐66‐ 

14. SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
 
Successor Agency Long‐Term Debt 
 
The debt of the Successor Agency as of June 30, 2018 is as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending Due within  Due more than 

Successor Agency balance Additions Deletions balance one year one year

Refunding Bond,

Series 1998A 1,085,000$  ‐$          (345,000)$  740,000$      360,000$   380,000$         

Compensated

absences 2,562             ‐             (2,562)         ‐                 ‐              ‐                    

Total

1,087,562$  ‐$          (347,562)$  740,000$      360,000$   380,000$         

 
Sierra Madre Tax Increment Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998A ‐ Original Issue $5,175,000 
 
In May 1998, the Sierra Madre Financing Authority issued the Tax Increment Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998A 
on behalf of the Sierra Madre Community Redevelopment Agency in prepayment of its Agency Loan Agreement dated 
November 1, 1988, by and between the Agency and the Authority.  These bonds mature annually through November 1, 
2019 in the amounts ranging from $155,000 to $380,000 as of November 1, 1998. The interest on the bonds is payable 
semi‐annually on May 1 and November 1, as of November 1, 1999.  
 
The bonds are special obligations of the Authority secured by and payable solely as of the tax rate of the Tax Increment 
Revenue  Refunding  Bonds,  Series  1998A  ranging  from  3.8%  to  5.0%.  The  bonds  are  subject  to mandatory  sinking 
redemption and redemption from optional  loan prepayments prior  to maturity. The outstanding balance of  the Tax 
Increment Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998A was $740,000 at June 30, 2018. 
 
Annual debt service requirements on these bonds are as follows: 
 

Year ending

June 30,  Principal Interest Total

2019 360,000$          28,000$            388,000$         

2020 380,000            9,500                 389,500           

Totals 740,000$          37,500$            777,500$         

 
   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐67‐ 

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 
Subsequent  to  year  end,  the  City  Council  approved,  and  the  City made,  a  payment  to  CALPERS  in  the  amount  of 
$5,000,000 in order to reduce the City’s unfunded actuarial liability. 
 
In July 2018, the City renegotiated the interest rate on its 2017 Installment Agreement.  The interest rate went from 
4.3754% to 4.100% per annum. 
 
16. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 
 
During  the  current  fiscal  year,  the  City  implemented  GASB  No.  75,  Accounting  and  Financial  Reporting  for 
Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions.  In order to implement the standard, Net position has been restated as 
follows:  

Amount Amount

Governmental activities: Business‐type activities:

Net position, beginning of year 190,889,470$         Net position, beginning of year 19,481,301$          

Change in accounting principle (652,340)                  Change in accounting principle (59,155)                   

Net position, ending of year, as restated 190,237,130$         Net position, ending of year, as restated 19,422,146$          

Water Enterprise: Sewer Enterprise:

Net position, beginning of year 15,535,727$           Net position, beginning of year 3,586,912$            

Change in accounting principle (32,864)                    Change in accounting principle (26,291)                   

Net position, ending of year, as restated 15,502,863$           Net position, ending of year, as restated 3,560,621$            

Administration Internal Service:

Net position, beginning of year 234,397$                

Change in accounting principle (23,004)                   

Net position, ending of year, as restated 211,393$                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The remainder of this page left intentionally blank. 



 

 

City of Sierra Madre, California 
Village of the Foothills 

 
 
 

 
    
 
 

Required Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ending 

June 30, 2018 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

 
 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐68‐ 

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 
 
The City adopts an annual budget prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting for governmental funds. The 
City Manager or a designee  is  authorized  to  transfer budgeted amounts between  the accounts of any department. 
Revisions that alter the total appropriations of any department or fund may be approved by the City Council. Prior year 
appropriations lapse unless they are approved for carryover into the following fiscal year.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The remainder of this page left intentionally blank.



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐69‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Property taxes 6,039,000$        6,039,000$        6,198,020$    159,020$         

Other taxes 3,250,000           3,250,000           3,228,635 (21,365)            

Charges for services 494,800              494,800              638,402 143,602           

Intergovernmental ‐                       ‐                       27,043 27,043             

Licenses and permits 932,300              932,300              1,127,303 195,003           

Fines and forfeitures 155,100              155,100              118,324 (36,776)            

Investment income 31,000                31,000                52,055 21,055             

Miscellaneous 30,500                30,500                663,909 633,409           

Total revenues 10,932,700        10,932,700        12,053,691    1,120,991        

Expenditures:

Current:

General government:

Administrative Services 2,309,300           2,309,300           2,353,805      (44,505)            

Elected and Appointed 316,300              316,300              255,872          60,428             

  Total general government 2,625,600           2,625,600           2,609,677      15,923             

Public safety:

Police 3,590,900           3,590,900           3,275,227      315,673           

Fire  1,939,400           1,939,400           1,843,797      95,603             

  Total public safety 5,530,300           5,530,300           5,119,024      411,276           

Public works 574,900              574,900              619,575          (44,675)            

Development 1,181,900           1,294,400           1,437,228      (142,828)          

Culture and recreation:

Community Services 265,700              265,700              201,743          63,957             

Library Services 797,300              813,900              633,197          180,703           

  Total culture and recreation 1,063,000           1,079,600           834,940          244,660           

Total expenditures 10,975,700        11,104,800        10,620,444    484,356           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

   over (under) expenditures (43,000)               (172,100)             1,433,247      1,605,347        

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 100,000              100,000              ‐                   (100,000)          

Transfers out (44,000)               (44,000)               (109,172)        (65,172)            

Total other financing sources (uses) 56,000                56,000                (109,172)        (165,172)          

Net change to fund balance 13,000                (116,100)             1,324,075      1,440,175        

Fund balance, beginning of year 7,428,118           7,428,118           7,428,118      ‐                    

Fund balance, end of year 7,441,118$        7,312,018$        8,752,193$    1,440,175$     

 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐70‐ 

1.  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (PERS) 
 
Schedule of Employer’s Proportionate Share of the Plan’s Net Pension Liability and related Ratios as of the 
Measurement Date – Last 10 Years* 
 

6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017

Employer's Proportion of the Collective Net Pension Liability
1

0.14780% 0.14779% 0.14251% 0.13995%

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Collective Net Pension Liability 9,021,417$    10,143,930$    12,331,116$    13,878,779$   

Covered payroll 4,688,122$    4,841,779$      4,869,024$      5,243,636$     

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Collective Net Pension Liability

  as a Percentage of the Employer's Covered‐employee Payroll 192.43% 209.51% 253.26% 264.68%

Pension Plan's Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total

  Pension Liability 77.90% 75.43% 71.10% 70.40%

* = Only four years of data is avai lable

1
Proportion of the collective net pension liabil ity represents the plan's proportion of PERF C, which includes both the 

Miscellaneous and Safety Risk Pools excluding the 1959 Survivors Risk Pool

Measurement date

 
   



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐71‐ 

1.  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (PERS), (continued) 
 

Schedule of Plan Contributions – Last 10 Years* 
 

2015 2016 2017 2018

Actuarially Determined Contribution 1,004,211$   1,175,439$   1,272,198$   1,418,218$  

Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially 

Determined Contribution (1,004,211)    (1,175,439)    (1,272,198)    (1,418,218)   

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$              

Covered payroll 4,841,779$   4,869,024$   5,243,636$   4,566,971$  

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 20.74% 24.14% 24.26% 31.05%

Notes to Schedule:

Change in Benefit Terms: None

* = Only four years of data is available.

Fiscal year

Changes in Assumptions: In 2017, the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent. In 2016,

there were no changes. In 2015, amounts reported reflect an adjustment of the discount rate from 7.5 percent (net of

administrative expense) to 7.65 percent (without a reduction for pension plan administrative expense). In 2014, amounts

reported were based on the 7.5 percent discount rate.



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐72‐ 

2.  OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 

Schedule of Change’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios as of the Measurement Date – Last 10 Years* 
 

Measurement date

6/30/2017

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost 107,444$                

Interest cost 132,432                  

Plan experience (186,345)                 

Changes in assumptions 13,329                     

Changes in benefit terms ‐                           

Benefit payments (108,541)                 

Net change in Total OPEB Liability (41,681)                   

Total OPEB Liability ‐ beginning 1,914,618               

Total OPEB Liability ‐ ending (a) 1,872,937$             

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contribution ‐ employer 108,541$                

Expected investment income 99,406                     

Investment experience 15,348                     

Benefit payments (108,541)                 

Administrative expense (782)                         

Net change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 113,972                  

Plan Fiduciary Net Position ‐ beginning 1,477,443               

Plan Fiduciary Net Position ‐ ending (b) 1,591,415$             

Net OPEB Liability ‐ ending (a) ‐ (b) 281,522$                

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB l iabil ity 84.97%

Covered employee payroll 4,937,800$             

Net OPEB liabil ity as a percentage of covered employee payroll 5.70%

Notes to schedule:

The following assumptions were changed from the prior valuation:

Future rates of mortality were projected to improve on a generational basis using MacLeod Watts Scale

2017, rather than MacLeod Watts Scale 2014

Medical plan premiums are assumed to increaser at somewhat higher rate than assumed in the prior

valuation

* = Only one year of data is available.  
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐73‐ 

2.  OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, (continued) 
 
Schedule of Plan Contributions – Last 10 Years* 
 

2018

Contractually Determined Contributions (CDC) 153,086$            

Contributions in relation to the CDC (95,572)               

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 57,514$              

Covered‐Employee Payroll 4,937,800$         

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 3.10%

Notes to schedule:

Methods and assumptions used to determine contributions:

Valuation date June 30, 2017

Funding method Entry age normal 

cost, level % of 

pay

Asset valuaiton Market value of

assets

Discount Rate 6.73%

Inflation 2.75%

Salary Increases 3.25%

Mortality Rate
MacLeod Watts 

Scale 2017 

applied 

generationally

Healthcare Trend Rate 7.50% to 5.00% 

for 2019 and 

beyond

Fiscal year

Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated

as of June 30, one year prior to the end of the fiscal year in which

contributions are 

reported.

 
 



 

 

 
 

City of Sierra Madre, California 
Village of the Foothills 

 
 
 

 
    
 
 

Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ending 

June 30, 2018 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Balance Sheet 
Non‐Major Governmental Funds by Fund Type 
June 30, 2018 

 

‐74‐ 

Special  

Revenue Funds

Capital  

Projects Funds

Citywide Debt 

Service Fund

Total Non‐Major 

Governmental 

Funds

Assets:

Cash and investments 4,161,431$      801,573$          11,422$            4,974,426$         

Receivables:

Accounts 56,707              ‐                     ‐                     56,707                 

Taxes 69,989              ‐                     ‐                     69,989                 

Due from other agencies 11,992              ‐                     ‐                     11,992                 

Land held for resale ‐                     1,500,000         ‐                     1,500,000           

Total assets 4,300,119$      2,301,573$      11,422$            6,613,114$         

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 456,602$          229,846$          ‐$                   686,448$            

Accrued payroll and

   related liabil ities 55,820             ‐                   ‐                   55,820                 

Due to other funds 175,183            ‐                     ‐                     175,183               

Deposits and retentions 50,780              2,500                 ‐                     53,280                 

Total l iabilities 738,385            232,346            ‐                     970,731               

Fund balances (deficit):

Restricted 3,356,047         1,500,040         ‐                     4,856,087           

Committed 322,967            569,187            11,422              903,576               

Unassigned (117,280)           ‐                     ‐                     (117,280)             

Total fund balances 3,561,734         2,069,227         11,422              5,642,383           

Total l iabilities and fund balances 4,300,119$      2,301,573$      11,422$            6,613,114$         

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Non‐Major Governmental Funds by Fund Type 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐75‐ 

Special  

Revenue Funds

Capital 

Projects 

Funds

City‐wide Debt 

Service Fund

Total Non‐Major 

Governmental 

Funds

Revenues:

Property taxes 228,241$          ‐$                ‐$                  228,241$            

Charges for services 3,527                 ‐                   92,000 95,527                 

Intergovernmental 1,201,603         ‐                   ‐                    1,201,603           

Licenses and permits 99,774              ‐                   ‐                    99,774                 

Investment income 27,570              5,287              ‐                    32,857                 

Miscellaneous 251,951            17,282            ‐                    269,233               

Total revenues 1,812,666         22,569            92,000             1,927,235           

Expenditures:

Current:

Public safety 81,173              ‐                   ‐                    81,173                 

Public works 1,852,448         334,351          ‐                    2,186,799           

Culture and recreation 306,558            ‐                   ‐                    306,558               

Debt Service:

Principal ‐                     ‐                   79,484 79,484                 

Interest ‐                     ‐                   11,563 11,563                 

Total expenditures 2,240,179         334,351          91,047             2,665,577           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures (427,513)           (311,782)        953                   (738,342)             

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 37,851              ‐                   ‐                    37,851                 

Transfers out (11,973)             ‐                   ‐                    (11,973)                

Total other financing sources (uses) 25,878              ‐                   ‐                    25,878                 

Net change to fund balances (401,635)           (311,782)        953                   (712,464)             

Fund balances, beginning of year 3,963,369         2,381,009      10,469             6,354,847           

Fund balances, end of year 3,561,734$      2,069,227$    11,422$           5,642,383$         

 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Balance Sheet 
Non‐Major Special Revenue Funds 
June 30, 2018 

 

‐76‐ 

Grant Funds

 Assessment 

Funds

Other Special 

Revenue Funds

Total Special 

Revenue Funds

Assets:

Cash and investments 8,128$                 893,694$             3,259,609$         4,161,431$        

Receivables:

Accounts ‐                        ‐                        56,707                 56,707                

Taxes ‐                        23,220                 46,769                 69,989                

Due from other agencies 11,992                 ‐                        ‐                        11,992                

Total assets 20,120$               916,914$             3,363,085$         4,300,119$        

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabil ities:

Accounts payable 1,852$                 3,309$                 451,441$             456,602$            

Accrued payroll and

   related l iabil ities 155                     107                     55,558                55,820               

Due to other funds 11,992                 ‐                        163,191               175,183              

Deposits and retentions ‐                        ‐                        50,780                 50,780                

Total l iabil ities 13,999                 3,416                    720,970               738,385              

Fund balances (deficit): 

Restricted 6,121                    913,498               2,436,428            3,356,047           

Committed ‐                        ‐                        322,967               322,967              

Unassigned ‐                        ‐                        (117,280)              (117,280)             

Total fund balances 6,121                    913,498               2,642,115            3,561,734           

Total l iabil ities and fund balances 20,120$               916,914$             3,363,085$         4,300,119$        

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Non‐Major Special Revenue Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐77‐ 

Grant Funds

Assessment 

Funds

Other Special 

Revenue Funds

Total Special 

Revenue Funds

Revenues:

Property taxes ‐$                228,241$       ‐$                  228,241$          

Charges for services ‐                  ‐                  3,527                3,527                 

Intergovernmental 20,957            ‐                  1,180,646        1,201,603         

Licenses and permits ‐                  ‐                  99,774              99,774              

Investment income ‐                  5,125              22,445              27,570              

Miscellaneous ‐                  ‐                  251,951            251,951            

Total revenues 20,957            233,366         1,558,343        1,812,666         

Expenditures:

Current:

Public safety ‐                  ‐                  81,173              81,173              

Public works ‐                  63,663           1,788,785        1,852,448         

Culture and recreation 14,836            ‐                  291,722            306,558            

Total expenditures 14,836            63,663           2,161,680        2,240,179         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures 6,121              169,703         (603,337)          (427,513)           

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in ‐                  19,852           17,999              37,851              

Transfers out ‐                  ‐                  (11,973)             (11,973)             

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐                  19,852           6,026                25,878              

Net change to fund balances 6,121              189,555         (597,311)          (401,635)           

Fund balances, beginning of year ‐                  723,943         3,239,426        3,963,369         

Fund balances, end of year 6,121$            913,498$       2,642,115$      3,561,734$      



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Balance Sheet 
Non‐Major Special Revenue Funds – Grants 
June 30, 2018 

 

‐78‐ 

Local History 

State Grant

LA County Tree 

Mitigation 

Grant

Total Special 

Revenue‐Grant 

Funds

Assets:

Cash and investments 8,128$              ‐$                   8,128$                

Due from other agencies ‐                     11,992 11,992                

Total assets 8,128$              11,992$            20,120$              

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabil ities:

Accounts payable 1,852$              ‐$                   1,852$                

Accrued payroll  and

   related liabil ities 155                  ‐                   155                      

Due to other funds ‐                     11,992              11,992                

Total l iabil ities 2,007                 11,992              13,999                

Fund balances:

Restricted 6,121                 ‐                     6,121                   

Total fund balances 6,121                 ‐                     6,121                   

Total l iabil ities and fund balances 8,128$              11,992$            20,120$              

 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Non‐Major Special Revenue Funds – Grants 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐79‐ 

Local History 

State Grant

LA County Tree 

Mitigation 

Grant

Total Special 

Revenue‐Grant 

Funds

Revenues:

Intergovernmental 20,957$            ‐$                   20,957$             

Total revenues 20,957              ‐                     20,957                

Expenditures:

Current:

Culture and recreation 14,836 ‐                     14,836                

Total expenditures 14,836              ‐                     14,836                

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures 6,121                 ‐                     6,121                  

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      

Transfers out ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      

Net change to fund balances 6,121                 ‐                     6,121                  

Fund balances, beginning of year ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      

Fund balances, end of year 6,121$              ‐$                   6,121$                

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Balance Sheet 
Non‐Major Special Revenue Funds – Assessments 
June 30, 2018 

 

‐80‐ 

Bonita Sewer 

Assessment 

District

Central  

Business 

Assessment 

District

Fane/Winwood 

Assessment 

District

Lighting 

District #1

Assets:

Cash and investments 31,054$          3,220$            10,690$             251,067$      

Taxes receivable ‐                   249                  ‐                      7,665             

Total assets 31,054$          3,469$            10,690$             258,732$      

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                    141$              

Accrued payroll  and

   related liabil ities ‐                   ‐                   107                     ‐                  

Due to other funds ‐                   ‐                   ‐                      ‐                  

Total l iabil ities ‐                   ‐                   107                     141                 

Fund balances:

Restricted 31,054            3,469              10,583               258,591         

Total fund balances 31,054            3,469              10,583               258,591         

Total l iabil ities and fund balances 31,054$          3,469$            10,690$             258,732$      



 
 
 
 

 

‐81‐ 

Lighting 

District Zone 

A

Lighting 

District Zone 

B

Parking 

Maintenance 

District

Sewer 

Assessment 

District

Sierra Madre 

CFD

Total Special 

Revenue‐

Assessment 

Funds

264,278$       283,198$       1,311$            7,545$            41,331$          893,694$           

11,513            3,062              572                  159 ‐                   23,220                

275,791$       286,260$       1,883$            7,704$            41,331$          916,914$           

244$               1,041$            1,883$            ‐$                ‐$                3,309$                

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   107                     

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                      

244                  1,041              1,883              ‐                   ‐                   3,416                  

275,547          285,219          ‐                   7,704              41,331            913,498             

275,547          285,219          ‐                   7,704              41,331            913,498             

275,791$       286,260$       1,883$            7,704$            41,331$          916,914$           



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Non‐Major Special Revenue Funds – Assessments 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐82‐ 

Bonita Sewer 

Assessment 

District

Central 

Business 

Assessment 

District

Fane/Winwood 

Assessment 

District

Lighting 

District #1

Revenues:

Property taxes 10,290$          5,396$            ‐$                   54,367$         

Investment income 173                  14                    ‐                     1,472             

Total revenues 10,463            5,410              ‐                     55,839           

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works 720                  1,941              1,044                 2,432             

Total expenditures 720                  1,941              1,044                 2,432             

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures 9,743              3,469              (1,044)               53,407           

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                  

Transfers out ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                  

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                  

Net change to fund balances 9,743              3,469              (1,044)               53,407           

Fund balances, beginning of year 21,311            ‐                   11,627              205,184         

Fund balances, end of year 31,054$          3,469$            10,583$            258,591$      

 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 

‐83‐ 

Lighting 

District Zone 

A

Lighting 

District Zone 

B

Parking 

Maintenance 

District

Sewer 

Assessment 

District

Sierra Madre 

CFD

Total Special 

Revenue‐

Assessment 

Funds

62,479$          71,682$          9,469$            7,713$            6,845$            228,241$           

1,556              1,641              ‐                   31                    238                  5,125                  

64,035            73,323            9,469              7,744              7,083              233,366             

8,448              19,717            29,321            40                    ‐                   63,663                

8,448              19,717            29,321            40                    ‐                   63,663                

55,587            53,606            (19,852)           7,704              7,083              169,703             

‐                   ‐                   19,852            ‐                   ‐                   19,852                

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                      

‐                   ‐                   19,852            ‐                   ‐                   19,852                

55,587            53,606            ‐                   7,704              7,083              189,555             

219,960          231,613          ‐                   ‐                   34,248            723,943             

275,547$       285,219$       ‐$                7,704$            41,331$          913,498$           

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Balance Sheet 
Non‐Major Special Revenue Funds – Other 
June 30, 2018 

 

‐84‐ 

Development 

Impact Fees

Development 

Fees Art in 

Public Places

DUI 

Enforcement

Police 

Department 

Donations

Public Safety 

Augmentation 

Fund

Assets:

Cash and investments 1,416,964$    58,573$          1,087$            5,056$            139,974$        

Receivables:

Accounts ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   

Intergovernmental ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   23,433

Due from other agencies ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   

Total assets 1,416,964$    58,573$          1,087$            5,056$            163,407$        

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabil ities:

Accounts payable ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                 

Accrued payroll  and

   related l iabil ities ‐                  ‐                 ‐                 ‐                  ‐                  

Due to other funds ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   

Deposits and retentions 50,780            ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   

Total l iabilities 50,780            ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   

Fund balances (deficit):

Restricted 1,366,184      58,573         1,087              ‐                   163,407          

Committed ‐                ‐                ‐                5,056              ‐                   

Unassigned ‐                ‐                ‐                ‐                   ‐                   

Total fund balances 1,366,184      58,573            1,087              5,056              163,407          

Total l iabilities and fund balances 1,416,964$    58,573$          1,087$            5,056$            163,407$        

 



 
 
 
 

 

‐85‐ 

State COPS

Fire 

Department 

Donations

Community 

Arts 

Commission

Recreation 

Department 

Donations

Local 

Transportation 

Prop A Open Space Senior Center

186,097$       3,373$            6,273$            45,701$          289,984$          ‐$                163,647$      

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                   ‐                  

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                   ‐                  

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                   ‐                  

186,097$       3,373$            6,273$            45,701$          289,984$          ‐$                163,647$      

‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                25,513$            ‐$                1,146$           

716                  ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   177                    ‐                   ‐                  

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     110,173          ‐                  

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                   ‐                  

716                  ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   25,690               110,173          1,146             

185,381          ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   264,294            ‐                ‐               

‐                   3,373              6,273              45,701            ‐                     ‐                162,501      

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     (110,173)     ‐               

185,381          3,373              6,273              45,701            264,294            (110,173)        162,501         

186,097$       3,373$            6,273$            45,701$          289,984$          ‐$                163,647$      

(continued)  
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Balance Sheet 
Non‐Major Special Revenue Funds – Other, Continued 
June 30, 2018 

 

‐86‐ 

SM 

Community 

Foundation

YAC‐Youth 

Activity 

Center

Local Transit 

Prop C

CA Beverage 

Container

Clean Air 

Fund (AQMD)

Assets:

Cash and investments 40,411$          59,478$          134,565$       38,487$          90,008$         

Receivables:

Accounts ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   3,625

Taxes ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Due from other agencies ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Total assets 40,411$          59,478$          134,565$       38,487$          93,633$         

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabil ities:

Accounts payable ‐$                ‐$                109,188$       ‐$                52,450$         

Accrued payroll  and

   related l iabil ities ‐                  ‐                 ‐                 ‐                  ‐                 

Due to other funds ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Deposits and retentions ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Total l iabil ities ‐                   ‐                   109,188          ‐                   52,450           

Fund balances (deficit):

Restricted ‐                ‐                25,377         38,487         41,183        

Committed 40,411         59,478         ‐                ‐                ‐               

Unassigned ‐                ‐                ‐                ‐                ‐               

Total fund balances 40,411            59,478            25,377            38,487            41,183           

Total l iabil ities and fund balances 40,411$          59,478$          134,565$       38,487$          93,633$         



 
 
 
 

 

‐87‐ 

Environmental 

Fund Gas Tax Fund

Bikeway/Side

walk TDA Measure R Measure M

Road 

Maintenance 

and 

Rehabilitation LACMTA

‐$                   10,511$          ‐$                280,807$       16,039$            24,055$            ‐$                 

21,619 ‐                   8,874 ‐                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

‐                     ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     23,336 ‐                    

‐                     ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

21,619$            10,511$          8,874$            280,807$       16,039$            47,391$            ‐$                 

3,476$              5,975$            ‐$                205,373$       ‐$                  44,890$            ‐$                 

265                    2,758              51,642            ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

17,878              ‐                   8,874              ‐                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

‐                     ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

21,619              8,733              8,874              257,015          ‐                     44,890              ‐                    

‐                  1,778           ‐                23,792         16,039           2,501             ‐                 

‐                  ‐                ‐                ‐                ‐                  ‐                  ‐                 

‐                  ‐                ‐                ‐                ‐                  ‐                  ‐                 

‐                     1,778              ‐                   23,792            16,039              2,501                ‐                    

21,619$            10,511$          8,874$            280,807$       16,039$            47,391$            ‐$                 

(continued)  
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Balance Sheet 
Non‐Major Special Revenue Funds – Other, Continued 
June 30, 2018 

 

‐88‐ 

Library Gift 

and 

Memorial

Friends of the 

Library

Local 

Historical 

Society

Total Other 

Special Revenue 

Funds

Assets:

Cash and investments 248,345$    ‐$                174$            3,259,609$        

Receivables:

Accounts ‐                22,589 ‐               56,707                

Taxes ‐                ‐                   ‐               46,769                

Due from other agencies ‐                ‐                   ‐               ‐                      

Total assets 248,345$    22,589$          174$            3,363,085$        

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable ‐$             3,430$            ‐$             451,441$           

Accrued payroll and

   related l iabilities ‐               ‐                 ‐             55,558              

Due to other funds ‐                26,266            ‐               163,191             

Deposits and retentions ‐                ‐                   ‐               50,780                

Total l iabil ities ‐                29,696            ‐               720,970             

Fund balances (deficit):

Restricted 248,345    ‐                ‐            2,436,428       

Committed ‐             ‐                174           322,967          

Unassigned ‐             (7,107)          ‐            (117,280)         

Total fund balances 248,345       (7,107)             174              2,642,115          

Total l iabil ities and fund balances 248,345$    22,589$          174$            3,363,085$        

(concluded)  
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Non‐Major Special Revenue Funds – Other 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐89‐ 

Development 

Impact Fees

Development 

Fees Art in 

Public Places

DUI 

Enforcement

Police 

Department 

Donations

Public Safety 

Augmentation 

Fund

Revenues:

Charges for services ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                 

Intergovernmental ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   132,590

Licenses and permits ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                    

Investment income 8,777              363                  21                    38                    553                   

Miscellaneous ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   300                  ‐                    

Total revenues 8,777              363                  21                    338                  133,143           

Expenditures:

Current:

General government ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                    

Public safety ‐                   ‐                   6,000 1,614              ‐                    

Public works ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                    

Culture and recreation ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                    

Total expenditures ‐                   ‐                   6,000              1,614              ‐                    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures 8,777              363                  (5,979)             (1,276)             133,143           

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   11,973             

Transfers out ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                    

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   11,973             

Net change to fund balances 8,777              363                  (5,979)             (1,276)             145,116           

Fund balances, beginning of year 1,357,407      58,210            7,066              6,332              18,291             

Fund balances, end of year 1,366,184$    58,573$          1,087$            5,056$            163,407$        



 
 
 
 

 

‐90‐ 

State COPS 

Grant

Fire 

Department 

Donations

Community 

Arts 

Commission

Recreation 

Department 

Donations

Local 

Transportation 

Prop A Open Space Senior Center

‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                3,527$              ‐$                ‐$               

100,000          ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   205,428            ‐                   ‐                  

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                   ‐                  

1,203              25                    69                    283                  3,340                 311                  983                 

‐                   1,655              ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     45,447            32,081           

101,203          1,680              69                    283                  212,295            45,758            33,064           

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                   ‐                  

64,752            8,807              ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                   ‐                  

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   11,450              ‐                   ‐                  

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   158,698            ‐                   16,384           

64,752            8,807              ‐                   ‐                   170,148            ‐                   16,384           

36,451            (7,127)             69                    283                  42,147              45,758            16,680           

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                   ‐                  

(11,973)           ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                   ‐                  

(11,973)           ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                   ‐                  

24,478            (7,127)             69                    283                  42,147              45,758            16,680           

160,903          10,500            6,204              45,418            222,147            (155,931)        145,821         

185,381$       3,373$            6,273$            45,701$          264,294$          (110,173)$      162,501$      

(continued)



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Non‐Major Special Revenue Funds – Other, Continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐91‐ 

SM 

Community 

Foundation

YAC‐Youth 

Activity 

Center

Local Transit 

Prop C

CA Beverage 

Container 

Grant 

Clean Air 

Fund (AQMD)

Revenues:

Charges for services ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$               

Intergovernmental ‐                   ‐                   170,416          5,000              13,960           

Licenses and permits ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                 

Investment income 250                  369                  852                  255                  762                

Miscellaneous 3,303              ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                 

Total revenues 3,553              369                  171,268          5,255              14,722           

Expenditures:

Current:

General government ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                 

Public safety ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                 

Public works 812                  ‐                   516,185 5,000              96,327

Culture and recreation 620                  ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                 

Total expenditures 1,432              ‐                   516,185          5,000              96,327           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures 2,121              369                  (344,917)        255                  (81,605)         

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                 

Transfers out ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                 

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                 

Net change to fund balances 2,121              369                  (344,917)        255                  (81,605)         

Fund balances, beginning of year 38,290            59,109            370,294          38,232            122,788        

Fund balances, end of year 40,411$          59,478$          25,377$          38,487$          41,183$        



 
 
 
 

 

‐92‐ 

Environmental 

Fund Gas Tax Fund

Bikeway/Side

walk TDA Measure R Measure M

Road 

Maintenance 

and 

Rehabilitation LACMTA

‐$                   ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                  

‐                      236,580          8,874              127,626          115,658 64,514 ‐                    

99,774               ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

‐                      (62)                   ‐                   2,399              381 ‐                     ‐                    

‐                      ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

99,774               236,518          8,874              130,025          116,039            64,514              ‐                    

‐                      ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

‐                      ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

117,541             236,302          8,874              440,731          100,000 62,013 193,550

‐                      ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

117,541             236,302          8,874              440,731          100,000            62,013              193,550           

(17,767)              216                  ‐                   (310,706)        16,039              2,501                 (193,550)          

6,026 ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

‐                      ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

6,026                 ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

(11,741)              216                  ‐                   (310,706)        16,039              2,501                 (193,550)          

11,741               1,562              ‐                   334,498          ‐                     ‐                     193,550           

‐$                   1,778$            ‐$                23,792$          16,039$            2,501$              ‐$                  

(continued)



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Non‐Major Special Revenue Funds – Other, Continued 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐93‐ 

Library Gift 

and 

Memorial

Friends of the 

Library

Local 

Historical 

Society

Total Other 

Special Revenue 

Funds

Revenues:

Charges for services ‐$            ‐$                ‐$            3,527$                

Intergovernmental ‐               ‐                   ‐               1,180,646          

Licenses and permits ‐               ‐                   ‐               99,774                

Investment income 1,272          ‐                   1                  22,445                

Miscellaneous 107,730      61,435            ‐               251,951             

Total revenues 109,002      61,435            1                  1,558,343          

Expenditures:

Current:

General government ‐               ‐                   ‐               ‐                      

Public safety ‐               ‐                   ‐               81,173                

Public works ‐               ‐                   ‐               1,788,785          

Culture and recreation 47,478        68,542 ‐               291,722             

Total expenditures 47,478        68,542            ‐               2,161,680          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures 61,524        (7,107)             1                  (603,337)            

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in ‐               ‐                   ‐               17,999                

Transfers out ‐               ‐                   ‐               (11,973)              

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐               ‐                   ‐               6,026                  

Net change to fund balances 61,524        (7,107)             1                  (597,311)            

Fund balances, beginning of year 186,821      ‐                   173              3,239,426          

Fund balances, end of year 248,345$   (7,107)$           174$           2,642,115$        

(concluded)



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Balance Sheet 
Non‐Major Capital Project Funds 
June 30, 2018 

 

‐94‐ 

Low & Moderate 

Income Housing 

Asset Fund

Capital Projects 

Fund

Total Capital 

Project Funds

Assets:

Cash and investments 2,540$                 799,033$            801,573$           

Land held for resale 1,500,000 ‐                       1,500,000          

Total  assets 1,502,540$         799,033$            2,301,573$        

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabil ities:

Accounts payable ‐$                     229,846$            229,846$           

Deposits and retentions 2,500                   ‐                       2,500                  

Total l iabil ities 2,500                   229,846              232,346             

Fund balances:

Restricted 1,500,040           ‐                       1,500,040          

Committed ‐                       569,187              569,187             

Total fund balances 1,500,040           569,187              2,069,227          

Total l iabil ities and fund balances 1,502,540$         799,033$            2,301,573$        

 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Non‐Major Capital Project Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐95‐ 

Low & Moderate 

Income Housing 

Asset Fund

Capital Projects 

Fund

Total Capital 

Project Funds

Revenues:

Investment income 16$                      5,271$                 5,287$                

Miscellaneous ‐                       17,282 17,282                

Total  revenues 16                         22,553                 22,569                

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works ‐                       334,351              334,351             

Total  expenditures ‐                       334,351              334,351             

Net change to fund balance 16                         (311,798)             (311,782)            

Fund balances, beginning of year 1,500,024           880,985              2,381,009          

Fund Balances, end of year 1,500,040$         569,187$            2,069,227$        

 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Local History State Grant 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐96‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Intergovernmental ‐$                23,286$          20,957$          (2,329)$          

Total revenues ‐                   23,286            20,957            (2,329)            

Expenditures:

Current:

Culture and recreation ‐                   23,286            14,836            8,450             

Total expenditures ‐                   23,286            14,836            8,450             

Net change to fund balance ‐                   ‐                   6,121              6,121             

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year ‐$                ‐$                6,121$            6,121$           

Fund balance, beginning of year

 

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Bonita Sewer Assessment District Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐97‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Property taxes 10,300$          10,300$          10,290$          (10)$               

Investment income ‐                   ‐                   173                  173                 

Total revenues 10,300            10,300            10,463            163                 

Expenditures:

Public works 900                  900                  720                  180                 

Total expenditures 900                  900                  720                  180                 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures 9,400           9,400           9,743           343              

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Transfers out (20,400)           (20,400)           ‐                   20,400           

Total other financing sources (uses) (20,400)           (20,400)           ‐                   20,400           

Net change to fund balance (11,000)           (11,000)           9,743              20,743           

21,311            21,311            21,311            ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 10,311$          10,311$          31,054$          20,743$         

Fund balance, beginning of year

 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Central Business Assessment District Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐98‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Property taxes 5,200$            5,200$            5,396$            196$              

Investment income ‐                   ‐                   14 14                   

Total revenues 5,200              5,200              5,410              210                 

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works 21,400            21,400            1,941              19,459           

Total expenditures 21,400            21,400            1,941              19,459           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures (16,200)        (16,200)        3,469           19,669        

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 16,200            16,200            ‐                   (16,200)          

Total other financing sources (uses) 16,200            16,200            ‐                   (16,200)          

Net change to fund balance ‐                   ‐                   3,469              3,469             

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year ‐$                ‐$                3,469$            3,469$           

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Fane/Winwood Lane Assessment District Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐99‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Property taxes ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$               

Total revenues ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works 700                  700                  1,044              (344)               

Total expenditures 700                  700                  1,044              (344)               

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures (700)             (700)             (1,044)          (344)            

Net change to fund balance (700)                (700)                (1,044)             (344)               

11,627            11,627            11,627            ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 10,927$          10,927$          10,583$          (344)$             

 Fund balance, beginning of year 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Lighting District #1 Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐100‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Property taxes 45,100$          45,100$          54,367$          9,267$           

Investment income 400                  400                  1,472              1,072             

Total revenues 45,500            45,500            55,839            10,339           

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works 2,900              2,900              2,432              468                 

Total expenditures 2,900              2,900              2,432              468                 

Net change to fund balance 42,600            42,600            53,407            10,807           

205,184          205,184          205,184          ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 247,784$       247,784$       258,591$       10,807$         

 Fund balance, beginning of year 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Lighting District Zone A Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐101‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Property taxes 48,100$          48,100$          62,479$          14,379$         

Investment income 400                  400                  1,556              1,156             

Total revenues 48,500            48,500            64,035            15,535           

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works 7,900              7,900              8,448              (548)               

Total expenditures 7,900              7,900              8,448              (548)               

Net change to fund balance 40,600            40,600            55,587            14,987           

219,960          219,960          219,960          ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 260,560$       260,560$       275,547$       14,987$         

 Fund balance, beginning of year 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Lighting District Zone B Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐102‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Property taxes 65,400$          65,400$          71,682$          6,282$           

Investment income 400                  400                  1,641              1,241             

Total revenues 65,800            65,800            73,323            7,523             

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works 17,400            17,400            19,717            (2,317)            

Total expenditures 17,400            17,400            19,717            (2,317)            

Net change to fund balance 48,400            48,400            53,606            5,206             

231,613          231,613          231,613          ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 280,013$       280,013$       285,219$       5,206$           

 Fund balance, beginning of year 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Parking Maintenance District Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐103‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Property taxes 8,800$            8,800$            9,469$            669$              

Total revenues 8,800              8,800              9,469              669                 

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works 33,700            33,700            29,321            4,379             

Total expenditures 33,700            33,700            29,321            4,379             

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures (24,900)        (24,900)        (19,852)        5,048          

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 24,900            24,900            19,852            (5,048)            

Total other financing sources (uses) 24,900            24,900            19,852            (5,048)            

Net change to fund balance ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$               

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Sewer Assessment District Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐104‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Property taxes 7,000$            7,000$            7,713$            713$              

Investment income ‐                   ‐                   31                    31                   

Total revenues 7,000              7,000              7,744              744                 

Expenditures:

Current:

Total expenditures ‐                   ‐                   40                    (40)                  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures 7,000           7,000           7,704           704              

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers out (42,200)           (42,200)           ‐                   42,200           

Total other financing sources (uses) (42,200)           (42,200)           ‐                   42,200           

Net change to fund balance (35,200)           (35,200)           7,704              42,904           

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year (35,200)$        (35,200)$        7,704$            42,904$         

 Fund balance, beginning of year 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Sierra Madre CFD Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐105‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Property taxes 6,900$            6,900$            6,845$            (55)$               

Investment income ‐                   ‐                   238 238                 

Total revenues 6,900              6,900              7,083              183                 

Expenditures:

Current: ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Total expenditures ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Net change to fund balance 6,900              6,900              7,083              183                 

34,248            34,248            34,248            ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 41,148$          41,148$          41,331$          183$              

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Public Safety Augmentation Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐106‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Property taxes 100,000$        100,000$         132,590$         32,590$         

Investment income ‐                    ‐                    553                   553                 

Total revenues 100,000           100,000           133,143           33,143           

Expenditures:

Current: ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    ‐                  

Total expenditures ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    ‐                  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures 100,000        100,000        133,143        33,143        

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in ‐                    ‐                    11,973             11,973           

Transfers out (100,000)         (100,000)          ‐                    100,000         

Total other financing sources (uses) (100,000)         (100,000)          11,973             111,973         

Net change to fund balance ‐                    ‐                    145,116           145,116         

18,291             18,291             18,291             ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 18,291$           18,291$           163,407$         145,116$      

 Fund balance, beginning of year 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
State COPS Grant Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐107‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Intergovernmental 100,000$       100,000$       100,000 ‐$               

Investment income ‐                   ‐                   1,203              1,203             

Total revenues 100,000          100,000          101,203          1,203             

Expenditures:

Current:

Public safety 62,000            62,000            64,752 (2,752)            

Total expenditures 62,000            62,000            64,752            (2,752)            

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures 38,000         38,000         36,451         (1,549)         

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers out ‐                   ‐                   (11,973)           (11,973)          

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐                   ‐                   (11,973)           (11,973)          

Net change to fund balance 38,000            38,000            24,478            (13,522)          

160,903          160,903          160,903          ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 198,903$       198,903$       185,381$       (13,522)$       

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Local Transportation Prop A Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐108‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Charges for services 4,500$            4,500$            3,527$            (973)$             

Intergovernmental 204,800          204,800          205,428 628                 

Investment income ‐                   ‐                   3,340 3,340             

Total revenues 209,300          209,300          212,295          2,995             

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works 10,800            10,800            11,450 (650)               

Culture and recreation 176,500          176,500          158,698 17,802           

Total expenditures 187,300          187,300          170,148          17,152           

Net change to fund balance 22,000            22,000            42,147            20,147           

222,147          222,147          222,147          ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 244,147$       244,147$       264,294$       20,147$         

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Open Space Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐109‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Investment income ‐$                ‐$                311$               311$              

Miscellaneous 49,500            49,500            45,447 (4,053)            

Total revenues 49,500            49,500            45,758            (3,742)            

Expenditures:

Current: ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Total expenditures ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Net change to fund balance 49,500            49,500            45,758            (3,742)            

(155,931)        (155,931)        (155,931)        ‐                  

Fund balance (deficit), end of year (106,431)$      (106,431)$      (110,173)$      (3,742)$          

 Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year 

 
 

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Senior Center Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐110‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Charges for services 1,000$            1,000$            ‐$                (1,000)$          

Investment income ‐                   ‐                   983 983                 

Miscellaneous 20,600            20,600            32,081 11,481           

Total revenues 21,600            21,600            33,064            11,464           

Expenditures:

Current:

Culture and recreation 20,600            20,600            16,384 4,216             

Total expenditures 20,600            20,600            16,384            4,216             

Net change to fund balance 1,000              1,000              16,680            15,680           

145,821          145,821          145,821          ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 146,821$       146,821$       162,501$       15,680$         

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 
 

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Local Transit Prop C Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐111‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Intergovernmental 169,900$       169,900$       170,416$       516$              

Investment income ‐                   ‐                   852 852                 

Total revenues 169,900          169,900          171,268          1,368             

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works 169,900          169,900          516,185 (346,285)       

Total expenditures 169,900          169,900          516,185          (346,285)       

Net change to fund balance ‐                   ‐                   (344,917)        (344,917)       

370,294          370,294          370,294          ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 370,294$       370,294$       25,377$          (344,917)$     

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 
 

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
CA Beverage Container Grant Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐112‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Intergovernmental 5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            ‐$               

Investment income ‐                   ‐                   255 255                 

Total revenues 5,000              5,000              5,255              255                 

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works 5,000              5,000              5,000              ‐                  

Total expenditures 5,000              5,000              5,000              ‐                  

Net change to fund balance ‐                   ‐                   255                  255                 

38,232            38,232            38,232            ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 38,232$          38,232$          38,487$          255$              

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Clear Air (AQMD) Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐113‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Intergovernmental 13,400$          13,400$          13,960$          560$              

Investment income ‐                   ‐                   762 762                 

Total revenues 13,400            13,400            14,722            1,322             

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works ‐                   ‐                   96,327 (96,327)          

Total expenditures ‐                   ‐                   96,327            (96,327)          

Net change to fund balance 13,400            13,400            (81,605)           (95,005)          

122,788          122,788          122,788          ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 136,188$       136,188$       41,183$          (95,005)$       

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Environmental Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐114‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Licenses and permits 89,000$          89,000$          99,774$          10,774$         

Investment income 100                  100                  ‐                   (100)               

Total revenues 89,100            89,100            99,774            10,674           

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works 134,200          134,200          117,541 16,659           

Total expenditures 134,200          134,200          117,541          16,659           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over (under) expenditures (45,100)        (45,100)        (17,767)        27,333        

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in ‐                   ‐                   6,026 6,026             

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐                   ‐                   6,026              6,026             

Net change to fund balance (45,100)           (45,100)           (11,741)           33,359           

11,741            11,741            11,741            ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year (33,359)$        (33,359)$        ‐$                33,359$         

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐115‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Intergovernmental 313,300$       313,300$       236,580$       (76,720)$       

Investment income ‐                   ‐                   (62)                   (62)                  

Total revenues 313,300          313,300          236,518          (76,782)          

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works 288,300          288,300          236,302          51,998           

Total expenditures 288,300          288,300          236,302          51,998           

Net change to fund balance 25,000            25,000            216                  (24,784)          

1,562              1,562              1,562              ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 26,562$          26,562$          1,778$            (24,784)$       

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 
 

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Bikeway/Sidewalk Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐116‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Intergovernmental 5,000$            5,000$            8,874$            3,874$           

Total revenues 5,000              5,000              8,874              3,874             

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works 5,000              5,000              8,874 (3,874)            

Total expenditures 5,000              5,000              8,874              (3,874)            

Net change to fund balance ‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$               

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Measure R Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐117‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Intergovernmental 127,400$       127,400$       127,626$       226$              

Investment income ‐                   ‐                   2,399 2,399             

Total revenues 127,400          127,400          130,025          2,625             

Expenditures:

Current:

Public works 127,400          127,400          440,731 (313,331)       

Total expenditures 127,400          127,400          440,731          (313,331)       

Net change to fund balance ‐                   ‐                   (310,706)        (310,706)       

334,498          334,498          334,498          ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 334,498$       334,498$       23,792$          (310,706)$     

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Library Gift and Memorial Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐118‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Investment income ‐$                ‐$                1,272$            1,272$           

Miscellaneous ‐                   ‐                   107,730 107,730         

Total revenues ‐                   ‐                   109,002          109,002         

Expenditures:

Current:

Culture and recreation 66,700            66,700            47,478 19,222           

Total expenditures 66,700            66,700            47,478            19,222           

Net change to fund balance (66,700)           (66,700)           61,524            128,224         

186,821          186,821          186,821          ‐                  

Fund balance, end of year 120,121$       120,121$       248,345$       128,224$      

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 
 

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Friends of the Library Special Revenue Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐119‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Miscellaneous 155,000$       155,000$       61,435$          (93,565)$       

Total revenues 155,000          155,000          61,435            (93,565)          

Expenditures:

Current:

Culture and recreation 155,000          155,000          68,542            86,458           

Total expenditures 155,000          155,000          68,542            86,458           

Net change to fund balance ‐                   ‐                   (7,107)             (7,107)            

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   ‐                  

Fund balance (deficit), end of year ‐$                ‐$                (7,107)$           (7,107)$          

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
Debt Service Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐120‐ 

Original 

Budget

Final 

Budget Actual

Variance

with Final 

Budget

Revenues:

Charges for services 92,000$        92,000$        92,000$        ‐$             

Total revenues 92,000          92,000          92,000          ‐               

Expenditures:

Debt service:

Prinicpal 76,000          76,000          79,484          (3,484)         

Interest 16,000          16,000          11,563          4,437           

Total expenditures 92,000          92,000          91,047          953              

Net change to fund balance ‐                 ‐                 953                953              

10,469          10,469          10,469          ‐               

Fund balance, end of year 10,469$        10,469$        11,422$        953$            

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Net Position 
Non‐Major Enterprise Funds 
June 30, 2018 

 

‐121‐ 

Special  Strike 

Team Services Aquatics Special Events Filming

Total Non‐Major 

Enterprise Funds

Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and investments 81,874$               221,487$            12,402$              217,843$             533,606$           

Prepaids ‐                       ‐                      1,750 ‐                       1,750                  

Total current assets 81,874                 221,487             14,152               217,843              535,356             

Total assets 81,874                 221,487             14,152               217,843              535,356             

Liabilities:

Current l iabilities:

Accounts payable ‐                       4,150                  8,551                  4,000                   16,701               

Accrued payroll and related 

liabilities ‐                       ‐                      ‐                      59                        59                       

Deposits and retentions ‐                       ‐                      ‐                      15,676                15,676               

Compensated absences ‐ current ‐                       ‐                      1,120                  1,352 2,472                  

Total current l iabilities ‐                       4,150                  9,671                  21,087                34,908               

Noncurrent l iabil ities:

Compensated absences ‐                       ‐                      4,481                  5,406 9,887                  

Total noncurrent l iabilities ‐                       ‐                      4,481                  5,406                   9,887                  

Total l iabilities ‐                       4,150                  14,152               26,493                44,795               

Net Position:

Unrestricted 81,874                 217,337             ‐                      191,350              490,561             
Total net position 81,874$               217,337$             ‐$                      191,350$             490,561$            



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
Non‐Major Enterprise Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐122‐ 

Special Strike 

Team Services Aquatics Special Events Filming

Total Non‐Major 

Enterprise Funds

Operating revenues:

Charges for services ‐$                      73,080$           68,081$           101,412$        242,573$              

Licenses and permits ‐                        ‐                    ‐                    38,584 38,584                   

Total operating revenues ‐                        73,080             68,081             139,996           281,157                 

Operating expenses:

Personnel services ‐                        ‐                    108,779           73,714             182,493                 

Contractual services ‐                        ‐                    41,791             1,320 43,111                   

Materials and supplies ‐                        ‐                    1,058               ‐                    1,058                     

Administrative Charges ‐                        ‐                    7,040               ‐                    7,040                     

Maintenance and operation ‐                        4,150 12,560             2,889               19,599                   

Total operating expenses ‐                        4,150               171,228           77,923             253,301                 

Operating income (losses) ‐                        68,930             (103,147)         62,073             27,856                   

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Investment Income ‐                        464                   ‐                    432                   896                         

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) ‐                        464                   ‐                    432                   896                         

Income (loss) before transfers ‐                        69,394             (103,147)         62,505             28,752                   

Transfers:

Transfers in ‐                        ‐                    103,147           ‐                    103,147                 

Total transfers ‐                        ‐                    103,147           ‐                    103,147                 

Change in net position ‐                        69,394             ‐                    62,505             131,899                 

Net position, beginning of year 81,874                 147,943           ‐                    128,845           358,662                 

Net position, end of year 81,874$               217,337$        ‐$                 191,350$        490,561$              

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
Non‐Major Enterprise Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐123‐ 

Special Strike 

Team Services Aquatics Special Events Filming

Total Non‐Major 

Enterprise Funds

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers and users ‐$                   73,080$            68,081$            139,996$          281,157$            

Payments to suppliers  ‐                     ‐                     (58,239)             614                    (57,625)                

Payments to employees ‐                     ‐                     (106,575)           (67,581)             (174,156)             

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities ‐                     73,080              (96,733)             73,029              49,376                 

Cash flows from non‐capital financing activities:

Interfund borrowings ‐                     ‐                     103,147            ‐                     103,147               

Net cash provided (used) by non‐capital 

financing activities ‐                     ‐                     103,147            ‐                     103,147               

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment income ‐                     464                    ‐                     432                    896                       

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities ‐                     464                    ‐                     432                    896                       

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ‐                     73,544              6,414                 73,461              153,419               

Cash and investments:

Beginning of year 81,874              147,943            5,988                 144,382            380,187               

End of year 81,874$            221,487$          12,402$            217,843$          533,606$            

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) ‐$                   68,930$            (103,147)$        62,073$            27,856$               

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

  cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Changes in assets and l iabil ities:

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses ‐                     ‐                     (375)                   ‐                     (375)                     

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable ‐                     4,150                 4,585                 (6,616)               2,119                   

Increase (decrease) in accrued l iabil ities ‐                     ‐                     (1,110)               (625)                   (1,735)                  

Increase (decrease) in deposits payable ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     11,439              11,439                 

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences ‐                     ‐                     3,314                 6,758                 10,072                 

Total adjustments ‐                     4,150                 6,414                 10,956              21,520                 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities ‐$                   73,080$            (96,733)$           73,029$            49,376$               



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Net Position 
Internal Service Funds 
June 30, 2018 

 

‐124‐ 

Fleet

Facil ities 

Management Administration

Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and investments 559,996$          1,661,607$       897,979$          

Accounts Receivable ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

Total current assets 559,996            1,661,607        897,979            

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:

Depreciable‐net 745,502            61,379              169,410            

Total noncurrent assets 745,502            61,379              169,410            

Total assets 1,305,498        1,722,986        1,067,389        

Deferred Outflows of Resources:

OPEB related ‐                     ‐                     7,520

Pension related ‐                     ‐                     299,390            

Total deferred outflows of resources ‐                     ‐                     306,910            

Liabilities:

Current l iabilities:

Accounts payable 5,229                43,283              3,449                

Accrued payroll  and related 

l iabil ities 1,622                2,483 8,990                

Interest payable 405                    ‐                     ‐                     

Claims payable ‐ current ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     

Compensated absences ‐ current 3,771                7,053                10,619              

Capital lease payable ‐ current 12,811              ‐                     ‐                     

Total current l iabilities 23,838              52,819              23,058              

Noncurrent l iabil ities:

Claims payable ‐ current ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     

Compensated absences 15,082              28,212              42,475              

Net pension l iabil ity ‐                     ‐                     971,515            

Net OPEB liabil ity ‐                     ‐                     19,706

Capital lease payable 13,403              ‐                     ‐                     

Total noncurrent l iabil ities 28,485              28,212              1,033,696        

Total l iabil ities 52,323              81,031              1,056,754        

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

OPEB related ‐                     ‐                     12,469

Pension related ‐                     ‐                     38,308              

Total deferred inflows of resources ‐                     ‐                     50,777              

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 719,288            61,379              169,410            

Unrestricted 533,887            1,580,576        97,358              
Total net position 1,253,175$        1,641,955$        266,768$          



 
 
 
 

 

‐125‐ 

Technology

Personnel and 

Risk 

Management

General Plan 

and Housing 

Update

Total Internal 

Service Funds

828,735$           2,465,608$        97,039$              6,510,964$           

12,685                ‐                       ‐                       12,685                   

841,420              2,465,608          97,039                6,523,649              

102,678 ‐                       ‐                       1,078,969              

102,678              ‐                       ‐                       1,078,969              

944,098              2,465,608          97,039                7,602,618              

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       7,520                      

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       299,390                 

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       306,910                 

32,925                19,322 ‐                       104,208                 

3,637                  10,169 ‐                       26,901                   

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       405                         

‐                       114,647 ‐                       114,647                 

4,365                  6,168                  ‐                       31,976                   

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       12,811                   

40,927                150,306              ‐                       290,948                 

‐                       156,172 ‐                       156,172                 

17,461                24,673                ‐                       127,903                 

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       971,515                 

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       19,706                   

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       13,403                   

17,461                180,845              ‐                       1,288,699              

58,388                331,151              ‐                       1,579,647              

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       12,469                   

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       38,308                   

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       50,777                   

102,678              ‐                       ‐                       1,052,755              

783,032              2,134,457          97,039                5,226,349              

885,710$           2,134,457$        97,039$              6,279,104$           



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
Internal Service Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 

‐126‐ 

Fleet

Facil ities 

Management Administration

Operating revenues:

Charges for services 324,771$           577,900$           1,006,300$       

Licenses and permits ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

Miscellaneous 37,929 ‐                       ‐                      

Total operating revenues 362,700              577,900              1,006,300         

Operating expenses:

Personnel services 130,267              159,630              741,711             

Contractual services 57,492                100,664              121,105             

Materials and supplies 63,248                60,128                39,225               

Insurance, claims and charges  ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

Util ities 76,665                172,760              ‐                      

Maintenance and operation 339                      48,900                2,886                 

Depreciation 179,919              ‐                       48,403               

Total operating expenses 507,930              542,082              953,330             

Operating income (loss) (145,230)            35,818                52,970               

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Investment income 2,835                  8,857                  2,405                 

Loss on disposal of property  (33,626)               ‐                       ‐                      

Interest expense (1,586)                 ‐                       ‐                      

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (32,377)               8,857                  2,405                 

Income (loss) before transfers 

   and capital contributions (177,607)            44,675                55,375               

Transfers:

Transfers out ‐                       (19,853)               ‐                      

Total transfers ‐                       (19,853)               ‐                      

Change in net position (177,607)            24,822                55,375               

Net position, beginning of year, restated 1,430,782          1,617,133          211,393             

Net position, end of year 1,253,175$        1,641,955$        266,768$          



 
 
 
 

 

‐127‐ 

Technology

Personnel and 

Risk 

Management

General Plan 

and Housing 

Update

Total Internal 

Service Funds

694,400$           2,152,194$        ‐$                    4,755,565$           

34,796                ‐                       ‐                       34,796                   

‐                       22,467 ‐                       60,396                   

729,196              2,174,661          ‐                       4,850,757              

228,313              284,245              ‐                       1,544,166              

154,896              66,619                ‐                       500,776                 

135,646              27,066                ‐                       325,313                 

‐                       609,313              ‐                       609,313                 

108,277              ‐                       ‐                       357,702                 

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       52,125                   

12,835                ‐                       ‐                       241,157                 

639,967              987,243              ‐                       3,630,552              

89,229                1,187,418          ‐                       1,220,205              

3,009                  6,896                  601                      24,603                   

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       (33,626)                  

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       (1,586)                    

3,009                  6,896                  601                      (10,609)                  

92,238                1,194,314          601                      1,209,596              

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       (19,853)                  

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       (19,853)                  

92,238                1,194,314          601                      1,189,743              

793,472              940,143              96,438                5,089,361              

885,710$           2,134,457$        97,039$              6,279,104$           

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
Internal Service Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

‐128‐ 

 

Fleet

Facil ities 

Management Administration

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from interfund services provided  362,700$            577,900$            1,006,300$        

Payments to suppliers  (306,205)             (384,619)             (181,693)            

Payments to employees (117,139)             (166,485)             (659,864)            

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (60,644)               26,796                 164,743             

Cash flows from non‐capital financing activities:

Transfers to other funds ‐                       (19,853)               ‐                      

Net cash provided (used) by non‐capital 

financing activities ‐                       (19,853)               ‐                      

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (137,450)             (61,379)               ‐                      

Principal paid  (12,244)               ‐                       ‐                      

Interest paid (1,775)                  ‐                       ‐                      

Net cash provided (used) by capital 

and related financing activities (151,469)             (61,379)               ‐                      

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment income 2,835                   8,857                   2,405                  

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 2,835                   8,857                   2,405                  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (209,278)             (45,579)               167,148             

Cash and investments:

Beginning of year 769,274              1,707,186           730,831             

End of year 559,996$            1,661,607$         897,979$           

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (145,230)$           35,818$              52,970$             

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

  cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 179,919              ‐                       48,403                

Changes in assets and liabil ities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

(Increase) decrease in deferred outflow of resources ‐                       ‐                       (44,789)              

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable  (108,461)             (2,167)                  (18,477)              

Increase (decrease) in accrued liabil ities 1,017                   (19)                       1,140                  

Increase (decrease) in claims payable ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 12,111                 (6,836)                  11,490                

Increase (decrease) in deferred inflow of resources ‐                       ‐                       16,565                

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liabil ity ‐                       ‐                       (10,896)              

Increase (decrease) in net pension liabil ity ‐                       ‐                       108,337             

Total adjustments 84,586                 (9,022)                  111,773             

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (60,644)$             26,796$              164,743$           



 
 
 
 

‐129‐ 

 

Technology

Personnel and 

Risk 

Management

General Plan 

and Housing 

Update

Total Internal 

Service Funds

722,395$            2,174,661$         ‐$                     4,843,956$        

(446,428)             (35,259)               ‐                       (1,354,204)         

(206,798)             (399,160)             ‐                       (1,549,446)         

69,169                 1,740,242           ‐                       1,940,306          

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       (19,853)              

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       (19,853)              

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       (198,829)            

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       (12,244)              

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       (1,775)                 

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       (212,848)            

3,009                   6,896                   601                      24,603                

3,009                   6,896                   601                      24,603                

72,178                 1,747,138           601                      1,732,208          

756,557              718,470              96,438                 4,778,756          

828,735$            2,465,608$         97,039$              6,510,964$        

89,229$              1,187,418$         ‐$                     1,220,205$        

12,835                 ‐                       ‐                       241,157             

(6,801)                  ‐                       ‐                       (6,801)                 

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       (44,789)              

‐                       662,566              ‐                       662,566             

(47,609)               5,173                   ‐                       (171,541)            

(47)                       17                         ‐                       2,108                  

‐                       (114,232)             ‐                       (114,232)            

21,562                 (700)                     ‐                       37,627                

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       16,565                

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       (10,896)              

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       108,337             

(20,060)               552,824              ‐                       720,101             

69,169$              1,740,242$         ‐$                     1,940,306$        



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 
 

   



 

 

 

City of Sierra Madre, California 
Village of the Foothills 

 

 

 

 
    

 

 

Statistical Section 

For the Year Ending 

June 30, 2018 

   



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 
 

   



 

 

This part of the City’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for 

understanding  what  the  information  in  the  financial  statements,  note  disclosures,  and  required 

supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health. 

 

 
Financial trend information:   
Intended to assist users in understanding and assessing how a government's financial position 
has changed over time. 
 
Revenue capacity information: 
Intended to assist users in understanding and assessing the factors affecting a government's 
ability to generate its own revenue. 
 
Debt capacity information: 
Intended to assist users in understanding and assessing a government's debt burden and its 
ability to issue additional debt. 
 
Demographic and economic information: 
Intended  to  assist  users  in  understanding  the  socioeconomic  environment  within  which  a 
government  operates  and  to  provide  information  that  facilitates  comparison  of  financial 
statement information over time and among governments. 
 
Operating information: 
Intended to provide information about a government's operations and resources in order to 
assist readers in using financial information to understand and assess a government's economic 
condition. 
 

 



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Net Position by Component

(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal year ended June 30 2009 2010 2011 2012

Governmental activities:

Net investment in capital assets 187,749,494$      187,804,691$      186,635,375$      185,544,420$     

Restricted 4,473,882             4,681,595             8,648,585             10,779,254          

Unrestricted 5,880,289             5,876,098             1,634,124             870,761               

Total governmental activities net position 198,103,665$      198,362,384$      196,918,084$      197,194,435$     

Business‐Type activities:

Net investment in capital assets 16,526,965$         15,741,252$         15,842,534$         15,665,079$        

Restricted ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         1,145,841            

Unrestricted 6,338,095             6,822,253             6,324,287             4,437,196            

Total business‐type activities net position 22,865,060$         22,563,505$         22,166,821$         21,248,116$        

Primary government:

Net investment in capital assets 204,276,459$      203,545,943$      202,477,909$      201,209,499$     

Restricted 4,473,882             4,681,595             8,648,585             11,925,095          

Unrestricted 12,218,384           12,698,351           7,958,411             5,307,957            

Total primary government net position 220,968,725$      220,925,889$      219,084,905$      218,442,551$     

Source: City of Sierra Madre Finance Department

‐130‐



2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

184,344,066$      183,026,172$      181,862,536$      181,328,167$      180,505,323$     181,067,634$    

10,341,052           13,952,436 6,051,883 5,794,991 5,119,384 4,926,003

555,794                204,442 764,679 1,731,997 5,264,763 6,263,121

195,240,912$      197,183,050$      188,679,098$      188,855,155$      190,889,470$     192,256,758$    

15,804,079$         15,963,941$         16,668,550$         16,824,482$         16,892,266$       17,975,946$      

1,149,456             1,149,456 1,149,456 1,149,456 1,149,456 ‐                       

3,894,603             4,053,155 1,994,086 1,313,820 1,439,579 2,585,503

20,848,138$         21,166,552$         19,812,092$         19,287,758$         19,481,301$       20,561,449$      

200,148,145$      198,990,113$      198,531,086$      198,152,649$      197,397,589$     199,043,580$    

11,490,508           15,101,892           7,201,339             6,944,447             6,268,840            4,926,003           

4,450,397             4,257,597             2,758,765             3,045,817             6,704,342            8,848,624           

216,089,050$      218,349,602$      208,491,190$      208,142,913$      210,370,771$     212,818,207$    

‐131‐



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Changes in Net Position

(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal year ended June 30 2009 2010 2011 2012
Expenses:
Governmental activities:

General government 7,851,142$          7,779,996$          3,495,144$           1,756,491$         
Public safety 6,698,070            4,380,352           5,504,146            5,243,664           
Public works 805,897                884,015               1,756,538            2,669,022           
Development 431,174                375,842               1,738,918            998,147               
Culture and recreation 1,231,928            1,444,584           1,392,657            1,695,105           
Interest on long‐term debt 167,567                156,125               181,711                95,211                 

Total governmental activities expenses 17,185,778          15,020,914         14,069,114          12,457,640         

Business‐type activities:
Water 3,137,904            3,399,076           3,442,699            3,806,990           
Sewer 651,945                856,702               951,566                927,102               
Recreation services 445,244                493,509               503,796                306,613               
Special services 195,286                89,909                 37,462                  168,546               
Film services 26,561                  47,529                 46,681                  70,275                 

Total business‐type activities expenses 4,456,940            4,886,725           4,982,204            5,279,526           

Total primary government expenses 21,642,718$         19,907,639$         19,051,318$         17,737,166$        

Program revenues:
Governmental activities:

Charges for services 5,521,416$          5,065,422$          2,390,204$           2,013,245$         
Operating grants and contributions 2,920,814            757,868               957,136                1,331,720           
Capital grants and contributions 121,739                48,228                 1,008,836            51,342                 

Total governmental activities 
program revenues 8,563,969            5,871,518           4,356,176            3,396,307           

Business‐type activities:
Charges for services 4,412,306            4,173,073           4,379,502            4,090,554           
Capital grants and contributions 1,043,645            248,500               29,619                  ‐                        

Total business‐type activities 
program revenues 5,455,951            4,421,573           4,409,121            4,090,554           

Total primary government 
program revenues 14,019,920$        10,293,091$        8,765,297$           7,486,861$         

Net revenue/(expense):
Governmental activities (8,621,809)$         (9,149,396)$         (9,712,938)$          (9,061,333)$        
Business‐type activities 999,011                (465,152)             (573,083)              (1,188,972)          

Total primary government 
net revenue/(expense) (7,622,798)$         (9,614,548)$         (10,286,021)$        (10,250,305)$      

Source: City of Sierra Madre Finance Department

‐132‐



2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

2,350,968$           742,540$               1,581,532$           1,791,927$          1,710,653$      1,334,388$      
5,240,506             5,525,072 5,500,997 5,754,806 5,115,933 5,394,253
1,311,100             1,499,333 2,255,560 1,401,974 1,961,343 2,196,985
874,469                 993,035 1,089,493 1,412,537 1,129,817 1,557,850

1,449,653             1,407,243 1,325,706 1,280,228 1,078,262 1,388,943
8,241                     23,697 20,580 17,322 13,909 10,336

11,234,937           10,190,920           11,773,868           11,658,794         11,009,917     11,882,755      

3,980,084             3,542,092 4,626,949 4,388,290 4,763,179 4,432,899
1,022,868             844,486 939,202 1,172,547 1,371,492 1,029,623
115,980                 131,897 113,608 259,594 22,697 4,150
112,482                 92,752 101,219 108,211 125,547 171,228
58,589                   54,817 18,035 43,620 50,618 77,923

5,290,003             4,666,044             5,799,013             5,972,262           6,333,533       5,715,823        

16,524,940$         14,856,964$         17,572,881$         17,631,056$         17,343,450$     17,598,578$    

2,512,450$           3,525,563$           2,374,090$           2,350,878$          2,377,056$      2,652,917$      
992,239                 1,237,489 1,071,981 1,022,280 1,368,859 1,588,202

‐                          ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        ‐                   ‐                    

3,504,689             4,763,052             3,446,071             3,373,158           3,745,915       4,241,119        

4,525,723             4,978,343 5,497,755 5,606,012 6,337,602 6,719,044
316,930                 258,882 242,500 46,234 62,166 ‐                    

4,842,653             5,237,225             5,740,255             5,652,246           6,399,768       6,719,044        

8,347,342$           10,000,277$         9,186,326$           9,025,404$          10,145,683$    10,960,163$    

(7,730,248)$          (5,427,868)$          (8,327,797)$          (8,285,636)$         (7,264,002)$     (7,641,636)$     
(447,350)               571,181                 (58,758)                  (320,016)             66,235             1,003,221        

(8,177,598)$          (4,856,687)$          (8,386,555)$          (8,605,652)$         (7,197,767)$     (6,638,415)$     

‐133‐



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Changes in Net Position, (continued)

(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal year ended June 30 2009 2010 2011 2012
Governmental activities:

Taxes 8,198,847$       8,905,659$       8,437,401$       7,774,266$       
Investment income 334,793             231,953            54,370              16,405              
Grants and contributions, not restricted ‐                      ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     
Capital contributions 168,991             369,848            65,294              ‐                     
Extraordinary gain/(loss) ‐                      ‐                     ‐                      1,499,139          
Loss on disposal of property ‐                      ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     
Transfers 94,135               (114,988)           (167,071)           (164,500)           

Total governmental activities  8,796,766          9,392,472         8,389,994         9,125,310          

Business‐type activities:
Investment income 210,854             38,667              11,044              2,827                
Capital contributions ‐                      ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     
Transfers (94,135)              114,988            167,071            164,500            

Total business‐type activities  116,719             153,655            178,115            167,327            

Total primary government  8,913,485$        9,546,127$        8,568,109$        9,292,637$       

Change in net position:
Governmental activities 174,957$           243,076$           (1,322,944)$      63,977$            
Business‐type activities 1,115,730          (311,497)           (394,968)           (1,021,645)        

Total primary government  1,290,687$        (68,421)$             (1,717,912)$       (957,668)$         

Source: City of Sierra Madre Finance Department

‐134‐



2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

7,739,306$        8,217,065$        8,435,031$        8,487,077$       9,332,367$      9,654,895$      
21,761                11,671 11,875 38,125 85,587 109,516

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                     ‐                   ‐                   
15,209                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                     ‐                   ‐                   

‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                     ‐                   ‐                   
‐                       (854,341)             ‐                       ‐                     ‐                   ‐                   

(47,372)               (4,389) (54,018) (63,509) (118,957) (103,147)
7,728,904           7,370,006           8,392,888           8,461,693         9,298,997       9,661,264       

‐                       6,826 6,425 11,201 7,691 32,935
‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                     ‐                   ‐                   

47,372                4,389 54,018 63,509 118,957 103,147
47,372                11,215                60,443                74,710              126,648          136,082          

7,776,276$        7,381,221$        8,453,331$        8,536,403$        9,425,645$       9,797,346$      

(1,344)$               1,942,138$        65,091$              176,057$           2,034,995$      2,019,628$      
(399,978)             582,396              1,685                  (245,306)           192,883          1,139,303       

(401,322)$          2,524,534$        66,776$              (69,249)$             2,227,878$       3,158,931$      

‐135‐



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal year ended June 30 2009 2010 2011 2012

General fund:

Unreserved 
(1)

3,454,249$           4,246,065$           ‐$                        ‐$                       

Reserved 
(1)

490,000                 890,000                 ‐                          ‐                         

Nonspendable ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         

Committed ‐                          ‐                          800,000                 250,000                

Assigned ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          3,989,683             

Unassigned ‐                          ‐                          4,721,717              870,761                

Total General Fund 3,944,249$           5,136,065$           5,521,717$           5,110,444$          

All other governmental funds:

Reserved: 
(1)

Debt service funds 2,445,701$           2,528,671$           ‐$                        ‐$                       

Land held for resale 1,682,998              1,682,998              ‐                          ‐                         

Capital projects funds 407,967                 469,927                 ‐                          ‐                         

Unreserved, reported in: 
(1)

Special revenue funds 1,580,312              2,040,378              ‐                          ‐                         

Non‐spendable ‐                          ‐                          401,575                 ‐                         

Restricted ‐                          ‐                          1,682,998              1,682,998             

Committed ‐                          ‐                          5,863,012              888,909                

Assigned ‐                          ‐                          854,020                 1,453,098             

Unassigned ‐                          ‐                          (2,902,573)            (395,035)               

Total all other governmental funds 6,116,978$           6,721,974$           5,899,032$           3,629,970$          

Total all governmental funds 10,061,227$         11,858,039$         11,420,749$         8,740,414$          

(1)  In FY 2010‐2011, the City of Sierra Madre adopted GASB 54, Fund Balances. The City follows the designations of 

Non‐spendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned and Unassigned for Government Funds. 

Source: City of Sierra Madre Finance Department

‐136‐



2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                   ‐$                  

‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                      15,802              

‐                          2,547                      19,535                   ‐                          ‐                      ‐                     

635,000                 1,255,290 1,280,500 ‐                          ‐                      ‐                     

4,400,416              4,635,021 5,133,278 4,720,472 ‐                      ‐                     

900,121                 553,476 1,021,355 1,938,003 7,428,117 8,736,391

5,935,537$           6,446,334$           7,454,668$           6,658,475$           7,428,117$       8,752,193$      

‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                  ‐$                  

‐                          ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        ‐                    ‐                     

‐                          ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        ‐                    ‐                     

‐                          ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        ‐                    ‐                     

‐                          ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        ‐                    ‐                     

1,682,998              1,682,998              4,113,442              4,406,441            5,119,384       4,856,087        

1,658,115              2,199,679 661,036 1,457,095 1,391,394 903,576

981,304                 1,237,371 ‐                         ‐                        ‐                    ‐                     

(344,327)                (348,734) (256,676) (206,006) (155,931) (117,280)

3,978,090$           4,771,314$           4,517,802$           5,657,530$           6,354,847$       5,642,383$      

9,913,627$           11,217,648$         11,972,470$         12,316,005$         13,782,964$     14,394,576$    

‐137‐



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal year ended June 30 2009 2010 2011 2012

Revenues:
Taxes 8,198,847$           8,905,659$            8,437,444$              6,758,148$           
Property Taxes ‐                        ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         
Other Taxes ‐                        ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         
Charges for services 545,968               658,809                616,947                  595,203                
Intergovernmental 3,042,552            757,869                1,965,972               2,249,029             
Licenses and permits 847,977               854,492                1,221,741               1,160,456             
Fines and forfeitures 189,677               189,899                235,260                  223,902                
 Investment Income 278,739               170,391                49,439                    10,571                  
Miscellaneous 188,538               153,766                316,214                  184,835                

Total revenues 13,292,298          11,690,885           12,843,017           11,182,144           

Expenditures:
Current:
General government 2,664,527            3,091,208             1,444,497               2,107,607             
Public safety 6,698,070            4,380,352             5,504,146               5,081,731             
Public works 805,897               884,016                1,756,537               2,210,897             
Development 431,174               375,842                1,132,604               1,259,802             
Culture and recreation 1,231,928            1,444,583             1,392,657               1,540,117             

Debt service:
Principal 225,000               235,000                302,998                  315,581                
Interest 171,288               160,125                181,711                  101,461                

Capital outlay 615,364               574,064                1,553,968               95,735                  
Total expenditures 12,843,248          11,145,190           13,269,118           12,712,931           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 449,050               545,695                (426,101)                 (1,530,787)            

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of City property ‐                        ‐                         65,294                    ‐                         
Equipment Financing ‐                        725,402                ‐                           ‐                         
Transfers in 3,869,613            1,950,479             3,590,490               2,845,339             
Transfers out (3,789,486)           (1,403,676)            (3,579,472)            (3,017,170)            

Total other financing sources (uses) 80,127                 1,272,205             76,312                    (171,831)               

Extraordinary gain (loss) ‐                        ‐                         ‐                           (1,085,861)            

Net change in fund balances 529,177               1,817,900             (349,789)                 (2,788,479)            

9,532,050            10,040,139           11,770,538           11,528,893           

Fund balances, end of year 10,061,227$        11,858,039$          11,420,749$          8,740,414$           

Debt Service as a Percentage of Non‐Capital 

Expenditures 3% 4% 4% 3%

*Note: Prior to FY 2012‐2013 taxes were not segregated to subcategories, such as property taxes and other taxes.
**Note: Prior to FY 2012‐2013 Property Tax in‐lieu of VLF was reported as intergovernmental revenues. In FY 2012‐2013 and FY 2013‐2014  

it was reported as Other Taxes.
***Note: In FY 2014‐2015 Property Tax in‐lieu of VLF is  reported as part of Property Taxes.   

Fund balances, beginning of year, as restated

Source: City of Sierra Madre Finance Department

‐138‐



2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                     ‐$                      
3,902,682                4,391,262                5,264,471                5,677,308             6,075,078          6,426,261             
3,724,541                3,707,633 3,170,560 2,809,769 3,257,288 3,228,635
897,281                   820,236 871,237 881,477 690,417 733,929

1,065,088                1,248,338 1,073,897 1,022,280 1,176,272 1,228,646
1,131,957                2,431,117 1,018,971 837,657 1,222,728 1,227,077
328,707                   240,188 223,072 190,999 167,318 118,324

‐                            6,636 5,397 25,726 63,194 84,912
163,313                   169,853 260,810 440,745 489,181 933,142

11,213,569              13,015,263              11,888,415              11,885,961           13,141,476        13,980,926          

1,921,278                1,871,441 1,672,935 1,970,283 2,391,482 2,609,677
5,074,457                5,382,934 5,382,396 5,725,286 5,375,953 5,200,197
794,165                   1,844,412 1,670,830 1,004,326 1,247,133 2,806,374
842,273                   940,335 1,019,712 1,485,372 1,355,877 1,437,228

1,284,435                1,244,718 1,162,983 1,228,487 1,115,425 1,141,498

63,385                     66,321 69,391 72,604 75,964 79,484
27,656                     24,721 21,651 18,442 15,082 11,563
31,790                     14,833 ‐                          ‐                         ‐                      ‐                        

10,039,439              11,389,715              10,999,898              11,504,800           11,576,916        13,286,021          

1,174,130                1,625,548                888,517                   381,161                1,564,560          694,905                

‐                            ‐                            ‐                          ‐                         ‐                      ‐                        
‐                            ‐                            ‐                          ‐                         ‐                      ‐                        

1,376,732                881,171 941,521 2,348,798 246,913 37,851
(1,377,649)               (1,288,508) (989,406) (2,386,421) (343,835) (121,145)

(917)                         (407,337)                  (47,885)                    (37,623)                 (96,922)              (83,294)                 

‐                            ‐                            ‐                          ‐                         ‐                      ‐                        

1,173,213                1,218,211                840,632                   343,538                1,467,638          611,611                

8,740,414                9,913,627                11,131,838              11,972,467           12,315,326        13,782,965          

9,913,627$              11,131,838$           11,972,470$           12,316,005$          13,782,964$       14,394,576$       

1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%

‐139‐



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Assessed Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal year ended June 30 2009 2010 2011 2012

Category
Residential 1,469,859,412$     1,469,610,878$    1,482,410,204$    1,522,225,014$    
Commercial 44,106,361             47,818,195           47,606,368           47,274,344            
Industrial 7,240,625               7,385,414             7,447,664             7,503,723              
Govt. Owned 519,020                  156,306                155,935                157,109                 
Institutional 2,388,942               2,436,717             2,430,940             6,669,589              
Irrigated ‐                          ‐                         ‐                          ‐                         
Recreational 603,211                  615,272                613,810                618,428                 
Vacant 39,531,555             47,752,008           41,417,109           44,660,373            
SBE Nonunitary ‐                          ‐                         ‐                          ‐                         
Cross Reference 1,977,310               1,538,550             1,530,912             1,542,439              
Unsecured 7,021,368               6,881,054             6,823,278             6,990,234              

Total assessed value 1,573,247,804$     1,584,194,394$    1,590,436,220$    1,637,641,253$    

Tax‐Exempt Property (3,601,786)              (3,605,034)            (3,605,034)            (3,605,034)             

Total taxable assessed value 1,569,646,018$     1,580,589,360$    1,586,831,186$    1,634,036,219$    

Total direct rate 0.2847                 0.2850               0.2852               0.2843               

‐140‐



2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

1,569,368,492$     1,657,387,265$     1,750,546,835$     1,849,086,339$    1,958,752,239$    2,064,755,283$    
50,519,744             52,244,923             53,659,841             57,179,257           60,520,506           62,360,811            
7,653,776               7,806,831               7,842,250               11,350,279           11,523,349           11,904,983            
542,759                   163,456                  164,198                  167,478                 170,032                 173,432                 

3,943,818               4,105,294               6,618,344               6,423,627             17,021,358           18,196,153            
‐                           ‐                           ‐                          ‐                         ‐                         

1,647,693               1,680,645               1,688,272               1,722,001             1,748,259             1,783,221             
44,480,022             44,785,823             46,880,985             44,273,558           46,173,712           42,633,298            

‐                           ‐                           ‐                          ‐                         ‐                         
1,573,286               1,604,751               1,792,372               1,968,133             1,998,146             2,038,108             
6,711,328               6,183,887               6,657,788               7,011,648             6,843,871             6,959,470             

1,686,440,918$     1,775,962,875$     1,875,850,885$     1,979,182,320$    2,104,751,472$    2,210,804,759$    

(3,605,034)              (3,605,138)              (3,605,138)              (3,605,138)            (3,605,138)            (3,569,824)             

1,682,835,884$     1,772,357,737$     1,872,245,747$     1,975,577,182$    2,101,146,334$    2,207,234,935$    

0.2821                 0.2228                 0.2231                0.2234               0.2243               0.2237               

‐141‐



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Property Tax Rates

Direct and Overlapping Governments

(Rate per $100 of Taxable Value)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal year ended June 30 2009 2010 2011 2012
Agency

Basic Levy 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000
Arcadia Unified 0.07911 0.07561 0.07456 0.07691
County Detention Facilities 1987 Debt 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
La County Flood Control 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
Metropolitan Water District 0.01800 0.01800 0.01800 0.01800
Pasadena Community College Dist 0.01742 0.02300 0.01986 0.01956
Pasadena Unified School Dist 0.06375 0.10836 0.10195 0.11120
Sierra Madre Lighting 0.30902 0.30902 0.30902 0.30902

1.48730 1.53399 1.52339 1.53469

City's Share of 1% Levy Per Prop 13³ 0.21911 0.21911 0.21911 0.21911

Voter Approved City Debt Rate ‐                         ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         

Redevelopment Rate⁴ 1.01800 1.01800 1.01800 1.01800

Total Direct Rate⁵ 0.28474 0.28501 0.28519 0.28433

Source:  HDL Coren & Cone

‐142‐



2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000
0.07670 0.07550 0.07653 0.07507 0.07788 0.07551
0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
0.01800 0.01800 0.01800 0.01800 0.02300 0.03000
0.02056 0.01899 0.01032 0.00872 0.00885 0.00819
0.11403 0.10351 0.10601 0.11168 0.10673 0.10547
0.30902 0.30902 0.30902 0.30902 0.30902 0.30902

1.53831 1.52502 1.51988 1.52249 1.52548 1.52819

0.21911 0.21911 0.21911 0.21911 0.21911 0.21911

‐                            ‐                            ‐                          ‐                         ‐                         ‐                           

‐                            ‐                            ‐                          ‐                         ‐                         ‐                           

0.28214 0.22284 0.22310 0.22338 0.22428 0.22367

‐143‐



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Principal Property Taxpayers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Taxpayer

Taxable Assessed 

Value

% of Net 

Assesse

d Value Rank

Taxable Assessed 

Value

% of Net 

Assesse

d Value Rank

CS Stonehouse LLC 16,522,148$          1.05% 1

CS One Carter LLC 10,837,920             0.69% 2

One Carter LLC 10,490,227             0.67% 3

S M E Associates Limited 6,510,102               41.00% 4

Barbera Family LP 4,698,700             30.00% 5 5,316,339$          0.24% 6

Montecito Development Group LLC 3,820,344             24.00% 6 4,323,741           0.20% 8

William and Marie Sullivan 3,330,830             21.00% 7

Time Warner Cable 3,328,716             21.00% 8

Esperanza Chateau 2,950,300             0.19% 9

Zhang Hongmei 2,865,261             0.18% 10

Kensington SM GP LLC 14,436,516         0.66% 1

CETT Madre Limited 12,819,268         0.58% 2

Watts Up Community Development Corp 10,103,033         0.46% 3

MB Equity LLC 6,344,710           0.29% 4

Ginkgo Stonehouse II LLC 5,903,173           0.27% 5

William L. Sullivan Cotrustee 5,146,784           0.23% 7

Jason and Heather Young 3,987,323           0.18% 9

Avalanche Lake Realty 3,973,200           0.18% 10

Top Ten Total 65,354,548$          4.15% 72,354,087$        3.27%

City Total 1,573,247,804$    2,210,804,759$  

Source:  HDL Coren & Cone

2009 2018

‐144‐



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

Taxes Levied for the 

Fiscal Year Amount

Percentage of 

Levy

Collections of 

Subsequent Years Amount

Percentage of 

Levy
2009 3,051,928.10$           3,051,928.10$           100.00% ‐$                            3,051,928.10$           100.00%
2010 2,943,471.38             2,516,088.07             85.48% 427,383.31               2,516,088.07             85.48%
2011 3,428,755.32             3,144,814.14             91.72% 283,941.18               3,144,814.14             91.72%
2012 3,420,519.63             3,013,111.05             88.09% 407,408.58               3,013,111.05             88.09%
2013 3,623,212.57             3,369,908.53             93.01% 253,304.04               3,369,908.53             93.01%
2014 3,873,970.53             3,669,464.08             94.72% 204,506.45               3,669,464.08             94.72%
2015 3,929,776.21             3,837,082.58             97.64% 92,693.63                 3,837,082.58             97.64%
2016 4,229,810.14             4,126,506.26             97.63% 100,303.88               4,129,506.26             97.63%
2017 4,492,592.16             4,314,137.59             96.03% 178,454.57               4,314,137.59             96.03%
2018 4,772,165.30             4,553,847.52             95.43% 218,317.78               4,553,847.52             95.43%

Source:  HDL Coren & Cone

Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
Collected within the

‐145‐



This page intentionally left blank



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 

As of June 30,2018

Gross Bonded 

Debt Balance

Percent 

Applicable 

to City

Net Bonded 

Debt
Total Direct Debt  $       12,791,769 

Overlapping Debt

PASADENA CCD DS 2002, 2006 SERIES D 3,595,000.00$     2.627 94,434                

PASADENA CCD DS 2002, 2009 SERIES E (BABS) 25,295,000         2.627 664,455              

PASADENA CCD DS 2014 REF SERIES A 15,325,000         2.627 402,561              

PASADENA CCD DS 2016 REF SERIES A 32,900,000         2.627 864,225              

ARCADIA UNIFIED DS 1993 SERIES A 791,782               0.367 2,907                  

ARCADIA UNIFIED DS 1993 SERIES C 441,778               0.367 1,622                  

ARCADIA UNIFIED DS 2006 SERIES B 218,215,000       0.367 801,270              

PASADENA USD DS 2008 SERIES 2009 5,370,000            5.419 290,996              

PASADENA USD DS 2008 SERIES 2012 103,645,000       5.419 5,616,445          
909.59 PASADENA USD DS 2014 REF BONDS SERIES A 49,410,000         5.419 2,677,491          

PASADENA USD DS 2014 REF BONDS SERIES B 98,380,000         5.419 5,331,138          
909.61 PASADENA USD DS 2008 SERIES 2016 10,675,000         5.419 578,470              

PASADENA USD DS 2016 REF BONDS SERIES A 78,470,000         5.419 4,252,230          

Total Overlapping Debt 21,578,244

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt  $       34,370,013 

2017/18 Assessed Valuation: $2,016,218,961 After Deducting $194,585,798 Incremental Value.

Debt To Assessed Valuation Ratios: 

Direct Debt 0.00%

Overlapping Debt 1.07%

Total Debt 1.07%

Source:  HDL Coren & Cone

817.57

909.56

812.53

909.60

817.53

812.56

817.51

812.54

812.55

909.58

909.62

‐146‐



Fiscal year ended 

June 30,

Master Lease 

Equipment 

Financing

General 

Obligation Bonds

Tax Increment 

Bonds 
(1)

Total

2009 34,562$                ‐$                     3,545,000$         3,579,562$         

2010 1,224,674             ‐                        3,320,000           4,544,674            

2011 759,254                ‐                        2,840,000           3,599,254            

2012 689,341                ‐                        ‐                       689,341               

2013 616,191                ‐                        ‐                       616,191               

2014 539,654                ‐                        ‐                       539,654               

2015 459,574                ‐                        ‐                       459,574               

2016 375,785                ‐                        ‐                       375,785               

2017 288,119                ‐                        ‐                       288,119               

2018 196,393                196,393               

Source: City of Sierra Madre Finance Department

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Governmental Activities

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(1) Due to the dissolution of the Community Redevelopment Agency, the Tax Allocation Bonds were 

transferred to the Successor Agency in 2012.

‐147‐



Master Lease 

Equipment 

Financing

Revenue Parity 

Bonds Loans Total

Total Primary 

Government

‐$                      11,060,000$        1,456,875$         12,516,875$       16,096,437$       

433,040                10,760,000          1,456,875            12,649,915        17,194,589         

366,391                10,105,000          1,456,875            11,928,266        15,527,520         

332,653                9,755,000             1,311,188            11,398,841        12,088,182         

297,353                9,385,000             1,165,500            10,847,853        11,464,044         

260,419                8,995,000             1,019,812            10,275,231        10,814,885         

221,775                8,590,000             874,126               9,685,901           10,145,475         

181,341                8,165,000             728,438               9,074,779           9,450,564            

139,036                7,715,000             582,751               8,436,787           8,724,906            

94,771                  ‐                         6,940,756            7,035,527           7,231,920            

Business‐type Activities

‐148‐



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Pledged Revenue Coverage

Business‐type Activities ‐ Water Fund

Debt Service

Fiscal year ended 

June 30,

Operating 

Revenues

Operation 

and 

Maintenance  Net Revenues Principal Interest Coverage

Sierra Madre Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998A

Sierra Madre Water Revenue Parity Bonds, Series 2003

2009 3,037,500$   2,596,025$   441,475$          300,000$  541,878$     0.52              

2010 * 2,920,048     1,564,470     1,355,578        320,000   531,845       1.59              

2011 * 3,155,645     1,523,156     1,632,489        335,000   515,470       1.92              

2012 * 3,038,056     1,907,143     1,130,913        350,000   498,345       1.33              

2013 * 3,558,161     2,084,614     1,473,547        370,000   480,345       1.73              

2014 * 3,834,017     1,606,098     2,227,919 390,000 461,345 2.62              

2015 4,373,849     2,574,322     1,799,527 405,000 441,470 2.13              

2016 4,498,726     2,348,112     2,150,614 425,000 420,720 2.54              

2017 5,249,123     2,567,912     2,681,211 450,000 398,845 3.16              

City of Sierra Madre Installment Purchase Agreement**

2018 5,521,322     2,319,129     3,202,193 258,284 186,735 7.20              

* The City recalculated coverage for the Revenue Bonds based on rate covenant definitions per official 

statements for FY 2010‐2014.

** The City determined that paying the prior installment sales agreements for the Revenue Bonds listed above

with the proceeds from the 2017 Installment Purchase Agreement , would reduce the City's interest expense

payable from Water Revenues. 

Funding was provided by Holman Capital Corporation and the City's Reserve Funds totaling $6,761,976.01. The 

The proceeds were sufficient to defease the Revenue Bonds on November1, 2017, thereby satisfying and 

terminating the City's obligations under the prior installment sales agreements and indentures. Funding took

place on October 31, 2017.

As with the original Revenue Bonds, the City irrevocably pledged all of the Net Water Revenues to the payment of

the 2017 Installment Payments, and is a first priority lien on the collateral.

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Source: City of Sierra Madre Finance Department

‐149‐



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Pledged Revenue Coverage

Governmental Activities

Debt Service

Fiscal year ended 

June 30, Tax Increment (1) Principal Interest Coverage

2009 
(2)

1,128,402$             225,000$           171,288$           2.85                       

2010 (3) 697,666                   235,000              160,125              1.77                       

2011 (4) 1,174,727                245,000              148,125              2.99                       

2012 (5) 1,249,669                255,000              156,042              3.04                       

2013
 (6)

555,072                   270,000              120,187              1.42                       

2014
 (6)

505,387 300,000 106,188 1.24                       

2015
 (6)

738,195 300,000 94,000 1.87                       

2016 (6) 528,157 315,000 78,625 1.34                       

2017 (6) 567,950 330,000 62,500 1.45                       

2018 (6) 581,097 345,000 45,625 1.49                       

(1)  Tax increment figures are net of related pass‐through payments.
(2)  Tax increment figures are net of related pass‐through payments,  beginning in 2008‐2009,

 the City began paying AB1389 pass through payments.
(3) 
 Tax increment figures are net of related pass‐through payments, including AB1389 and 

State SERAF of $542,513.
(4)  Tax increment figures are net of related pass‐through payments, including AB1389 and

 State SERAF of $161,861.
(5)  Due to the dissolution of the Community Redevelopment Agency, the Tax Allocation 

Bonds were transferred to the Successor Agency. This funding represents both the 

Private Purpose Trust Fund and former Special Revenue Fund.
(6)
  Due to the dissolution of the Community Redevelopment Agency, the Tax Allocation 

Bonds were transferred to the Successor Agency. This funding represents the Private

Purpose Trust Fund.

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Source: City of Sierra Madre Finance Department

‐150‐



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Calendar 

Year Population

Personal 

Income (In 

Thousands)

Per Capita 

Personal 

Income

Unemployment 

Rate

Median 

Age

% of  Pop 25+ 

with High 

School Degree

% of  Pop 25+ 

with Bachelor's 

Degree

2008 11,034 581,887$      52,736$      2.2%

2009 11,042 565,812        51,242        3.5% 45.7 96.0% 54.0%

2010 11,099 580,056        52,262        3.9% 45.7 97.5% 58.4%

2011 10,963 558,203        50,917        3.8% 46.4 96.6% 57.5%

2012 11,023 568,214        51,548        2.8% 48.2 96.5% 57.4%

2013 11,094 531,369        47,897        2.3% 48.0 96.4% 57.1%

2014 11,098 545,034        49,111        5.5% 47.3 96.8% 59.1%

2015 11,013 541,092        49,132        4.5% 45.8 97.5% 61.5%

2016 11,010 573,499        52,088        3.5% 46.2 98.4% 63.7%

2017 10,986 575,612        52,395        2.7% 45.0 99.2% 65.1%

Source:  HDL Coren & Cone, California State Department of Finance, California EDD, US Census

‐151‐



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Top 25 Sales Tax Producers

For Fiscal Yeaar Ended June 30, 2018

Business Name Business Category

Ad Security Specialty Stores

Alliance Service Stations

Bean Town Quick‐Service Restaurants

Bottle Shop Convenience Stores/Liquor

Buccaneer Lounge Casual Dining

Casa Del Rey Casual Dining

Corfu Restaurant Casual Dining

Faubourg Restaurant Casual Dining

Frontier Hardware Co Building Materials

Happy Liquor Convenience Stores/Liquor

Leonora Moss Florist Shops

Lingo Industrial Electronics Heavy Industrial

Lucky Baldwins Delirium Café Casual Dining

Moes Automotive Service Center Auto Repair Shops

Monsieur Crepe Fast‐Casual Restaurants

Nano Café Casual Dining

Only Place in Town Casual Dining

Sierra Filtration Services Specialty Stores

Sierra Madre Pizza Co Quick‐Service Restaurants

Sierra Madre Valero Service Stations

Tacos Ensenada Dom Quick‐Service Restaurants

Talianko Design Group Home Furnishings

Village Pizzeria Fast‐Casual Restaurants

Wistaria Restaurant & Bar Casual Dining

Yui Fine Dining

Source:  HDL Coren & Cone

‐152‐



This page intentionally left blank



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Full‐Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function

Fiscal year ended June 30 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

General Government 7 8 8 8 7 7 11 11 11 13

Public Safety

Police

Officers 17 18 18 18 16 17 17 17 17 17

Civilians 7 5 5 5 4 4 7 6 6 7

Fire 11.4 12 12 15.8 15.4 15.2 16 18 19 19

Public Works 21 20 20 20 19 17.5 18 18 19 18

Development 4 4 4 4 3 3.5 4 5 5 5

Library and Recreation 26.5 24.85 24.85 22.65 15.7 15.8 13 12 13 14

Total 93.9 91.85 91.85 93.45 80.1 80 86 87 90 93

Source:  Various City of Sierra Madre Departments

‐153‐



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Operating Indicators by Function

Fiscal year ended June 30 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Police
Number of:
Physical Arrests 370 467 129 328 399 345          327            214             248           223          
Parking Violations 3,516 2,812 2,495 2,031 3,266 2,976       2,764        1,797          2,596        1,705       
Traffic Violations 1,574 1,740 1,989 1,798 1,435 1,967       571            727             837           1,210       

Fire
Number of:
Calls Answered 818 885 940 967 947 863          970            1,036          1,107        1,102       
Inspections 2,040 1,964 1,970 2,002 1,943 2,000       1,739        1,678          2,084        1,687       

Public Works
Number of:
Water Mains Repaired 18 25 24 45 30 25             58               550             388           395          
Water service leaks repaired 25 28 13 19 19 8               7                 19                30              46             
Street resurfacing/repair (SF) 0 331,235 0 0 0 69,000     284,790   ‐              142,500   454,000  
Sidewalk Repairs (SF) 1,050 1,950 4,755 3,207 12,000 4,096       4,605        3,000          4,700        9,500       
Trees planted 6 34 28 14 8 63             ‐             ‐              12              16             
Trees pruned 444 171 24 20 537 514          37               24                38              43             
Trees removed 18 18 37 50 20 30             62               75                75              68             
Sewer cleaned/inspected (LF) 186,055 186,055 155,761 151,659 102,720 143,711  167,168   186,176     146,000   120,817  
Sewer Manhole inspected (each) n/a n/a n/a 346 171 104          676            620             433           473          
Sewer lines inspected (LF) n/a n/a n/a 500 200 330          1,064        1,000          2,045        ‐           
Meters replaced 463 624 479 398 138 129          168            ‐              172           507          
Valves exercised 234 257 829 583 299 406          284            267             3                ‐           
Pot holes repaired 106 106 87 14 100 188          380            575             657           727          
Water Mains Replaced (LF) n/a n/a 150 4,165 n/a n/a 2,870        1,750          1,200        2,000       

Recreation and Community Services
Number of participants:

Recreation classes  1,419 1,008 1,658 1,382 2,510 1,730         731             371             271             217            

Aquatic (1) 3,398 3,720 3,584 3,146 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Summer pool memberships 22 22 10 16 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Annual Events (2) 738 708 758 789

  Movie Series n/a n/a n/a n/a 1,100 1,050       1,400        1,500          1,700        1,850       
  Concert Series n/a n/a n/a n/a 3,600 4,550       4,835        4,400          4,600        4,800       
  Summer Fun in the Park n/a n/a n/a n/a 274 320          293            305             265           261          
  Huck Finn (campsites) 28 37 41 43 40 60             63               63                50              36             
  Mt. Wilson Trail Race 335 328 319 323 328 350          325            346             337           332          
  Window Painting 130 119 163 163 89 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

  Halloween Happenings 133 149 153 153 112 n/a 150             157             107             115            
Excursions n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 511             477           464          

(1) Aquatics contracted out beginning FY 2012‐2013
(2) Annual events divided into new categories beginning FY 2012‐2013

Source:  Various City of Sierra Madre Departments

‐154‐



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Operating Indicators by Function, (continued)

Fiscal year ended June 30 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Library
Number of:

Registered borrowers 10,970      11,162      11,292      11,994      13,044      11,366       10,530       11,429 11,574 11,098      
Circulation 101,513    107,535    111,384  105,121  86,829    79,673     85,779     113,272 97,829 114,432  
Reference 5,707         6,682         7,781       6,705       5,663       5,795        6,548        6,493 5,237 5,066       
Book volumes held 59,540     58,956      56,415    55,845    51,681    54,663     56,891     47,746 41,680 39,164    
User’s of E‐Resources 12,762     14,288      13,962    13,312    13,844    14,173     14,798     17,678 16,612 14,141    
Media 4,940         5,381         5,301       5,323       5,512       5,993        6,307        18,238 6,084 5,904       
Periodicals 108            119            115          115          109          95             98              61 95 82            

Municipal Utilities
Number of:
Number of Customers
Commercial 110            111            110          111          112          70             n/a n/a n/a n/a *
Multi‐Unit 351            356            354          356          353          212           n/a n/a n/a n/a *
City  75              75              75            75            63            40             n/a n/a n/a n/a *
Residential 3,198         3,312         3,284       3,255       3,280       3,424        3,550        3,489          3,565        3,501       
Non‐Residential n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a / n/a 204           195             210           193           *

Water Consumption in Units (000's) 956            1,010 1,086 1,212 1,232 1325 821 667 925 765

Administrative Services
Number of:
Number of Customers
Online Bill Pay (average) n/a n/a n/a 155          131          156           211           246             288           333          
Business Licenses Issued 1,266         1,275         1,288       1,232       1,360       2,358        1,374        1,276          1,438        1,665       

Development Services
Number of:
Conditional Use Permit 2                7                5              13            5              5 37 5                 6               7              
Minor Conditional Use Permit 5                5                3              2              5              10             7                2                 5               5              
Variance 4                4                2              4              1              ‐            1                1                 ‐            ‐
Minor Variance 5                5                ‐           ‐           3              1               1                2                 2               ‐
Municipal Code Text Amendment 1                1                3              2              3              1               6                5                 7               ‐
Building Permit 245            125            242          304          278          249           231           230             274           281          
Electrical Permit 132            86              57            81            165          208           159           174             206           223          
Mechanical Permit 75              22              36            38            110          130           129           100             128           135          
Plumbing Permit 104            45              49            59            161          166           215           194             204           230          
Sewer Permit 9                2                6              13            25            26             3                14               23             2              

* Account Class categories changed as of March 2014 in line with the Water Rate Study.

Source:  Various City of Sierra Madre Departments

‐155‐



Fiscal year ended June 30 2009 2010 2011
Roadways

Pavement AC (Governmental Funds) 16,209,394$          15,364,491$           14,523,998$         

Street Appurtenances
Bridges (Governmental Funds) 79,547                   72,630                    65,713                  

Parks
Park Structures (Governmental Funds) 183,792                 172,614                  164,767                

73,317                  

Trees (Governmental Funds) 1,206,214                1,206,214                1,206,214               

Wastewater 
Manholes (Sewer) 866,151                 838,654                  811,157                
Sewer Pipelines (Sewer) 3,070,698              2,973,215               2,875,733             

Domestic Water Network
Spreading Basins (Water) 1,257,907              1,225,146               1,192,386             
Pump Stations (Water)  1,702,838              1,648,780               1,594,721             
Meters (Water) 42,885                   14,295                    ‐                         
Pipelines (Water) 3,924,614              3,742,074               3,559,533             
Pressure Reducing Stations (Water) 365,338                 349,101                  332,864                
Fire Hydrants (Water) 215,195                 205,186                  195,177                
Wells (Water) 864,640                 824,424                  784,209                
Reservoirs (Water) 14,539,434           14,399,392            14,195,770          

Buildings All
Buildings (Water Fund) 176,577                 168,365                  160,152                
Buildings (Sewer Fund) 176,577                 168,365                  160,152                
Buildings (Governmental Funds) 7,273,863              7,050,994               6,825,034             
Buildings (Governmental‐ISF Facilities)

Land All
Land (Water Fund) 1,483,250              1,483,250               1,483,250             
Land (Governmental Funds) 162,275,945         162,275,945          162,275,945        

General Equipment All
Vehicle & Equipment (Water Fund) 39,215                   27,081                    20,780                  
Vehicle & Equipment (Sewer Fund) 18,522                   3,841                       404,918                
Vehicle & Equipment (Governmental Funds) 270,108                  794,752                
Vehicle & Equipment (Governmental‐ISF fleet) 520,740                 1,021,846               980,860                
Software (Governmental‐ISF Administration) 369,848                  484,029                

Total 216,493,335$        215,875,857$         215,165,429$       

Source:  Various City of Sierra Madre Departments

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Capital Assets ‐ Book Value (excludes construction in progress)

‐156‐



2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

13,686,599$           12,858,351$           12,041,539$           11,331,409$      10,731,909$      9,854,028$        9,549,273$        

58,796                     51,878                     44,961                     38,044               29,591               21,137               12,682                

156,919                   149,072                   141,224                   133,376             267,258             392,374             371,422              
167,586                   162,738                   155,976                   155,976             ‐ ‐ ‐

1,206,214                1,206,214                1,206,214                1,206,214            1,206,214            1,206,214            1,206,214           

783,660                   756,163                   728,666                   701,169             672,551             643,932             615,313              
2,778,250                2,680,768                2,583,285                2,993,188          2,576,706          2,469,342          2,361,979           

1,159,626                1,126,865                1,094,105                1,061,345          1,025,528          989,710             953,893              
1,540,663                1,486,605                1,432,546                1,378,488          1,322,223          1,265,958          1,209,694           

‐                            ‐                            ‐                            ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                       
3,376,993                3,511,413                3,587,725                3,731,255          4,141,639          4,143,901          4,352,079           
316,626                   300,389                   284,152                   267,915             250,630             233,345             216,060              
185,168                   175,159                   165,149                   155,140             144,440             133,741             123,042              
743,993                   703,777                   663,561                   623,345             580,356             537,366             494,377              

13,992,147             13,788,524             13,584,901             13,381,279       13,174,440       12,967,602       12,760,764        

151,939                   143,726                   135,513                   127,300             118,766             110,328             101,799              
151,939                   143,726                   135,513                   127,300             118,813             110,284             101,839              

6,599,074                6,373,114                6,147,154                5,733,392          5,642,913          5,409,185          5,175,456           
61,379                

1,483,250                1,483,250                1,483,250                1,483,250          1,483,250          1,483,250          1,483,250           
162,275,946           162,275,946           162,275,946           162,275,946     162,275,946     162,275,946     162,275,946      

14,820                     10,360                     24,555                     30,890               59,040               71,118               62,638                
404,918                   341,205                   336,248                   292,587             230,880             169,174             107,464              
740,834                   686,766                   641,723                   541,302             501,492             387,136             555,906              
881,965                   784,751                   704,962                   591,833             654,076             821,597             745,501              
459,827                   411,425                   363,022                   314,619             394,552             333,326             272,088              

213,317,751$         211,612,185$         209,961,890$         208,676,562$    207,603,213$    206,029,994$    205,170,058$    

‐157‐



This page intentionally left blank
















































	Special City Council Meeting Agenda - January 22, 2019
	City Council Meeting Agenda 1-22-2019
	Council Minutes - 1-8-2019
	1A - RESOLUTION NUMBER 19.04
	1B - TREASURER'S REPORT QUARTER ENDING SEPTEMBER 30. 2018
	1C - SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 1408 AMENDING TITLE 10
	1D - AUTHORIZATION TO BID FY 18-19 STREET RESURFACING PROJECT
	1E - NOTICE OF COMPLETION - FY 18-19 WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT
	1F - CAFR FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30 2018
	1F - CAFR FOR FY ENDING JUNE 30 2018
	CAFR

	1G - CALIFORNIA ASSEMBLY BILL 1600 ANNUAL REPORTING
	2 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE CALIFORNIA ESTABLISHING AN INTERIM MORATORIUM
	3 - DISCUSSION REGARDING SHORT TERM RENTALS

